DESIGN COMPARISON OF ORDINARY CONCENTRIC BRACE FRAMES AND SPECIAL CONCENTRIC BRACE FRAMES FOR SEISMIC LATERAL FORCE RESISTANCE FOR LOW RISE BUILDINGS

by

ERIC GRUSENMEYER

B.S., Kansas State University, 2012

A REPORT

submitted in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the degree

MASTER OF SCIENCE

Department of Architectural Engineering College of Engineering

KANSAS STATE UNIVERSITY Manhattan, Kansas

2012

Approved by:

Major Professor Kimberly Waggle Kramer, P.E., S.E.

Copyright

ERIC GRUSENMEYER

2012

Abstract

Braced frames are a common seismic lateral force resisting system used in steel structures. Ordinary concentric braced frames (OCBFs) and special concentric braced frames (SCBFs) are two major types of frames. Brace layouts vary for both OCBFs and SCBFs. T`his report examines the inverted-V brace layout which is one common arrangement. OCBFs are designed to remain in the elastic range during the design extreme seismic event. As a result, OCBFs have relatively few special requirements for design. SCBFs are designed to enter the inelastic range during the design extreme seismic event while remaining elastic during minor earthquakes and in resisting wind loads. To achieve this, SCBFs must meet a variety of stringent design and detailing requirements to ensure robust seismic performance characterized by high levels of ductility.

The design of steel seismic force resisting systems must comply with the requirements of the American Institute of Steel Construction's (AISC) *Seismic Provisions for Structural Steel Buildings*. Seismic loads are determined in accordance with the American Society of Engineers *Minimum Design Loads for Buildings and Other Structures*. Seismic loads are very difficult to predict as is the behavior of structures during a large seismic event. However, a properly designed and detailed steel structure can safely withstand the effects of an earthquake.

This report examines a two-story office building in a region of moderately high seismic activity. The building is designed using OCBFs and SCBFs. This report presents the designs of both systems including the calculation of loads, the design of frame members, and the design and detailing of the connections. The purpose of this report is to examine the differences in design and detailing for the two braced frame systems.

Table of Contents

List of Figures	vii
List of Tables	viii
List of Notations	ix
Acknowledgements	xi
Dedication	xii
Chapter 1 - Introduction	
Chapter 2 - Scope of Research	
Chapter 3 - Building Loads	
Gravity Loads	
Dead Loads	
Live Loads	
Snow Loads	
Wind Loads	
Seismic Loads	7
Seismic Ground Motion	7
Site Classification	
Seismic Design Category	
Design Coefficients and Factors	9
Response Modification Coefficient	
Deflection Amplification Factor	
Overstrength Factor	
Seismic Design Force	
Effective Seismic Weight	
Seismic Response Coefficient	
Building Period	
Distribution of Seismic Forces	
Torsion Forces	
Chapter 4 - Ordinary Concentrically Braced Frame Member Design	

Analysis	
Brace Design	
Slenderness	
Local Buckling	
Brace Strength	
Column Design	
Beam Design	
Chapter 5 - Ordinary Concentric Brace Frame Connections	
Design Forces	
Brace-to Gusset Design	
Brace-to-Gusset Connection	
Tensile Rupture of Brace	
Gusset Plate Design	
Shear Rupture	
Compression Buckling	
Whitmore Section	
Gusset-to-Beam Connection	
Gusset-to-Beam Weld	
Gusset Shear Rupture and Yielding	
Web Local Yielding and Beam Web Crippling	
Gusset-to-Column Connection	
Beam-to-Column Connection	
Chapter 6 - Special Concentric Brace Frame Member Design	
SCBF Analysis	
Brace Design	
Column Design	
Beam Design	
Chapter 7 - Special Concentric Brace Frame Connection Design	
Brace Connection Design Forces	
Tension	
Compression	

Flexure	
Shear Lag and Brace Section Rupture at Gusset	
Protected Zones	
Free-Edge Buckling	
Demand Critical Welds	40
Beam-to-Column Connections	
Chapter 8 - Conclusions	
Governing Lateral Load	
Brace Slenderness Limits	
Member Sizes	44
Inverted-V Brace Layout	
Story Drift	
General Conclusions	
References	
Appendix A - Building Plans and Elevations	49
Appendix B - Load Calculations	
Appendix C - OCBF Member Designs	
Appendix D - OCBF Connection Designs	
Appendix E - SCBF Member Designs	
Appendix F - SCBF Connection Designs	

List of Figures

Figure 2-1: Building Framing Plan	2
Figure 2-2: Longitudinal Building Elevation	
Figure 2-3: Transverse Building Elevation	
Figure 3-1: Inelastic Force-Deformation Curve	
Figure 4-1: Intersection of Member Centerlines	
Figure 4-2: Brace Frame Layouts	
Figure 4-3: Unbalanced Load Due to Inverted-V Brace Layout	
Figure 5-1: Net Area of HSS Brace at Gusset Connection	
Figure 5-2: Whitmore Section	
Figure 7-1: Brace End Clear Distance	
Figure 7-2: Reinforced Brace Connection	
Figure 7-3: Protected Zone	40
Figure A-1: Building Plan	48
Figure A-2: OCBF Elevation.	49
Figure A-3: SCBF Elevation	50

List of Tables

Table 3-1: Dead Loads	6
Table 3-2: Live Loads	6
Table 3-3: Design Coefficients and Factors	. 10
Table 8-1: Comparison of Building Base Shears	43
Table 8-2: Comparison of Braced Frame Member Selection	45
Table 8-3: Comparison of Braced Frame Steel Tonnage	45
Table 8-4: Summary of Building Story Drifts	46

List of Notations

- Ag Gross area
- C_a Ratio of required strength to available strength
- C_d Deflection amplification factor
- C_s Seismic response coefficient
- Ct Approximate period parameter
- Cvx Vertical distribution factor
- D Dead load
- D Diameter of brace
- D_s Elastic story drift at elastic seismic force, V_e
- D_u Ultimate story drift
- H_{ub} Required shear force on beam to gusset connection
- Huc Required axial force on column to gusset connection
- h_i , h_x Height of level i, x
- h_n Approximate period parameter
- E Modulus of elasticity
- F_a Short period site coefficient
- F_{cr} Critical buckling stress
- F_{cre} Expected critical buckling stress
- F_e Elastic critical buckling stress
- F_v Long period site coefficient
- Fy Specified minimum yield stress
- F_x Portion of seismic base shear acting at level x
- I_e Importance factor for seismic design
- K Effective length factor
- k Distribution exponent
- L Live load
- L Member length
- M_P Plastic bending moment
- P_c Expected post-buckling strength

Pt - Expected tensile yield strength

Q_E - Seismic load

R - Response modification coefficient

Ry – Material overstrength factor, ratio of expected yield stress to specified minimum yield stress

- r Radius of gyration
- S-Snow load

S_{DS} – Design spectral response acceleration parameter for short periods

 S_{D1} – Design spectral response acceleration parameter for periods of 1 second

S_{MS} – Site class adjusted spectral response coefficient for short periods

S_{M1} – Site class adjusted spectral response coefficient at a period of 1 second

- S_s Mapped spectral response acceleration parameter for short periods
- S₁ Mapped spectral response acceleration parameter for periods of 1 second
- T Fundamental building period
- T_a Approximate fundamental building period
- T_L Long-period transition period
- t-Wall thickness of HSS
- V-Base Shear
- V_e Elastic seismic force
- V_s Design seismic force

Vub - Required axial force on beam to gusset connection

Vuc - Required shear force on column to gusset connection

V_y – Actual seismic force

W - Effective seismic weight

w_i, w_x - Portion of effective seismic weight at level i, x

- Z Plastic section modulus about the axis of bending
- λ Slenderness parameter
- λ_{md} Limiting slenderness parameter for moderately ductile compactness
- λ_{hd} Limiting slenderness parameter for highly ductile compactness
- $\rho-Redundancy\ factor$
- Ω_o System overstrength factor

Acknowledgements

Thank you to all of my teachers, professors, and mentors who have inspired me through the duration of my educational career. Thank you also to my committee members, Jim Goddard and Ray Yunk, P.E., LEED A.P. Special thanks to my major professor, Kimberly Kramer, P.E., S.E., who has provided invaluable guidance, academically, personally, and professionally, throughout my time at K-State.

Dedication

This report is dedicated to those that have made my education possible: my parents Ron and Mary Kay Grusenmeyer. Thank you for always supporting me. This report is also dedicated to my future wife, Emily Riley, who is my constant encourager.

Chapter 1 - Introduction

Brace frames are a common vertical lateral force resisting system (LFRS) used in steel structures with four main variations which provide varying levels of seismic performance. This report includes a design comparison of two of these systems - ordinary concentric brace frames and special concentric brace frames. Ordinary concentric brace frames are the least seismically robust brace frame system with the least stringent design and detailing requirements. Ordinary concentric brace frames are therefore common in low seismic risk regions. Special concentric brace frames are significantly more seismically robust with very stringent requirements for their design. This report begins with a discussion of the loading conditions, brace performance, and brace frame component design and detailing requirements. Finally, a comparison of the two different brace frame system designs for a two story office building is presented. Design calculations are presented for each of the two designs.

Chapter 2 - Scope of Research

This report discusses and compares the designs of ordinary concentric brace frames (OCBF) and special concentric brace frames (SCBF). The comparison is based on the frame design for a two story office building located in Henderson, NV. This location was chosen because of its moderately high seismicity. The building height is limited to 35 feet to comply with height limitations for OCBFs in seismic design category "D" according to the American Society of Civil Engineers' *Minimum Design Loads for Building and Other Structures* (ASCE 7-10). The building is 120 feet long and 75 feet wide in plan consisting of four longitudinal bays and three transverse bays. The building has a symmetrical floor plan, thus stairs and elevators are assumed to be located outside the rectangular footprint. Refer to Figure 2-1 for plans.



Figure 2-1: Building Framing Plan

The roof is assumed to be a flexible diaphragm consisting of metal deck. The second floor is a rigid diaphragm consisting of 1.0C 20 gauge metal deck with 3 1/2" of concrete topping; total floor thickness is 4 1/2". The floor-to-floor heights are 16 feet and the building has a parapet extending 3 feet above the roof level. Four brace frames are used: one on each side of the building. Refer to Figures 2-2 and 2-3 for elevations. The building envelope is a non-structural curtain wall system.



Figure 2-2: Longitudinal Building Elevation



Figure 2-3: Transverse Building Elevation

Seismic ground motion parameters were determined using United States Geological Survey (USGS) *Seismic Hazard Curves and Uniform Hazard Response Spectra v5.1.0.* Geographic coordinates within the City of Henderson, NV were used. Soil conditions are not known because a specific location in Henderson, NV was not chosen and a geotechnical report was not used. Therefore a site class "D" is reasonably assumed for this building to determine the ground motion criteria.

The LFRS for the parametric study has been designed for a OCBF system and a SCBF system. The report details the design of braces, columns, and beams in addition to connections between the elements. The designs adhere to the requirements provided in the American Institute of Steel Construction 360-10: *Specification for Structural Steel Buildings (AISC Specification)* and the American Institute of Steel Construction 341-10: *Seismic Provisions for Structural Steel Buildings (AISC Specification)* as well as loading conditions provided by ASCE 7-10.

Chapter 3 - Building Loads

The first step in any structural design is the determination and establishment of applied building loads. This report does not cover the design of all structural systems within a building, but rather focuses on the main LFRS. Therefore, seismic forces are the primary discussion in this report. Seismic lateral loads are the most critical loads considered in the design of concentric brace frames. However, members within a brace frame, specifically columns and beams, must also carry gravity loads and it is critical to consider all load effects on each individual member. This report discusses the gravity and lateral loads, and seismic loads in greater detail. See Appendix B for the load calculations for the parametric study.

Gravity Loads

Typical office construction is assumed for the parametric study to establish reasonable dead loads for the structure. Seismic loads are directly proportional to the building dead load. Therefore, light-weight buildings are advantageous in high seismic regions, and steel structures are light compared to reinforced concrete counterparts. Live loads and snow loads generally do not affect seismic loads. However, according to ASCE 7-10 a portion of live loads must be included in seismic weight for storage areas and office partitions. Similarly, a portion of the snow loads must be included in seismic weight if the flat roof snow load exceeds 30psf. The following is a summary of the loads considered for the example office building.

Dead Loads

Dead loads consist of the weight of all permanent components and materials of a building including structural members, architectural finishes, and fixed equipment. The roof dead load includes 2" rigid insulation, 1.5B 20 gauge metal deck, open web steel joist framing, suspended acoustic ceiling system, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, and miscellaneous loads. The elevated second floor dead load includes 1.0C 20 gauge metal deck with 3-1/2" of normal weight concrete topping, steel floor framing, suspended acoustic ceiling system, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, and miscellaneous loads. The dead loads for the parametric study are summarized in Table 3.1.

5

Roof Dead Load=	18 psf
2 nd Floor Dead Load=	50 psf
Curtain Wall Dead Load=	15 psf

Table 3-1: Dead Loads

Live Loads

Both roof live loads and floor live loads must be considered in design. Roof live loads for an office building are induced during maintenance by workers, equipment, and related materials. Floor live loads in office buildings account for loads due to building occupancy. These loads are not constant for the life of the structure. Office space and corridors have different live loads, as specified by the ASCE 7-10. However, the floor plan of an office is likely to change over time so the highest load is applied to the entire floor for this report. The ASCE 7-10 also has special provisions for partition wall loads in office buildings to account for rearrangement of partition walls, and a portion of this load is accounted for in the seismic weight. The partition load was added to the office space live load. Then, the total office live load was compared to the corridor live load and the larger load was used. The live loads for the parametric study are summarized in Table 3-2. Live load reductions are applicable for structural members carrying live loads. This reduction, in accordance with the ASCE 7-10 Section 4.7, can result in reduced member sizes. Because live load reduction depends on tributary area, members with large tributary areas are affected most significantly. Therefore, for this report, live loads were reduced only for columns.

Table 3-2: Live Loads

Roof Live Load, L _r =	20 psf
2^{nd} Floor Live Load, L=	80 psf

Snow Loads

High snow loads can affect the seismic weight of a building and consequently the seismic base shear. Of course, gravity load carrying members will be affected by the direct load applied by snow. Snow loads are dependent on location and are related to historical snowfall for the area. For the parametric study, a ground snow load of 5psf was used. Snow drifts must also be determined according to the ASCE 7-10. The flat roof snow load and drift load for the parametric study are summarized in Table 3-3. To simplify calculations the maximum drift load was applied to the entire roof. Ultimate loads calculated using the load combinations in Section 2.3

Wind Loads

Even in high seismic areas wind loads must be calculated to ensure that seismic forces govern the design of the main lateral force resisting system. Wind loads are the result of wind pressures acting on the surfaces of a structure, either toward or away from the surface. Wind loads depend on several factors including design wind speed, terrain, topography, and building shape. For the parametric study wind load calculations followed the directional procedure. The MLFRS is typically designed to perform within the elastic range for the maximum expected wind event, unlike MLFRS design for seismic loads. The total wind base shear is each direction must be compared to the seismic base shear. Because the ASCE 7-10 now calculates wind loads at strength levels, the two base shears can be compared without factoring the forces. Even in higher seismic regions it is possible for wind to govern the lateral design depending on the building parameters.

Seismic Loads

Seismic loads must be evaluated with one of three analysis methods prescribed by the ASCE 7-10 in Table 12.6-1; these include the equivalent lateral force procedure (ELFP), modal response analysis, and seismic response history analysis. This report uses the ELFP, which is outlined specifically in Section 12.8 of the ASCE 7-10. The ELFP provides a simplified method of calculating the total seismic lateral force, base shear, and the vertical distribution of that force (ASCE 7-10, 2010). This procedure is a common analysis method for this type and size of building. The ELFP depends on criteria from two primary sources: seismic ground motion and structure specific design coefficients and factors.

Seismic Ground Motion

ASCE 7, as referenced by the International Building Code (IBC), provides two spectral accelerations to describe seismic ground motion for a given location. The parameters, S_s and S_1 ,

represent risk targeted maximum considered earthquake (MCE) spectral response ground acceleration parameters for 0.2 and 1 second periods, respectively. They are determined based on maps from the USGS. These values are characteristics of the maximum considered earthquake, which has an assumed recurrence period of 2,500 years. S_S and S_1 are modified based on the site classification by site coefficients, F_a and F_v , to calculate the site class adjusted spectral response coefficients S_{MS} and S_{M1} .

$$S_{MS} = F_a S_s$$
 (ASCE 7-10 Eqn 11.4-1)
 $S_{M1} = F_v S_1$ (ASCE 7-10 Eqn 11.4-2)

The S_{MS} and S_{M1} parameters are further reduced by 2/3 to provide a safety factor for collapse of 1.5.

$$S_{DS} = \frac{2}{3} S_{MS}$$
 (ASCE 7-10 Eqn 11.4-3)
 $S_{D1} = \frac{2}{3} S_{M1}$ (ASCE 7-10 Eqn 11.4-4)

The final ground motions, S_{DS} and S_{D1} , are then used to calculate seismic force using the ELFP (Nikolaou, 2008).

Site Classification

Building sites are classified A through F, with A classifications representing hard rock and F classification representing weak soils (Nikolaou, 2008). Requirements for site classification are prescribed in detail in Chapter 20 of ASCE 7-10. For the parametric study, site class D is assumed, which is a reasonably conservative assumption for unknown soil conditions. Sites classified as F require a site specific analysis to determine ground motion criteria.

Seismic Design Category

ASCE 7-10 requires that a structure be classified based on the design seismic ground motion and the building risk category. Buildings, like site classifications, are categorized A to F with Seismic Design Category (SDC) A representing the least seismic impact on structural design. The SDC is used to determine the level of seismic resistance a structure must have. Structural analysis methods, allowable structural systems, height limitations, detailing requirements, and other related requirements are all determined based, in part, by a building's SDC (Nikolaou, 2008). The SDC is based on the spectral response accelerations and the building risk category according to ASCE 7-10 Tables 11.6-1 and 11.6-2.

Design Coefficients and Factors

Seismic forces are complex and largely unknown, yet engineers must design structures to safely resist these forces. Building response to seismic forces is difficult to quantify and much of the data is generated from historical successes and failures (SEAOC Seismology Committee, 2009). This history, along with seismic building theory reinforced with research and testing, provides sound evidence that a safe structure can be designed using only a portion of the elastic seismic design forces. The basis of this design theory is that every structure has inherent ductility to some degree, and that ductility is a mechanism through which seismic energy is absorbed. This relationship is illustrated in Figure 3-1 by an inelastic force-deformation curve. When seismic forces act on a building the structure initially responds in an elastic manner. The structure enters the inelastic range as the force increases. Plastic hinges begin to form throughout the structure until the system yield strength, V_y, is reached (SEAOC Seismology Committee, 2008).

The ELFP uses a linear elastic analysis which is much simpler than an inelastic analysis. This design procedure assumes that the structure will experience permanent deformations during an extreme seismic event. This method also results in a more cost effective structure than one designed using the full elastic seismic design force, which would not account for the structure's inherent ductility. It is that deformation, or ductility, that reduces the seismic force. The ASCE 7-10 uses three coefficients and factors to describe a structure's response to seismic forces: the response modification coefficient, *R*, system overstrength factor, Ω_o , and deflection amplification factor, C_d (SEAOC Seismology Committee, 2008). These factors vary based on the type of LFRS selected. See Table 3-3 for a summary of values for OCBF and SCBF systems.

	OCBF	SCBF
R	3.25	6.0
Ωο	2.0	2.0
C _d	3.25	5.0

Table 3-3: Design Coefficients and Factors



Figure 3-1: Inelastic Force-Deformation Curve

Response Modification Coefficient

The response modification factor, R, is a simplified numeric description of a seismic force resisting system's inherent ductility. This coefficient is alone responsible for reducing elastic seismic force, V_e , to the design seismic force level, V_s . The structural system must provide the specified ductility as expressed by its R value to ensure that the structure performs as predicted beyond the elastic limit, V_s (SEAOC Seismology Committee, 2008). In the case of a brace frame, this is accomplished by adhering to the requirements set forth in the AISC 341-10. As the R value of a structural system increases so does its propensity for ductile behavior and energy dissipation (SEAOC Seismology Committee, 2009).

Deflection Amplification Factor

The deflection amplification factor, C_d , is used to determine the predicted total deformation experienced beyond the elastic deformation experienced at V_e . For lateral force resisting systems, deformation is commonly expressed as story drift, or the difference in absolute deflections between floors. The ultimate story drift, D_u , is calculated by multiplying the story drift, D_u , by C_d (SEAOC Seismology Committee, 2008). D_u is the story drift corresponding to the design seismic force and is calculated in accordance with the ASCE 7-10 Sections 12.8.6, 12.9.2 or 16.1. Story drift limits are established to prevent large inelastic strains in the LFRS and to preserve structural stability. Drift limits also prevent non-structural damage from more frequent but smaller earthquakes (*AISC Seismic Manual*, 2005).

The deflection amplification factor is related to the response modification coefficient and it similarly describes system ductility. Lateral systems high C_d values have higher ductility (SEAOC Seismology Committee, 2008). Like response modification coefficients, the deflection amplification factor allows for simplified calculation of the drift of an inelastic structure using an elastic analysis.

Overstrength Factor

To ensure that a structural system performs as intended under seismic loading, some members must be designed to sustain the full, or actual, seismic force, V_y , as adjacent members yield. These members are referred to as force-controlled members. The design seismic force can be modified by the overstrength factor to calculate the V_y (SEAOC Seismology Committee, 2008). According to FEMA 450: *NEHRP Recommended Provisions* commentary, the overstrength factor, Ω_o , is described by three system specific criteria: design overstrength, material overstrength, and system overstrength. Design overstrength is directly related to a structural system's ductility and site-specific ground motion criteria. Material overstrength reflects that actual material strengths exceed nominal design material strengths. For example, A992 steel has a minimum yield strength of 50ksi. However, the actual yield strength typically exceeds the 50 ksi minimum. System overstrength describes structural system redundancy. For example, a LRFS consisted of a single brace frame and the brace yielded, the system would be fully yielded, assuming the system was perfectly optimized. However, if the LFRS consisted of multiple frames, even if all the frames were required to meet the design, it would have some inherent overstrength. Additionally, system overstrength is affected by the optimization of the LFRS design. The closer the design is to matching the applied forces, the lower the system overstrength will be. All three of these overstrength criteria are accounted for in Ω_0 as a single value which is used to modify the design elastic seismic force (*NEHRP Recommended Provisions*, 2003).

Seismic Design Force

Using the ELFP, seismic forces are determined by distributing the total seismic base shear force among each of the building's levels. The seismic base shear, V, is calculated by multiplying the effective seismic weight, W, by the seismic response coefficient, C_s .

 $V = C_s W$ (ASCE 7-10 Eqn 12.8-1) The ELFP is outlined in ASCE 7-10 Section 12.8.

Effective Seismic Weight

The effective seismic weight is defined by ASCE 7-10 Section 12.7.2 as the total building dead load in addition to other specialized loading conditions that could be present. For storage areas, at least 25 percent of the floor live load must be included in the effective seismic weight. If partition floor loads are required by Section 4.2.2, a minimum weight of 10 psf must be included. The operating weight of permanent equipment must be added. If the flat roof snow load is greater than 30 psf, then 20 percent of that snow load must be added to the seismic weight.

Seismic Response Coefficient

According to ASCE 7-10 Section 12.8.1.1, the seismic response coefficient, C_s , depends on the response modification factor, the short period design spectral response acceleration parameter, and the building importance factor. Thus, C_s ultimately describes the acceleration applied to the building's mass.

$$C_s = \frac{S_{DS}}{\left(\frac{R}{I_e}\right)}$$
(ASCE 7-10 Eqn 12.8-2)

Section 12.8.1.1 also establishes maximum and minimum values for C_s . The maximum Cs values depend on the fundamental period, T, of the building compared with the site-specific long-period transition period, T_L . The value of C_s calculated using Equation 12.8-2 does not need to exceed the values calculated by Equations 12.8-3 or 12.8-4, whichever is applicable.

$$C_{s-max} = \frac{S_{D1}}{T\left(\frac{R}{I_e}\right)} \text{ for } T \le T_L$$
(12.8-3)

$$C_{s-max} = \frac{S_{D1}T_L}{T^2\left(\frac{R}{I_{\rho}}\right)} \text{ for } T > T_L \tag{12.8-4}$$

However, C_s must not be less than the value determined by Equation 12.8-5, unless the value of S_1 is greater than 0.6g, in which case C_s must exceed the value determined by Equation 12.8-6.

$$C_{s-min} = 0.044 S_{DS} I_e \ge 0.01$$
 (ASCE 7-10 Eqn 12.8-5)

$$C_{s-min} = \frac{0.5S_1}{\left(\frac{R}{I_e}\right)} I_e \ge 0.01$$
 (ASCE 7-10 Eqn 12.8-6)

Building Period

The fundamental period, T, of a structure is determined according to ASCE 7-10 Section 12.8.2. This section requires an analysis to be performed to determine the period. Alternatively, Section 12.8.2.1 provides an approximate method for determining the building period by using Equation 12.8-7. The approximate period calculation depends on two parameters, Ct and x, that are related to the LFRS, and the height from ground level to the highest main diaphragm. The values of C_t and x are tabulated in Table 12.8-2 and h_n is the height of the highest level of the structure above the base.

$$T_a = C_t h_n^x \qquad (ASCE 7-10 \text{ Eqn } 12.8-7)$$

For OCBFs and SCBFs: $C_t = 0.02$ and $x = 0.75$

In determining the maximum building response coefficient, C_{s-max} , the fundamental building period, T or T_a , is compared to the long-period transition period, T_L . T_L is determined from maps in ASCE 7-10 Chapter 22.

Distribution of Seismic Forces

In Section 12.8.3 the ASCE 7-10 specifies how the total seismic base shear is to be distributed among the levels of the structure. The distribution depends on the seismic weight and height of each level. Heavier levels attract higher forces than lighter levels. Higher levels generate higher forces than lower levels. The seismic base shear is multiplied by a given level's vertical distribution factor, C_{vx} , to determine the lateral seismic force, F_x , at a given level according to Equation 12.8-11. C_{vx} is the ratio of the product of the given level's seismic weight and height and the sum of the products of the seismic weights and heights of each level

according to Equation 12.8-12. The value, k, in Equation 12.8-12 is an exponent related to the building period.

$$F_{x} = C_{vx}V$$
 (ASCE 7-10 Eqn 12.8-11)
$$C_{vx} = \frac{w_{x}h_{x}^{k}}{\sum_{i=1}^{n} w_{i}h_{i}^{k}}$$
 (ASCE 7-10 Eqn 12.8-12)

Torsion Forces

Diaphragms that are not flexible can induce a moment-couple when the diaphragm's center-of-mass and center-of-rigidity are not aligned. An eccentricity exists resulting in a moment equal to the seismic force multiplied by the distance between the two centers. A variety of irregularities detailed in ASCE 7-10 Section 12.3 can result in inherent torsion described in Section 12.8.4.2. However, even without obvious irregularities ASCE 7-10 Section 12.8.4.2 requires that accidental torsion be accounted for in design. The accidental torsion moment is calculated with an eccentricity equal to 5 percent of the building dimension perpendicular to the direction of the applied force. Accidental torsion must be examined for both the longitudinal and transverse building dimensions. It is important to account for accidental torsion because the actual center of mass of any building will likely differ from the assumed design center of mass, resulting in additional torsion loads that would not have otherwise been accounted for.

Chapter 4 - Ordinary Concentrically Braced Frame Member Design

Concentrically braced frames are LFRS that use axially loaded members to transfer lateral forces to the foundation. The brace members rely on axial strength, in both tension and compression, and stiffness to resist the applied axial loads. As illustrated in Figure 4-1, the braces within a frame are laid out such that the centerlines of the braces, columns, and beams intersect at their points of connection, unlike eccentrically braced frame. Lateral forces are transferred through floor and roof diaphragms at every level, and ideally, braced frames are stacked vertically between building levels to provide a clear load path to the foundation.



Figure 4-1: Intersection of Member Centerlines

Braced frames can be laid out in a variety of ways. The most commonly used concentrically braced frame layouts are V, Inverted V, X, and K as illustrated in Figure 4-2. Each layout has particular advantages and disadvantages for design, structural performance, fabrications, and construction. However, they all function similarly. This report focuses on the design of braced frames with inverted-V brace layouts. Inverted-V brace frames were selected because they can allow for openings such as doors at the first floor and they have similar connections at each level. Inverted-V brace frames were also chosen for this report to explore the additional requirements imposed on such frame layouts.



Ordinary concentrically braced frames are very similar in layout to special concentrically braced frames. However, the *AISC Seismic Provisions* have much more restrictive requirements for SCBF. These requirements ensure that SCBFs have higher ductility, allowing more plastic hinges to form as the frame is pushed into the inelastic range, as illustrated in Figure 3-1. OCBFs have relatively few special seismic requirements and are thus simpler to design, detail, fabricate, and install. However, the inelastic behavior of OCBFs is unpredictable, and as a result the system has a low response modification coefficient of 3.5. Therefore, the OCBF system must be designed for higher seismic forces than a SCBF because it must perform elastically during the designed seismic event. Aside from a few limitations specified by the *AISC Seismic Provisions*, all of the components of an ordinary brace frame are designed using steel design procedures outlined in the *AISC Specification*. According to the ASCE 7-10, the use of OCBFs is limited to building heights less than 35 feet because of their lack of ductility and overall seismic robustness. Their use is ideal for smaller buildings or buildings with low seismic design requirements.

Analysis

Structural analysis of the parametric study was performed using RISA-2D computer analysis software. A simple two-dimensional frame consisting only of the bay in which the OCBF is located. Gravity loads were calculated and applied to the frame to represent the loads from adjacent framing. The seismic lateral forces were applied at each level as point loads representing the full seismic load for that side of the building. The base reactions of the frame were checked by hand calculation using simple statics considering overturning of the frame. Both seismic load combinations 5 and 7 were used as prescribed in Section 12.4.2.3 in the ASCE 7-10.

> Load Combination 5: $(1.2 + 0.2S_{DS})D + \rho Q_E + L + .2S$ Load Combination 7: $(0.9 - 0.2S_{DS})D + \rho Q_E$

Member forces for the braces and columns were then used for member design. Beam forces, as discussed later, are specified in detail by the *AISC Seismic Provisions* due to the inverted-V layout of the braces. See Appendix C for all OCBF member design calculations.

Brace Design

Braces are the primary member within a braced frame for the transfer of lateral forces. They resist applied loads in pure axial tension or compression. Once the loads had been determined the member design commenced. For the parametric study, round HSS members were used for the braces. First member stability requirements, such as slenderness and local buckling, were established then the strengths of the selected member were calculated.

Slenderness

Typically, a brace must meet the slenderness criteria provided by the *AISC Specification* in Chapter E. However, because the inverted V brace layout is used for the parametric study, the braces must meet more stringent slenderness requirements specified by the Seismic Provisions. Section F1.5.5b requires that braces in inverted-V configurations meet the following slenderness limit:

$$\frac{KL}{r} \le 4\sqrt{\frac{E}{F_{\mathcal{Y}}}}$$
 Eqn 4-1

Braces are assumed to be pinned at both ends, where member translation is fixed but member rotation is free. Thus K, the effective length factor, is equal to 1.0.

During the cyclic loading of a seismic event, a brace can buckle in compression resulting in a significant loss of strength. In the inverted-V layout this results in an unbalanced load on the beam because the tension brace will yield at an increased strength. Figure 4-3 illustrates the unbalanced load where P_1 is the buckled compression strength of the brace and P_2 is the expected tension strength. To help prevent the unbalanced load from occurring, the more stringent slenderness limit is used. This limit is not applied to X-braced frames because an unbalanced load is not applied to the beam (*AISC Seismic Provisions*).



Figure 4-3: Unbalanced Load Due to Inverted-V Brace Layout

For the parametric study, the slenderness criterion was critical in selection of the brace member. The slenderness limit provided by the *AISC Seismic Provisions* is significantly less than that provided by the *AISC Specification*. The result, however, is a brace that performs better under compressive loads. For the brace length of approximately 22 feet, a radius of gyration value, r, of at least 2.51 was required to meet the stringent slenderness criteria.

Local Buckling

Like all compression members, braces must have cross-sections of sufficient dimensions to prevent local deformations detrimental to global member strength. For a seismic lateral force resisting system this is especially critical due to the cyclic nature of the load such that the brace experiences tension and compression. Furthermore, a brace that buckles locally under a compressive load experiences a significant degradation of strength. Therefore, the *AISC Seismic Provisions* exceed the compactness, or width-to-thickness ratio, requirements of the *AISC Specification*. The differences in limiting width-to-thickness ratios of the two codes depend on the shape used. For example, the *AISC Specification* requires compact round HSS members to meet the following compact limit:

$$\lambda_p = 0.07 \frac{E}{F_v}$$
 (Equation from AISC 360-10 Table B4.1)

This limit is 60 percent higher than that provided by the *AISC Seismic Provisions* for moderately ductile member, as shown in the equation below. The latest *AISC Seismic Provisions* (AISC 341-10) have two categories of seismic compactness limits: λ_{md} for moderately ductile members and λ_{hd} for highly ductile members. The moderately ductile member limits basically match those provided by *AISC Specification* Table B4.1 with a few exceptions. The *AISC Seismic Provisions* define member ductility designations for components within the lateral force resisting system. For an OCBF, the brace is required to be moderately ductile but is not required to meet the more strict requirements of highly ductile members. Thus, the round HSS brace in this report's parametric study must meet the following requirement from Table D1.1 in the *AISC Seismic Provisions*:

$$\lambda \le \lambda_{md} \div \frac{D}{t} \le .044 \frac{E}{F_y}$$
 (Equation from AISC 341-10 Tbl D1.1)

This limitation can severely affect the use of larger cross-sections. Fewer of the larger cross-section HSS members meet the seismic compactness criteria because the range of manufactured thicknesses, per the ASTM A500 standard, is limited, although work has been done to expand the standard to meet the more stringent Seismic Provision criteria. This issue can greatly affect long braces because the larger brace cross-sections are needed to meet slenderness requirements due to larger radii of gyration. However, the larger cross-sections are also more apt to fail the compactness limits, which prevent undesirable plastic hinges from forming (Lawson, 2010).

The width-to-thickness requirements in the *AISC Seismic Provisions* are a result of observations of the Northridge Earthquake in 1994 and further research. From these results, it has been determined that ductility is dramatically affected by local buckling. Therefore, seismic compactness is more stringent than for general members because local buckling needs to be prevented as the brace is pushed into its inelastic range (Lawson, 2010).

Brace Strength

Once member stability is verified in accordance with the *AISC Seismic Provisions*, the calculation of member strength follows the *AISC Specification* without any additional requirements exceeding the *AISC Specification*. Because the brace, in the inverted-V configuration, already meets the more stringent requirements, it will also meet the criteria for Equation E3-2 in the *AISC Specification* to determine the critical buckling stress of the member:

$$F_{cr} = \left[0.658^{\frac{F_y}{F_e}}\right] F_y \text{ where } F_e \text{ is the elastic critical buckling stress (AISC 360-10 E3-2)}$$

For the parametric study, the brace compression capacity exceeded the applied load because a larger brace was used to meet the slenderness requirements. For taller buildings or buildings in areas with higher seismic activity a brace frame would be required to take larger forces. In this situation the compression strength would likely become the critical factor because the brace length would not change.

The tensile strength of the brace, like its compression strength, follows the procedure prescribed by the *AISC Specification*. Tensile yielding must be calculated and, depending on the layout of the connection, tensile rupture must also be computed to determine the critical tensile strength. For the parametric study the tensile strength greatly exceeded the applied load. However, if a large portion of the gross cross-sectional area were removed the tensile strength could govern the brace design.

Column Design

The design of the columns in an OCBF does not have any special constraints prescribed by the *AISC Seismic Provisions* because they will perform elastically during the MCE. Therefore, the column design, follows the design requirements of the *AISC Specification*. The major difference in design for a column that is part of a brace frame is that additional forces can be imparted to the column depending on the brace layout. For the inverted-V layout of the

20

parametric study, the columns had to resist additional load to resolve the vertical component of the brace force. In other brace layouts, X-braces for example, the vertical component of one brace is resolved by that of the other brace at the connection. Other than the additional force, the column was not drastically affected by being part of the ordinary braced frame system.

Beam Design

Beams in a OCBF must resist the combined effects of bending, compression and shear. For inverted-V brace layouts the *AISC Seismic Provisions* require that unbalanced forces in the braces also be examined because this imbalance must be resolved by an additional load imparted on the beam. The *AISC Seismic Provisions* require that the assumed force in the tension brace is equal to its expected yield strength:

$$P_t = R_y F_y A_g$$
 [Equation from AISC 341-10 Section F1.4a(1)(i)(a)]
For A500 Steel: $R_y = 1.4$

The expected yield strength accounts for material overstrength with the factor R_y as specified in Table A3.1. The yield strength is a minimum specified strength and actual material strengths will be higher. Because the brace will buckle in compression, losing its strength, the force in the compression brace must be assumed to be 30 percent of the compression strength, which represents the residual post-buckling strength of the brace:

 $P_c = 0.3F_{cr}A_g$ [Equation from AISC 341-10 Section F1.4a(1)(ii)] Thus, the axial force imparted on the beam is the sum of the horizontal components of the two specified brace strengths. The most critical load, however, is the load due to the imbalance of the vertical components because only a fraction of the compressive strength can resist the tensile yield strength, which is likely much larger than even the full compressive strength. This vertical load on the beam significantly increases the applied bending moment and shear in addition to the combined effects of compression. The beam is a force-controlled member and must be designed to resist the full elastic seismic load, V_e, as illustrated in Figure 3-1.

The unbalanced load is very large because of high tensile yield strengths. However, the *AISC Seismic Provisions* allow for the smallest of the expected yield strength, the load effect based on the amplified seismic load, or the maximum force that can be developed by the system to be the assumed force in the tension brace. Thus, the tension brace force can be reduced from the expected yield strength if one of the other situations generated a smaller load.

For the parametric study, the floor beam was preliminarily designed using the expected yield strength of the tension brace; the selected beam was a W27x235. The design was refined using the amplified seismic load and the assumed tension force in the brace was reduced significantly; the selected beam was reduced to a W18x86. The large size difference illustrates the effects of designing the frame using the brace capacity instead of the maximum force that is expected to be developed by the system. For the parametric study, the braces were governed by slenderness, and as a result the tensile capacity of the brace was very large. To resist the unbalanced load, the beam would have been very large. X-braced frame layouts avoid the complexity of unbalanced brace forces because tension and compression braces frame into the beam on both the top and the bottom, preventing any force imbalance.

Once the forces in the beams are determined based on analysis and the *AISC Seismic Provisions*, the beam can be designed in accordance with the *AISC Specification*. The beam does must meet the compactness requirements of Table B4.1 in the *AISC Specification* so that Section F2 can be used to determine the flexural strength of the beam. The beam does not need to be seismically compact, because, similar to the columns, the beam will remain elastic during the MCE. Because the beam is subject to combined bending and compression forces, the combined interaction must be checked. For the parametric study the moment portion of the interaction controlled over the compression; this is due to the very large bending force induced by the unbalanced brace load.

The unbalanced brace force on the beam is so large that the same size beam was required for both the floor and roof levels. In other words, the bending loads imparted from gravity loads were negligible compared to the very large unbalanced forces from the braces.

Chapter 5 - Ordinary Concentric Brace Frame Connections

The connections within an OCBF, like the design of the brace, beam, and column members, have relatively few special requirements for seismic design. A large variety of connection layouts are used in brace frames depending on a range of factors. Some of the important factors affecting connection designs include seismic performance requirements, brace frame geometry and member types, fabrication and installation constraints, and material and labor costs. This report focuses on the connections used in the parametric study design for an inverted-V brace frame with round HSS braces and wide flange columns and beams. The scope of this report includes welded connections to allow for easier comparison of the two systems and simplicity of connection layout, although other connection layouts are available. The following is a discussion of general design considerations for OCBF connections and specific applications and results for the parametric study design. See Appendix D for OCBF connection design calculations and detailing.

Design Forces

The only seismic requirement for the design of OCBF connections is the determination of design forces. The *AISC Seismic Provisions* specifies that diagonal brace connections must be designed for the amplified seismic load effect using the overstrength factor, Ω_o . However, the maximum tension force may be the expected yield strength of the brace. The maximum compression force is the smaller of $R_yF_yA_g$ and $1.14F_{cre}A_g$. F_{cre} is the expected critical buckling stress and is taken as F_{cr} in the *AISC Specification* Chapter E with F_y replaced by the expected yield stress, R_yF_y .

Brace-to Gusset Design

At the point of connection of the brace to the gusset plate, an adequate weld is first selected, the gusset plate thickness is determined, and then tensile rupture in the brace is checked. Shear rupture of the brace must also be also checked, but this check was included in the design of the weld.

Brace-to-Gusset Connection

The wall of the HSS brace can only develop a certain amount of load per linear inch before it will fail in shear. Therefore, the capacity of the weld connecting the brace to the gusset plate must not exceed the HSS wall shear capacity of the gusset capacity. The maximum weld size can be determined by setting the shear capacity to the weld strength and solving for the weld size. The number of welds must also be determined and it is determined based on the geometry of the connection. For example, HSS braces are slotted through their center to accept the gusset plate, thus providing four locations for welds, as shown in Figure 5-1. The length of weld required for each of the welds can then be determined based on the ultimate axial load in the brace. For round HSS braces weld lengths must exceed the distance between welds, according to Table D3.1. This may govern the weld length for braces with smaller forces.



Figure 5-1: Net Area of HSS Brace at Gusset Connection

Tensile Rupture of Brace

Shear rupture of the brace has already been checked, however the slot cut in the brace induces shear lag effects. Tensile rupture strength depends on the net cross section, thus the gross cross-sectional area must be reduced by the area of the slot on both sides of the brace to determine the net area, as shown in Figure 5-1. The slot area must also account for erection tolerances, so 1/16" must be added to the gusset plate width on each side. The net area is then multiplied by a shear lag factor, U, as determined by Table D3.1 in the *AISC Specification*. The factor depends on the diameter of the brace and the length of the slot. The tensile rupture strength
can then be calculated. If the strength is not larger than the applied brace force, then cover plates may need to be added or the brace size increased.

Gusset Plate Design

The gusset plates are critical members for resisting the applied forces from the braces and transmitting them to the adjacent members. Gusset plates must meet certain geometric restraints to ensure stable structural behavior. They must also resist shear rupture due to tension and compression buckling.

Shear Rupture

An initial gusset plate thickness is determined by checking shear rupture of the plate along the two intersections with the brace. The applied the load is the maximum brace force and the length of the shear plane equal to the weld length. The minimum plate thickness can then be determined. The plate must be thick enough to develop the fillet welds on both sides of the plate, or twice the min weld thickness specified by the *AISC Specifications*.

Compression Buckling

The strength of gusset plates subject to compression loads can be determined using *AISC* Specification Equation J4-6 for $\frac{KL}{r} \le 25$. This serves as a practical limit for gusset plate design because more complicated design procedures must be followed per *AISC Specification* Chapter E for $\frac{KL}{r} > 25$. A K value is determined based on the fixity at each end of the gusset. The parametric study gusset plate is welded to the brace and the column and the gusset is assumed to be fixed at both ends. Furthermore, because the gusset plate fixities are approximated K was taken to be 0.65. The unbraced length, L, of the gusset plate is also approximated based on the geometry of the connection. The radius of gyration, r, can be calculated based on the plate thickness.

Once the conditions of J4-6 are met, the required area can be determined to resist the applied compression from the brace. The plate thickness is known from previous calculations, so the width is the only unknown. The geometry of the gusset plate must ensure that the Whitmore width is larger than the calculated minimum width.

Whitmore Section

The full width of the gusset plate perpendicular to the load is not necessarily effective in resisting tension or compression due to the force distribution in the steel. Therefore, only the area that is effective in resisting the force should be used in calculations regarding the cross-sectional area of the gusset plate. This area is determined by calculating the Whitmore Section to determine the effective width. The length of the section is equal to the length of the joint. In the case of a welded joint this is the length of the weld. For bolts the length is equal to the center to center distance between the first and last bolts. The width of the Whitmore Section is defined by a two lines projected from the either side of the start of the joint at a 30° angle. The width is measured between the points of intersection of the end of the joint and the projected line. Examples of the Whitmore section for both a bolted and a welded connection are shown in Figure 5-2, where the dashed lines indicate the limits of the Whitmore section. The Whitmore section is allowed to extend into adjacent connected members, but the section may not extend beyond an unconnected edge. To simplify connection design for the parametric study, the geometry of the Whitmore Section was chosen such that the section was wholly contained by the gusset plate alone.



Figure 5-2: Whitmore Section

Gusset-to-Beam Connection

Two types of gusset-to-beam connections are used in an inverted-V brace frame. The first occurs at the beam connection to the column, and the second occurs at the mid-span of the beam

at the intersection of both braces. The forces at the interaction plane between the gusset and beam are determined using the uniform force method outlined in Chapter 13 of the *AISC Steel Construction Manual*. Both vertical and horizontal forces are applied to the beam by the gusset and the weld must be designed for that interaction. Additionally, the following limit states must be checked at the gusset-to-beam weld: gusset plate rupture, gusset plate yielding, beam web local yielding, and beam web crippling.

Gusset-to-Beam Weld

The gusset-to-beam weld must be designed for the interaction of both the horizontal and vertical components of the applied force, V_{ub} and H_{ub} respectively. First, the load angle must be determined, which is the angle, Θ , formed by the result force relative to the long axis of the weld.

$$\Theta = tan^{-1} \left(\frac{V_{ub}}{H_{ub}} \right)$$
 Eqn 5-1

The strength of the fillet weld, Φr_n , in resisting the applied load at angle Θ is determined by the *AISC Specification* Equations J2-4 and J2-5. The weld is sized to resist the resultant of the maximum shear and tensile load applied by the gusset plate.

Gusset Shear Rupture and Yielding

The gusset plate has already been checked for the limit states of shear rupture, shear yielding, and tension yielding for the connection to the brace. However, because the welds are different at the beam, these limits state must be checked again. These checks are simplified because the net area is equal to the gross area of the plate. Therefore, shear rupture is the governing limit state.

Web Local Yielding and Beam Web Crippling

The forces to the beam from the uniform force method are shear and axial forces only. The beam must be checked to ensure that web stability is maintained. For tension loads applied to the beam web, local yielding is a critical failure mode. For web local yielding, the most critical location is near the end of the beam, as the beams resistance to web yielding is lowest nearest the beam ends. However, web local yielding must be checked regardless where the tensile load is applied. *AISC Specification* Section J10.2 provides equations to determine the yielding strength.

When the brace force applied is compression, web crippling is a critical limit state. *AISC Specification* Section J10.3 provides equations to determine the crippling strength. If the beam does not have enough capacity in either web local yielding or web crippling, transverse stiffener plates can be added to the beam web.

Gusset-to-Column Connection

The gusset-to-column connection follows the same procedure as the gusset-to-beam connection. First the forces must be determined from the uniform forces method. Although the design procedure is the same for both the gusset connections to the beam and column, the applied forces at the two locations likely differ in magnitude. However, both connection locations must handle vertical and horizontal components of force. From those forces the gusset-to-column weld can be sized. Then, shear rupture, shear yielding, and tension yielding must be checked. The column web, since the column experiences a horizontal load, must be checked for web local yielding and web crippling. See the gusset-to-beam connection discussion for more information regarding the aforementioned limit states.

Beam-to-Column Connection

The beam-to-column connection must be designed for both the gravity loads applied to the beam and the vertical and horizontal components of the brace force. According to the AISC Seismic Provisions, the beams in an inverted-V brace frame must be continuous between columns. Therefore, connections using a beam stub shop welded to the column are not permitted. Beams in this type of frame layout are critical because they must resolve the force imbalance cause by brace buckling.

Chapter 6 - Special Concentric Brace Frame Member Design

Special Concentric Brace Frame components must adhere to stringent criteria set forth by the *AISC Seismic Provisions*. For member design, the goals of the Provisions are to ensure robust seismic performance, provide design flexibility by providing standards that cover a variety of member types and configurations, ensure stable post-elastic behavior (Roeder & Lehman 2008). First, the *AISC Seismic Provisions* specifically define the analysis procedures that must be performed. SCBF's are designed based on elastic analysis, but the frame's post-elastic behavior is of primary importance. The analysis requirements account for the inelastic behavior of the frame.

SCBF's differ from OCBF's in their unique and strict requirements that result in stable ductile behavior of the seismic lateral system. During a large seismic event, braces experience cyclic loading in compression and tension. For braces experiencing compression, the desired failure mode is buckling with the formation of plastic hinges, similar to beam plastic hinges in a moment frame system. For braces in tension, tension yielding is the desired ductile failure mode. To ensure that these two failure modes are the governing limit state, other frame components must be designed and detailed properly. In a severe earthquake, the braces may fail but the integrity of the columns and beams must be maintained.

SCBF Analysis

For the design of the braces themselves, an analysis must be performed in accordance to ASCE 7-10. This simple analysis assumes elastic behavior of the frame. However, for the design of other members in the frame, an analysis must account for the actual strengths of the braces and the vastly different performance of braces acting in tension and braces acting in compression. Thus, the *AISC Seismic Provisions* specify the following two analyses to examine this differing behavior:

- i) All braces in the frame are assumed to resist forces equal to their expected yield strengths in tension or compression.
- ii) All braces acting in tension are assumed to resist forces equal to their expected strength and all braces acting in compression are assumed to resist forces equal to their expected post-buckling strength.

Performing both analyses is critical in determining the maximum possible forces a particular member in the SCBF must resist. For example, in the inverted-V brace configuration of the parametric study, the beam design is governed by unbalanced forces induced from brace buckling. See Appendix E for all SCBF member design calculations.

Brace Design

Braces are the primary means of lateral force resistance and energy dissipation within a SCBF. As such, their ductility is critical to the performance of the whole system. A major cause of brittle failures in braces is buckling of the member. When a brace buckles, a plastic hinge is formed at the midpoint of the member. At this location, local buckling occurs resulting in increased material strain and fracture. This undesirable behavior is prevented by using a more compact member; increased compactness results in increased ductility of the brace. Due to the importance of preventing local buckling, the *AISC Seismic Provisions* require that braces meet the strictest local slenderness criteria as "highly ductile" members, as prescribed by Chapter D. For the round HSS braces in the parametric study, the limiting width-to-thickness ratio was as follows:

Comparatively, the limiting width-to-thickness ratio for moderately ductile members, as in the OCBF is:

$$\lambda_{md} = 0.044 \frac{E}{F_y}$$
 Eqn 6-2

So, because the SCBF braces are more compact they exhibit improved ductility.

Global buckling is a favorable failure mode because the plastic hinges that form help dissipate seismic energy. Furthermore, research has shown that increasing the slenderness ratio of the brace increases its post-buckling strength when subjected to cyclic loading. The upper limit of 200 is provided to prevent detrimental effects of dynamic brace behavior for members with very high slenderness ratios. Because OCBFs are assumed to perform within the elastic range, brace buckling is undesirably and the brace slenderness ratios are decreased accordingly.

Net section rupture of the brace is also a critical limit state. For brace members with reduced cross-sections, this failure mode can govern resulting in reduced member ductility. To prevent this, the *AISC Seismic Provisions* require that a brace's net area at least equal the gross

area. Many connections rely on slots being cut into the brace. These braces must be reinforced to increase the net area effective in resisting rupture at the brace end. Requirements for the reinforcement are also provided by the *AISC Seismic Provisions*.

Column Design

Columns are especially critical members because their failure can preempt progressive collapse of the surrounding structure. Preservation of columns is, therefore, an important goal of the *AISC Seismic Provisions*. It follows that columns must be designed based on amplified seismic loads. Additionally, the load effects of brace overstrength (the two analyses discussed previously) and brace buckling must also be considered in accordance with the Provisions. In some cases it is not possible for the brace frame system to develop the load according to the analysis. In these cases, the columns could be unnecessarily oversized for forces they will never actually experience. For these cases, the *AISC Seismic Provisions* supply the following three exceptions which establish maximum required strengths of columns:

- Column forces determined from an analysis with load combinations using amplified seismic forces on a frame without using any compression braces
- 2) Column forces at the point of foundation failure due to overturning
- Column forces from a nonlinear analysis per Section C3 of the AISC Seismic Provisions

These exceptions allow for more economical design while ensuring adequate strength.

Another added protection for columns is in local slenderness limits. Brace frame columns must meet the same criteria as braces, meeting the strictest standards for highly ductile members. The reason for this is to ensure that the column can withstand significant rotations due to story drift and are also capable of maintaining significant flexural strength. Research has shown that these two factors significantly affect the global stability and performance of the brace frame. The limiting width-to-thickness ratio for column flanges as a highly ductile member is the following:

$$\lambda_{hd} = 0.30 \sqrt{\frac{E}{F_y}}$$
 Eqn 6-3

For W-shaped members, web compactness is also dependent on C_a , the ratio of the ultimate axial beam load to the axial beam strength. This provision allows for variance in required compactness

for member with small axial loads compared to their strength. The limiting width-to-thickness ratio for column webs as a highly ductile member is the following:

For
$$C_a \le 0.125$$
, $\lambda_{hd} = 2.45 \sqrt{\frac{E}{F_y} (1 - 0.93C_a)}$ Eqn 6-4

For
$$C_a > 0.125$$
, $\lambda_{hd} = 0.77 \sqrt{\frac{E}{F_y}} (2.93 - C_a) \ge 1.49 \sqrt{\frac{E}{F_y}}$ Eqn 6-5

Because of the importance of column strength and stability in a brace frame, column splices must also be carefully designed and detailed. Although column splices are beyond the scope of this report, for taller buildings they are necessary. The detailing requirements as well as strength requirements are provided by *AISC Seismic Provisions* in Section F3.6d.

Beam Design

For inverted-V braced SCBFs, beam design is of particular concern for the same reasons as in an OCBF. The unbalanced force occurring on the beam due to brace buckling is an important consideration because of the assumed behavior of a SCBF. As the force on the frame increases, the brace in compression buckles and its strength decreases dramatically. As the compression brace strength decreases, the tension brace must resist a higher load, which increases until yielding of the brace. This is a favorable combined failure mode, buckling and tension yielding, in which the SCBF achieves its ductility and subsequent energy dissipation. To ensure that this behavior occurs before failure of other part of the frame, the beam must be designed with sufficient strength to resist the unbalanced brace load. It follows that the beam connections must also be capable of resisting the unbalanced load.

Lateral-torsional buckling can significantly reduce the capacity of the beam, especially due to the large unbalanced load occurring at the beam midpoint. Therefore, the *AISC Seismic Provisions* prevent lateral-torsional buckling from becoming a governing limit state by requiring intermediate lateral braces at the brace intersection location. However, an exception to this requirement is provided if the beam has "sufficient out-of-plane strength and stiffness to ensure stability between adjacent brace points" according to the *AISC Seismic Provisions*. *AISC Specification* Appendix 6 provides a method for determining lateral bracing required strengths. If intermediate beam frame into the SCBF beam they will likely provide sufficient brace strength. In the absence of secondary framing, the SCBF beam must be provided with other bracing.

Alternatively, Appendix 6 can be used to verify that the beam itself has enough inherent strength and stiffness to be stable without bracing per the Provision exception.

Ductility of the beam, like columns and braces, is important to the overall performance of the frame. However, beam ductility is not quite as critical as that of braces and columns, in part because the axial load in beams in relatively small. This is reflected in the local buckling requirements for beams. Beams, in all configurations of concentric brace frames, must meet the width-to-thickness limits for moderately ductile members according to Chapter D of the *AISC Seismic Provisions*. According to Table D1.1 the flanges must meet the following limit:

$$\lambda_{md} = 0.38 \sqrt{\frac{E}{F_y}}$$
 Eqn 6-6

For beam webs, the limiting width-to-thickness ratio depends on C_a , the ratio of the ultimate axial beam load to the axial beam strength. The two possible limits for web width-to-thickness ratios are as follows:

For
$$C_a \le 0.125$$
, $\lambda_{md} = 3.76 \sqrt{\frac{E}{F_y}} (1 - 2.75C_a) \ge$ Eqn 6-7

For
$$C_a > 0.125$$
, $\lambda_{md} = 1.12 \sqrt{\frac{E}{F_y}} (2.33 - C_a) \ge 1.49 \sqrt{\frac{E}{F_y}}$ Eqn 6-8

These limits are obviously less stringent than those for columns and braces if W-shapes are used. The moderate ductility limit for beam flanges is the same as the limiting width-to-thickness ratio for "compact" shapes according to Chapter B of the *AISC Specification* in Table B4.1. The limiting ratio for beam webs, however, differs from Table B4.1 in that the limit depends on C_a with a convergence on the "non-compact" limit in the table.

Chapter 7 - Special Concentric Brace Frame Connection Design

Connection design is extremely critical to the behavior of the entire brace frame. Numerous research has been done to study frame behavior relative to a variety of connection design differences or issues, and all have drawn a similar conclusion: the brace frame is not nearly as robust under cyclic loading if the connection is not capable of fully developing the brace capacity. Therefore, the *AISC Seismic Provisions* have very strict analysis and design criteria for SCBF connections. The process of design is much the same as that of OCBF connections, and the following discussion will focus on the differences in analysis, design, and behavior in SCBF connections. See Appendix F for all SCBF connection design calculations and detailing.

Brace Connection Design Forces

Design forces for connections differ from those used to design braces, beams, and columns. Connection failure is detrimental to the entire brace frame, especially due to the effects of cyclic seismic loading are not accounted for. Connections must be able to withstand the effects of extreme deformations including brace buckling. To achieve this, the *AISC Seismic Provisions* have set forth specific criteria for determining these loads for brace connections. Tension, compression, and flexural loads are all covered by the *AISC Seismic Provisions*. Each of these loads may be analyzed separately and interaction of the forces does not necessarily need to be considered.

Tension

Brace connections must be designed for the "required tensile strength" as defined by the *AISC Seismic Provisions* in Section F2.6c(1). Two options are available to determine this force and the required force is the lesser of the two. The first force is equal to the expected yield strength of the brace, $R_yF_yA_g$. The second force is equal to the maximum load effect that can be developed by the frame and transmitted to the connection, based upon analysis.

To achieve ductile behavior of the frame, the brace design must be governed by tensile yielding of the gross cross-section when subject to tension loads. To ensure that this occurs, the brace connection must be designed to at least match the expected brace strength. However, a detailed analysis can determine that other parts of the components limit the system capacity, which would allow the connection to be designed for smaller forces.

Calculating the expected yield strength of the brace is by far the simplest method of determining the required design force. Calculation of the maximum load effect is very complex and may not accurately reflect the actual behavior of the frame during an earthquake. Additionally, many unknowns regarding ground motion and the distribution of seismic forces exist. Even after performing a detailed analysis it may still be necessary to design the connection for the expected yield strength to ensure adequate ductility. Therefore, it is most common, and perhaps the best practice, to design the connection for the expected yield strength (AISC 341-10).

Compression

Due to the critical nature of brace buckling behavior, it is required that brace connections be capable of delivering the compressive strength of the brace. Therefore, the *AISC Seismic Provisions* require that brace connections be designed to resist a force at least equal to expected brace strength in compression multiplied by a factor of 1.1. The expected brace compressive strength is the same as that used in the frame analysis as defined in Section F2.3. The factor of 1.1 is used, in part, to account for brace overstrength, a result of the conservative design approach for compression members.

Flexure

SCBF's are designed with the expectation that they will experience cyclic loading during a severe earthquake. As discussed previously, it is very important that the brace be allowed to buckle, dissipating energy. When a brace buckles, plastic hinges are formed at the middle and ends of the brace inducing flexural forces in the gusset plate. The plastic hinges at the brace ends can cause failure of the end connection due to the rotation of the brace plastic hinge. To prevent this, the end connection must have sufficient strength to force the brace end plastic hinge to occur in the brace outside of the connection. Alternately, the connection can be designed such that it has enough ductility to allow the brace to rotate within the connection. The *AISC Seismic Provisions* require that brace end connections conform to one of the two options in Section F2.6c(3).

35

For typical gusset plate connection it is very difficult to provide sufficient ductility for brace buckling in the plane of the gusset plate. Therefore, for in-plane brace buckling the connection will most likely need to be designed to withstand the maximum flexural strength of the brace multiplied by a factor of 1.1 per Section F2.6c(3)(a). The connection must also be designed for the maximum compression strength of the brace.

For brace buckling out-of- plane of the gusset plate, the gusset plate is much more flexible as it is subject to bending about its weak axis. This allows the brace end plastic hinges to form in the gusset plate. For this to occur, the gusset plate connection must be detailed so that enough clearance is provided to allow the plastic hinge to form unimpeded. The distance between the brace end and the gusset restraint must be large enough to allow the gusset to buckle. However, it is necessary for the brace to buckle prior to buckling of the plate. Thus, the clear distance of the brace end must not be too large (*AISC Seismic Provisions*).

Through their research, Astaneh-Asl et al. determined a minimum clear distance of two times the gusset plate thickness. This clear, or free distance is measured from the brace end to a fold line perpendicular to the brace intersecting the nearest gusset plate restraint as shown in Figure 7-2. This simple detail provides significant ductility for the connection when subjected to cyclic loading. The *AISC Seismic Provisions* Commentary recommends adding an inch to the minimum clear distance to provide for erection tolerances.



Figure 7-1: Brace End Clear Distance

Shear Lag and Brace Section Rupture at Gusset

One very common method for connecting an HSS brace to a gusset plate is slotting the tube to receive the gusset plate. This is a relatively simple and inexpensive method. However, the slot in the HSS obviously reduces the area of the brace that is effective in resisting the applied load. The Seismic Provision requirement in section F2.5b(3) states that "the brace effective net area shall not be less than the brace gross area." This provision prevents net section rupture from becoming the limiting condition (*AISC Seismic Provisions*). Such fracture would be a sudden brittle failure with a small amount of deformation, an undesirable failure mode for seismic conditions (Cheng et al., 1998).

Shear lag must also be accounted for in the design of knife plate brace connections subject to tensile loads. When a tensile member is connected such that only a portion of its crosssection is fastened the effects of shear lag are introduced. At the connection location the full cross-section of the member is not effective in resisting the load and the member is not stressed uniformly. The effects of shear lag are dependent on the geometry of the connection. For a round brace welded to a knife plate, the welds parallel to the brace must be at least as long as the diameter of the brace according to Chapter D of the *AISC Specification*. If the welds are longer than 1.3 times the brace diameter than shear lag effects are essentially eliminated because the member net cross-section (the full cross-section minus the area of the slot) is assumed to be fully developed.

Research performed by Cheng et al. examined the effects of shear lag on shear rupture of welded knife plate connections. In this research gusset plates were inserted into slotted round HSS members. They were welded with four fillet welds along the length of the slot. Most of the specimens were welded across the width of the gusset plate at the end of the slot allowing the full gross cross-section of the tube to be developed. A control specimen was not welded across the gusset thickness; only the net cross-sectional area was therefore assumed to be effective in resisting the load. The specimens were loaded to failure in tension. The results indicated that the specimens had greater ductility when the gusset width was welded. The control specimen fractured at the connection. However, all of the specimens experienced higher deformations at the end of the slot due to stress concentrations caused by shear lag effects (Cheng et al., 1998).

The method described in Cheng's research is an effective way to meet the requirements of the *AISC Seismic Provisions* to develop the full brace cross-section. However, it is not the most practical method for braces installed in the field and it can cause stress concentrations at the slot end (Cheng et al.). Slots must be cut longer to provide erection clearances making the slot-end weld impossible. Instead, reinforcement in the form of cover plates can be used to increase the effective area at the connection and develop the gross brace cross-section, as shown in Figure 7-1. The *AISC Seismic Provisions* have two requirements for brace reinforcement. First, the reinforcement yield strength must match or exceed that of the brace. Second, the full capacity of the reinforcement must be developed on each side of the connection. These requirements ensure that brace can be fully developed and ductility is provided at the connection between the brace and gusset (*AISC Seismic Provisions*).



Figure 7-2: Reinforced Brace Connection

Protected Zones

Because of the high performance objectives of SCBFs special precautions must be made for critical parts of the frame. In areas expected to yield significantly in plastic hinges a stress concentration can cause fracture, eliminating the desired ductile behavior. Stress concentrations can occur in a member where welds, holes, changes in cross-section, or flaws are present, often results of construction processes or defects. These irregularities in a critical member can cause undesirable and unpredictable behavior when subjected to the extreme loading conditions present during a large earthquake. Therefore, the *AISC Seismic Provisions* specify protected zones within seismic lateral force resisting systems that must be free of such irregularities. As shown in Figure 7-3 by hatching the area, the following protected zones are defined for SCBFs:

- The middle of the brace equal to a quarter of the total brace length
- The ends of the brace at the connection equal to the brace diameter
- Connecting elements for braces, beams, and columns



Figure 7-3: Protected Zone

Free-Edge Buckling

The 2005 Seismic Design Manual recommended checking free-edge buckling of the gusset plate at the beam-brace connection, although the check was not a requirement of the 2005 *AISC Seismic Provisions*. However, the 2010 Seismic Design Provisions Commentary briefly discusses the free-edge buckling. The reviewing committee determined that gusset plate edge stiffeners do not improve the behavior of the gusset plate. As a result, no limits to gusset plate edge dimensions have been established.

Demand Critical Welds

The *AISC Seismic Provisions* identify locations within the brace frame that can experience high stresses. These locations, occurring at joints, are critical in maintaining the performance of the braced frame. Therefore, the welds at such joints must be capable of withstanding increased levels of yielding in addition to higher stresses. These welds are specified as demand critical welds and must meet the requirements of the *AISC Seismic Provisions*.

All welds in a seismic force resisting system must meet the specifications of the Structural Welding Code-Seismic Supplement (AWS) Section D1.8. Demand critical weld requirements are more stringent. In addition to meeting D1.8 requirements, such welds must also conform to increased Charpy V-notch (CVN) toughness criteria. The filler material must undergo Heat Input Envelope Testing at two different temperatures to determine the CVN toughness. The required test temperatures can vary depending on the use of the structure, and are based on the expected temperatures the structure will experience.

The locations within a concentrically braced frame that require demand critical welds are defined by the *AISC Seismic Provisions* as follows:

- 1) Groove welds at column splices
- 2) Welds at column-to-base plate connections
- 3) Welds at beam-to-column connections that meet Section F2.6b(b)

Seismic forces during an extreme event are difficult to predict and the forces at these critical locations are unknown even with a detailed analysis. Demand critical welds provide additional safety by providing increased ductility to prevent brittle failures (*AISC Seismic Provisions*).

Beam-to-Column Connections

The *AISC Seismic Provisions* offer some design flexibility for beam connections to columns within brace frames. The connection may be designed in accordance with *AISC Specification* Section B3.6a as a simple connection. Alternatively, the beam-to-column connection must be designed to resist a moment equal to the beam flexural strength, R_yM_p , or a moment equal to the sum of expected column flexural strengths, $\sum R_yF_yZ$. The expected flexural strengths must be multiplied by a factor of 1.1. The design moment must be examined with other connection forces (*AISC Seismic Provisions*).

The use of a simple connection allows the beam to rotate relative to the column. This is important because brace frames are expected to have large story drifts which results in large rotations between beams and columns. Rotation of this joint can lead to poor frame performance if the connection is not designed to rotate or withstand the rotation. At joints with a gusset plate this is especially critical. The *AISC Seismic Provisions* require that beam-to-column connections designed in accordance with *AISC Specification* Section B3.6a allow a rotation of 0.025 radians.

AISC Specification Section B3.6a states that "a simple connection transmits a negligible moment across the connection." In analysis, simple connections can be assumed to rotate uninhibited and the connection must be designed to provide a rotation capacity required by the analysis, or in this case, required by the *AISC Seismic Provisions*. Recent research has been performed to verify the rotation capacities of some simple connections. The alternative beam-to-column connection must resist the specified moment. In this case, a fully restrained moment connection, meeting the same requirements as ordinary moment frames, is required (*AISC Seismic Provisions*). While this could increase system strength, it would also increase costs.

Chapter 8 - Conclusions

The parametric study was performed to illustrate the differences in the design and detailing of OCBFs and SCBFs. The following conclusion is a discussion of the results and findings of the study.

Governing Lateral Load

The parametric study illustrated that determining the governing lateral load is not as simple as comparing total building base shears for wind and seismic. Seismic base shear is the same for both the longitudinal and transverse directions because no plan irregularities causing inherent torsion exist. However, wind base shear differs for the longitudinal and transverse directions because the wind pressure acts on differing wall areas for the two directions. This is especially true for rectangular buildings with lengths significantly longer than their widths. For this reason, both directions must be checked.

It is also important to consider the effects of an increased response modification coefficient. Systems with higher coefficients have lower base shears. It is possible that a reduction due to a higher response modification can reduce base shears below wind base shears. In this case, the lateral force resisting system must be designed to remain elastic up to the governing wind base shear, but it must also meet the requirements of the LFRS to achieve the ductility described by the response modification coefficient.

For the parametric study the OCBF seismic base shear was much higher than the wind base shear in both directions, and therefore governed design. The seismic base shear for the SCBF design, however, only exceeded the wind base shear for the LFRS in the longitudinal direction. Therefore, seismic loads governed for the longitudinal direction, but wind loads governed for the transverse direction. The wind and seismic base shears are summarized in Table 8-1.

	Total Bu	ilding Base Shear (kips)	
	Wind	OCBF Seismic (R=3.25)	SCBF Seismic (R=6)
Longitudinal	68	143	78
Transverse	118	143	78

Table 8-1: Comparison of Building Base Shears

Brace Slenderness Limits

The brace slenderness limits differ for OCBFs and SCBFs, which has a significant effect on the design of the entire frame. OCBFs, relying on the elastic strength of the frame, have a more stringent limit on brace slenderness to prevent brace buckling. For the OCBF parametric study, the design of all braces was governed by the brace slenderness limit. For OCBFs, this limit exists only for inverted-V brace layouts and prevents brace buckling that would result in an unbalanced load on the beam. The slenderness limit for SCBFs is in place for all configurations of braces. The limit is higher because research has shown that for SCBFs with slender braces still behave well due to their overstrength in tension, according to the *AISC Seismic Provisions*. The braces are governed by strength rather than slenderness which results in smaller brace sizes compared to those of the OCBF design. Because the SCBF was designed based on the expected strength of the braces, reducing the brace sizes allowed the beams and columns to be reduced as well.

Member Sizes

Aside from the braces, the SCBF beams and columns also differed significantly from their OCBF counterparts. This difference is primarily due to the analysis requirements of the two frame types. The beams and columns in the OCBF were designed for the maximum load effect base on amplified forces. The SCBF beams and columns were also designed based the load effect based on amplified forces. However, the analysis also accounted for the expected strengths of the braces and the resulting unbalanced load due to the inverted-V brace layout. The result was significantly larger beams and columns for the SCBF compared to the OCBF. A comparison of member sizes is shown in Table 8-2. The larger sizes for the SCBF are representative of the increased seismic robustness of SCBFs compared to OCBFs. This robustness exists because the SCBF design is centered on developing the full strength of the brace rather than just the maximum load effect of the system.

Member sizes can also provide a rough cost estimate base on their weight. Steel tonnage is often used to represent the total structure cost. A comparison of steel tonnage of a single brace frame for the OCBFs and SCBFs is shown in Table 8-3. While steel tonnage does reflect cost, it does not completely reflect the additional costs due to connection complexity of SCBFs.

	Braced Frame Member Selection	
	OCBF	SCBF
Upper Braces	HSS 7.500x0.312	HSS 4.000x0.220
Lower Braces	HSS 7.500x0.312	HSS 5.500x0.258
2 nd Floor Beam	W18x76	W30x124
Roof Beam	W10x33	W27x94
Columns	W12x40	W14x68

Table 8-2: Comparison of Braced Frame Member Selection

Table 8-3: Comparison of Braced Frame Steel Tonnage

Braced	Frame Member Weights	(Tons)	
	OCBF	SCBF	Difference
Upper Braces	0.80	0.32	-0.48
Lower Braces	0.80	0.52	-0.28
2 nd Floor Beam	2.28	3.72	1.44
Roof Beam	0.99	2.82	1.82
Columns	2.56	4.35	1.79
Total	7.44	11.73	4.29

Inverted-V Brace Layout

The inverted-V brace layout used for the parametric study introduces several unique requirements to the design. The first special requirement specified by the *Seismic Provisions* is for beams. For both OCBFs and SCBFs the beam must be continuous between supporting columns. This limits the connection options, because a beam stub cannot be shop welded to the columns. This requirement can complicate erection because the gusset plate must then be at least partially field welded or bolted. The beam must also be braced at the brace intersection point unless the beam has sufficient out-of-plane strength. Additionally, the beam must also be designed to withstand the force imbalance caused by brace buckling. This requirement resulted

in significantly larger beams than beams for a similar X-braced frame would have been. Beams in SCBFs must meet the compactness criteria for moderately ductile members.

The braces themselves are only affected by the layout in OCBFs. As mentioned previously, OCBF braces have slenderness limits that are more stringent than those for SCBFs. This is, again, to prevent the adverse effects of brace buckling resulting in an unbalanced load on the beam.

Story Drift

For the parametric study the building story drifts were well within the limits established by ASCE 7-10 for both OCBFs and SCBFs. This is due in large part to the requirements of the *Seismic Provisions*. For the OCBF, the braces were significantly oversized to meet the slenderness limits for inverted-V brace layouts. Therefore, the building did not deflect significantly under the elastic lateral loads applied. Similarly, for the SCBF, the beams and columns had to be much larger to meet the *Seismic Provisions*. The building deflections are well below the allowable story drift limits as a result. The story drifts and story drift limits are summarized in Table 8-4.

	Building Story Drift Summary	
	OCBF	SCBF
Allowable Story Drift (in.)	3.840	3.840
Design Story Drift (in.)	0.517	0.690

Table 8-4: Summary of Building Story Drifts

General Conclusions

Member design for SCBFs differs only slightly from the design of OCBF members. However, their predicted behavior differs dramatically; OCBFs behave elastically while SCBFs rely more heavily on system ductility in the post-elastic range. The major differences in design requirements are found in compactness criteria and slenderness limits. SCBF members must meet much stricter width-to-thickness limits for braces, columns, and beams than their OCBF counterparts. This provides additional ductility. OCBF braces are subject to more stringent limits on member slenderness than SCBF braces. This is because SCBFs rely, in part, on brace buckling to develop plastic hinges providing energy dissipation and system ductility.

The cost of SCBFs will be significantly higher than that of the OCBF because of the detailing requirements of SCBFs. The addition of cover plates to the braces adds to the fabrication complexity. To provide clearance for the gusset plate fold lines, the gusset had to be larger than it would have otherwise. The HSS braces in the SCBF were smaller than those in the OCBF, but the difference in steel weight was minor compared to the additional weight for the SCBF beams and columns. SCBFs are certainly more expensive to construct, however, they have significantly better performance during extreme seismic events. Additionally, OCBFs are limited to buildings under 35 feet in height. Taller buildings must use SCBFs, eccentrically braced frames, buckling restrained brace frames, or another SLFRS. OCBFs provide a safe and inexpensive lateral force resisting system for low rise structures and SCBFs provide excellent seismic performance for extreme seismic loads for larger buildings.

References

- American Institute of Steel Construction Manual. 14th ED. (2010). Chicago: American Institute of Steel Construction.
- American Society of Civil Engineers Minimum Design Loads for Buildings and Other Structures 2010. (2010). American Society of Civil Engineers.
- Building Seismic Safety Council. NEHRP Recommended Provisions for Seismic Regulations for New Buildings and Other Structures: FEMA 450-1 2003 Edition. (2004). Washington, D.C.: Federal Emergency Management Agency.
- Cheng, R.J.J., Kulak, G.L., and Khoo, H.A. *Strength of Slotted Tubular Tension Members*. (June 1999). Department of Civil and Environmental Engineering, University of Alberta, Edmonton.
- International Building Code 2012. (2012). Country Club Hills: International Code Council, Inc.
- Lawson, J. W. (2010, February). A Solution to Seismic Bracing Restrictions: Expanding the Acceptance of New Large HSS Sections. *Structure Magazine*, pp. 14-15.
- American Society of Civil Engineers Minimum Design Loads for Buildings and Other Structures 2010. (2010). American Society of Civil Engineers.
- Nikolaou, S. P. (2008, February). Site-Specific Seismic Studies for Optimal Strucutral Design: Part I-General. *Structure Magazine*, pp. 15-19.
- Roeder, C. P. and Lehman, D.E. (2008, February). Seismic Design and Behavior of Concentrically Braced Steel Frames. *Structure Magazine*, pp. 37-39.
- SEAOC Seismology Committee. (2008, September). A Brief Guide to Seismic Design Factors. *Structure Magazine*, pp. 30-32.
- SEAOC Seismology Committee. (2009, January). Seismic Force-Resisting Systems Part 1: Seismic Design Factors. *Structure Magazine*, pp. 27-29.
- Seismic Provisions for Structural Steel Buildings: AISC 341-10. (2010). Chicago: American Institute of Steel Construction.
- Seismic Provisions for Structural Steel Buildings: AISC 341-05. (2005). Chicago: American Institute of Steel Construction.

Appendix A - Building Plans and Elevations



Figure A-1: Building Plan



Figure A-2: OCBF Elevation



Figure A-3: SCBF Elevation

Appendix B - Load Calculations

Project Parameters Location: Henderson, NV

Building Dimensions		
h _n =	35	ft (Max building height)
h=	32	ft (Mean Roof Height)
2nd Floor h=	16	ft above ground
Roof h=	32	ft above ground
Parapet h=	35	ft above ground
Transverse Length=	75	ft
Longitudinal Length=	120	ft
	П	[Tbl 1.5-1 ASCE 7-10]

Load Combinations

Reference: ASCE 7-10 UNO

General Load Combinati	ions				2.3.2
1)	1.4D				
2)	1.2D+1.6L+0.5(L	r or S or R)			
3)	1.2D+1.6(Lr or S	or R)L+(L or	[.] .5W)		
4)	1.2D+1.0W+L+0	.5(Lr or S or	R)		
6)	0.9D+1.0W				
Seismic Load Combination	ons for Strength	Design			12.4.2.3
5)	(1.2+(0.2SDS))	D +	ρ	Q _E + L + .2S	
7)	(0.9-(0.2SDS))	D +	ρ	Q _E + 1.6H	
Seismic Load Combination	ons for Overstrei	ngth			12.4.3.2
5)	(1.2+(0.2SDS))	D +	Ω₀	Q _E + L + .2S	
7)	(0.9-(0.2SDS))	D +	Ω₀	Q _E + 1.6H	
Seismic Load Combination	ons for Strength	Design			12.4.2.3
5)	1.3084	D +	1.3	QE + L + .2S	
7)	0.7916	D +	1.3	QE + 1.6H	
Seismic Load Combination	ons for Overstrei	ngth			12.4.3.2
5)	1.3084	D +	2	QE + L + .2S	
7)	0.7916	D +	2	QE + 1.6H	

Dead Load			
ASCE 7-10 UNO			
Roof			
2" Rigid Insulation=	3	psf	TBL C3-1
1.5B Deck, 20GA=	2.5	psf	Vulcraft
Steel Framing=	3	psf	Assumed
Acoustic Ceiling=	3	psf	TBL C3-1
MEP=	5	psf	TBL C3-1
Misc.=	1.5	psf	Assumed
Total Dead Load=	18	psf	
2nd Floor			
1.0C Deck, 20GA, 3-1/2" Total Conc.=	38	psf	Vulcraft
Steel Framing=	5	psf	Assumed
Acoustic Ceiling=	3	psf	TBL C3-1
MEP=	4	psf	TBL C3-1
		_	
Total Dead Load=	50	psf	
Walls		_	
Curtain Wall	15	psf	Assumed
Total Wall Weight=	15	psf	
Live Loads			
Roof Live Load, L _r =	20	psf	
2nd Floor Live Load=	80	psf	
Partition Live Load=	15	psf	
Total 2nd Floor Live Load,L=	95	psf	

Snow Loads





Note: No drifts for roof obstructions <15' (i.e. HVAC equipment)

Sec 7.8

Wind Loads

Reference: ASCE 7-10			
User Input =			
Result =			
	445		
Wind Velocity =	115	mph	
Building Risk Category =			TBI 1 5-1
Structure Type=	Buildings-N	NWFRS	
Load Combinations=	yes		
K _d =	0.85		TBL 26.6-1
Exposure Category=	С		Sec 26.7.3
Total Wall Height=	35	ft	
h (mean roof height)=	32.0	π	(low rise-cannot exceed butt in height)(if Θ <10, h=eave height)
a=	95		TBI 26 9-1
z.=	900	ft	TBL 26.9-1
-g	500		
K _z =	1.065		TBL 27.3-1
K _h =	1.054		
K, (0-15)=	0.850		
K, (15-(x<20))=	0.900		
K, (20-(x<25))=	0.940		
K, (25-(x<30))=	0.980		
K, (30-(x<40))=	1.040		
K, (40-(x<50))=	1.054		
K, (50-(x<60))=	1.090		
Site Geometry	Flat/Other		
Building Location From Peak	Flat/Other		

Kzt =	1.00		Fig 26.8-1 (Calculate K1, K2, and K3 for Kzt)
<u>q=0.00256(Kzt)(Kz)(Kd)(V)²=</u>	30.34	psf	Eqn 27.3-1
q _p =	30.64	psf	
q _h =	30.34	psf	
q _z (0'-15')=	24.46	psf	
q _z (15'-20')=	25.90	psf	
q _z (20'-25')=	27.05	psf	
q _z (25'-30')=	28.20	psf	
q _z (30'-40')=	29.93	psf	
q _z (40'-50')=	30.34	psf	
q _z (50'-60')=	31.37	psf	



Main Wind Force Resisting Sytem Wind Forces

I

	Eqn 27.4-4				
apets	(psf)	30.64 psf 1.5	-1.0	45.96 psf	-30.64 psf
Para	Pressure=P _p =q _p GC _{pn} (q _p = Windward GC _m =	Leeward GC _{pn} =	Windward P _p =	Leeward P _p =

Roof Zone q qh Sec 3 Se								
Roof Zone q qh Sec 3 Se								
Roof Zone q qh qh qh 0 0 to h/2 28.20 30.34 0 0 0 0 0 10	26.9.4 Fig	27.4-1	Fig 26	6.11-1		P=qGCp-qi(GCpi)	(psf)Eqn 27.4-1	
0 to h/2 28.20 30.34 0 h/2 to h 28.20 30.34 0 h to 2h 28.20 30.34 0	G C _{p1}	C_{p_2}	GC _{pi} (+)	GC _{pi} (-)	P(1+)	P(1-)	P(2+)	P(2-)
h/2 to h 28.20 30.34 0. h to 2h 28.20 30.34 0.	0.85 -0.9	-0.18	0.18	-0.18	-27.0	-16.1	-9.8	1.1
h to 2h 28.20 30.34 0	0.85 -0.9	-0.18	0.18	-0.18	-27.0	-16.1	-9.8	1.1
	0.85 -0.5	-0.18	0.18	-0.18	-17.4	-6.5	-9.8	1.1
>2h 28.20 30.34 0.	0.85 -0.3	-0.18	0.18	-0.18	-12.7	-1.7	-9.8	1.1
h/2= 16.00 ft								
h= 32.00 ft								
2h= 64.00 ft								

Long	ritudinal Direction Wind Pres	ssures			Sec 27.4.1								
	Windward	J/Leeward W	all Length=	75	ft		Side W	all Length=	120.0	ft			
	Tot	tal Wall Area((-Parapet)= = * h	2400.0	ft² ₽		Total Par	apet Area=	225	ft²			
			נ -	0.01	 Sec 26.9.4	Fig 2	7.4-1	Fig 26	11-1	P=aGCa.(GC) ((psf)Ean 27.4-1	Force (P)	(kips)
		Area (ft²)	q (psf)	q _i =q _h (psf)	U	Long. C.	Trans. C _n	GC _{bi} (+)	GC _{pi} (-)	(+)	(-)	(+)) - -
	Windward Wall (0'-15')	1125.0	24.46	30.34	0.85	0.8	0.8	0.18	-0.18	11.172	22.095	12.57	24.86
	Windward Wall (.5h-15')	525.0	25.90	30.34	0.85	0.8	0.8	0.18	-0.18	12.150	23.073	6.38	12.11
	Windward Wall (15'-20')	375	25.90	30.34	0.85	0.8	0.8	0.18	-0.18	12.150	23.073	4.56	8.65
	Windward Wall (20'-25')	375	27.05	30.34	0.85	0.8	0.8	0.18	-0.18	12.933	23.856	4.85	8.95
	Windward Wall (25'-30')	375	28.20	30.34	0.85	0.8	0.8	0.18	-0.18	13.716	24.639	5.14	9.24
	Windward Wall (30'-40')	150	29.93	30.34	0.85	0.8	0.8	0.18	-0.18	14.890	25.813	2.23	3.87
	Windward Wall (40'-50')	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	0.00	0.00
	Windward Wall (50'-60')	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	0.00	0.00
	Leeward Wall (0'-15')	1125	24.46	30.34	0.85	-0.380	-0.500	0.18	-0.18	-15.262	-4.339	-17.17	-4.88
	Leeward Wall (.5h-15')	525.0	25.90	30.34	0.85	-0.380	-0.500	0.18	-0.18	-15.262	-4.339	-8.01	-2.28
	Leeward Wall (15'-20')	375	25.90	30.34	0.85	-0.380	-0.500	0.18	-0.18	-15.262	-4.339	-5.72	-1.63
	Leeward Wall (20'-25')	375	27.05	30.34	0.85	-0.380	-0.500	0.18	-0.18	-15.262	-4.339	-5.72	-1.63
60	Leeward Wall (25'-30')	375	28.20	30.34	0.85	-0.380	-0.500	0.18	-0.18	-15.262	-4.339	-5.72	-1.63
)	Leeward Wall (30'-40')	150	29.93	30.34	0.85	-0.380	-0.500	0.18	-0.18	-15.262	-4.339	-2.29	-0.65
	Leeward Wall (40'-50')	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	0.00	0.00
	Leeward Wall (50'-60')	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	0.00	0.00
	Side Wall (0'-15')	1125	24.46	30.34	0.85	-0.7	-0.7	0.18	-0.18	-23.515	-12.592	-26.45	-14.17
	Side Wall (15'-20')	375	25.90	30.34	0.85	-0.7	-0.7	0.18	-0.18	-23.515	-12.592	-8.82	-4.72
	Side Wall (20'-25')	375	27.05	30.34	0.85	-0.7	-0.7	0.18	-0.18	-23.515	-12.592	-8.82	-4.72
	Side Wall (25'-30')	375	28.20	30.34	0.85	-0.7	-0.7	0.18	-0.18	-23.515	-12.592	-8.82	-4.72
	Side Wall (30'-40')	150	29.93	30.34	0.85	-0.7	-0.7	0.18	-0.18	-23.515	-12.592	-3.53	-1.89
	Side Wall (40'-50')	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	0.00	0.00
	Side Wall (50'-60')	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	0.00	0.00
		Ğ	ranat Eorra	U									
			מומחבר ו חורב	0				-					
		Windwar	d Parapet=	10.34115	kips					Longitudinal B	ase Shear (kips)=	83.22	83.22
		Leewar	d Parapet=	-6.8941	kips		P	ngitudinal E	3ase Shear [Excluding Lower Pa	irt of Wall](kips)=	67.87	67.87
									Diaph	ram Force (Base Sh	ear/Span)(lb/ft)=	904.92	
Tran.	sverse Direction												
-------	-------------------------	-----------------	--------------	--------------------------------------	-------------	-------------	--------------	----------------------	----------------------	--	---------------------	-----------	--------
	Windward	d/Leeward M	/all Length=	120	ft		Side W	all Length=	75.0	ft			
	Tot	tal Wall Area	(-Parapet)=	3840	ft²		Total Par	apet Area=	360	ft²			
	-	-	.5*h=	16.0	- - -		-		_		-		
					Sec 26.9.4	Fig 27	7.4-1	Fig 26	.11-1	P=qGC _p -q _i (GC _{pi})	(psf)Eqn 27.4-1	Force (P)	(kips)
		Area (ft^2)	q (psf)	q _i =q _h (psf)	U	Long. C_p	Trans. C_p	GC _{pi} (+)	GC _{pi} (-)	(+)	(-)	(+)	(-)
	Windward Wall (0'-15')	1800.0	24.46	30.34	0.85	0.8	0.8	0.18	-0.18	11.172	22.095	20.11	39.77
	Windward Wall (.5h-20')	840.0	25.90	30.34	0.85	0.8	0.8	0.18	-0.18	12.150	23.073	10.21	19.38
	Windward Wall (15'-20')	600.0	25.90	30.34	0.85	0.8	0.8	0.18	-0.18	12.150	23.073	7.29	13.84
	Windward Wall (20'-25')	600.0	27.05	30.34	0.85	0.8	0.8	0.18	-0.18	12.933	23.856	7.76	14.31
	Windward Wall (25'-30')	600.0	28.20	30.34	0.85	0.8	0.8	0.18	-0.18	13.716	24.639	8.23	14.78
	Windward Wall (30'-40')	240	29.93	30.34	0.85	0.8	0.8	0.18	-0.18	14.890	25.813	3.57	6.20
	Windward Wall (40'-50')	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	0.00	0.00
	Windward Wall (50'-60')	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	0.00	0.00
	Leeward Wall (0'-15')	1800.0	24.46	30.34	0.85	-0.500	-0.500	0.18	-0.18	-18.357	-7.434	-33.04	-13.38
	Leeward Wall (.5h-15')	840.0	25.90	30.34	0.85	-0.500	-0.500	0.18	-0.18	-18.357	-7.434	-15.42	-6.24
	Leeward Wall (15'-20')	600.0	25.90	30.34	0.85	-0.500	-0.500	0.18	-0.18	-18.357	-7.434	-11.01	-4.46
	Leeward Wall (20'-25')	600.0	27.05	30.34	0.85	-0.500	-0.500	0.18	-0.18	-18.357	-7.434	-11.01	-4.46
61	Leeward Wall (25'-30')	600.0	28.20	30.34	0.85	-0.500	-0.500	0.18	-0.18	-18.357	-7.434	-11.01	-4.46
[Leeward Wall (30'-40')	240	29.93	30.34	0.85	-0.500	-0.500	0.18	-0.18	-18.357	-7.434	-4.41	-1.78
	Leeward Wall (40'-50')	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	0.00	0.00
	Leeward Wall (50'-60')	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	0.00	0.00
	Side Wall (0'-15')	1800	24.46	30.34	0.85	-0.7	-0.7	0.18	-0.18	-23.515	-12.592	-42.33	-22.67
	Side Wall (15'-20')	600	25.90	30.34	0.85	-0.7	-0.7	0.18	-0.18	-23.515	-12.592	-14.11	-7.56
	Side Wall (20'-25')	600	27.05	30.34	0.85	-0.7	-0.7	0.18	-0.18	-23.515	-12.592	-14.11	-7.56
	Side Wall (25'-30')	600	28.20	30.34	0.85	-0.7	-0.7	0.18	-0.18	-23.515	-12.592	-14.11	-7.56
	Side Wall (30'-40')	240	29.93	30.34	0.85	-0.7	-0.7	0.18	-0.18	-23.515	-12.592	-5.64	-3.02
	Side Wall (40'-50')	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	0.00	0.00
	Side Wall (50'-60')	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	0.00	0.00
		۵	aranet Force	v									
								•		ŀ			
		Windwa	rd Parapet=	16.54583	kips					Transverse	Base Shear (kips)=	145.03	145.03
		Leewal	rd Parapet=	-11.0306	kips			Fransverse E	ase Shear [Excluding Lower Pa	art of Wall](kips)=	117.50	117.50
									Diaph	ram Force (Base Sh	near/Span)(Ib/ft)=	979.20	

Seismic Loads (OCBF)

Reference: ASCE 7-10 UNO

36.0292	٥
-115.025	0
D	
	36.0292 -115.025 D

Seismic Ground Motion (From USGS Sesimic Hazard Program)

Fa=	1.299
Fv=	2.066
S _s =	0.626
S ₁ =	0.184
S _{DS} =	0.542
S _{D1} =	0.253

Sesimic Design Category

I=	1.0	Tbl 1.5-2
SDC=	D	Tbl 11.6-1
SDC=	D	Tbl 11.6-2
SDC=	D	

Seismic Forces

R=	3.25	[Ordinary Concentric Brace Frame]	TBL 12.2-1
T _L =	6	S	Fig 22-12
C _t =	0.02		Tbl 12.8-2
x=	0.75		Tbl 12.8-2
T=T _a =	0.2878	s $T_a = C_t h_n^x$	Eqn 12.8-7
	T< <tl< td=""><td>•</td><td></td></tl<>	•	
_			
C _s =	0.167	$C_s = [S_{DS}/(R/I)]$	Eqn 12.8-2
C _{s-Max} =	0.270	$C_{s-Max} = [S_{D1}/(R/I)]$ for T <t<sub>L</t<sub>	Eqn 12.8-3
C _{s-Min} =	0.010		Eqn 12.8-5

Seismic Base Shear

Distributed Weights				
Roof DL=	18	psf		
2nd Floor DL=	50	psf		
Partition Load=	10	psf	(2nd Floor)	12.7.2 (2)
Curtain Wall=	15	psf		
Building Dimensions				
Trans. Length=	75	ft		
Long. Length=	120	ft		
Effective Wall Height	s Contrib	uting to	o Seismic Weight Per Diaphragm	
Roof=	11.00	ft	(Half of Wall Height Below + Parapet Height)	
2nd Floor=	16.00	ft	(Half of Wall Heights Above and Below)	
Seismic Weight				
W _{Roof} =	162.00	k	[Roof DL x Area]	
W _{Wall to Roof} =	64.35	k	[Wall DL x Effective Height x Perimeter]	
W _{2nd Floor} =	540.00	k	[2nd Floor DL x Area]	
$W_{Wall to 2nd Floor}$ =	93.60	k	[Wall DL x Effective Height x Perimeter]	
W _{Total} =	859.95			
Seismic Base Shear				
V _{base Shear} =	143.4	kips	$[V=C_s*W]$	Eqn 12.8-1

W _{x-Roof} =	226.35	k	[Sum of Seismic Weights at Given Level]	
w _{x-2nd Floor} =	633.60	k		
h _{x-Roof} =	32	ft		
h _{x-2nd Floor} =	16	ft		
k=	1		[For T<.5s]	
w _x h _x (Roof)=	7243.2			
$w_x h_x^{\kappa}$ (2nd Floor)=	10137.6			
Σ=	17380.8			
			k k	
C _{vx-Roof} =	0.42		$C_{vx} = (w_x h_x^{\kappa}) / (\sum w_x h_x^{\kappa})$	Eqn 12.8-12
C _{vx-2nd Floor} =	0.58			
		_		
F _{x-Roof} =	59.7654	k	$F_x = C_{vx}V$	Eqn 12.8-11
F _{x-2nd Floor} =	83.6478	k		

Force Distribution to Brace Frames

Because there is a frame on each exterior wall (one pair in each direction) and they are located symmetrically, each frame carries half of the seismic base shear in its respective direction

Roof		Flexible Di	iaphragm		
	F=	29.88	k	F=F _{x-Roof} *.5	
			-		
2nd Floor		Rigid Diap	hragm, Bui	Iding assumed to be symmetrical: no inherent Torsio	n
	F=	41.82	k	F=F _{x-Roof} *.5	
			-		
2nd Floor Acc	cidenta	l Torsion			12.8.4.2
	x _{Trans} =	3.75	ft	x=5%*Transverse Length or Longitudinal Length	
	x _{Long} =	6	ft	[Displacement of Center of Mass]	
	M _{ta1} =	313.68	k-ft	M _{ta} =x _{Trans} *F _{x-2nd Floor}	
	M _{ta2} =	501.89	k-ft	$M_{ta} = x_{Long}^* F_{x-2nd Floor}$	
Mt	ta-Total=	815.57	k-ft		

All Brace Frames (4 Total, 1 on each exterior grid) resist torsion equally.

Therefore, Grid A and D brace frames resist moment, M_{ta1} . Grids 1 and 5 resist moment, M_{ta2} .

F=	4.18	k	F=M _{ta1} /Transverse Length (Grids A & D)
F=	4.18	k	F=M _{ta2} /Longitudinal Length (Grids 1 & 5)

Seismic Loads (SCBF)

Reference: ASCE 7-10 UNO

Latitude=	36.0292	0
Longitude=	-115.025	٥
Site Class=	D	

Seismic Ground Motion (From USGS Sesimic Hazard Program)



Sesimic Design Category

	= 1.0	I=
SDC= D	= D	SDC=
SDC= D	= D	SDC=
	- D	SDC=

Seismic Forces

R=	6	[SCBF]	TBL 12.2-1
T _L =	6	S	Fig 22-15
C _t =	0.02		Tbl 12.8-2
x=	0.75		Tbl 12.8-2
T=T _a =	0.2878	s $T_a = C_t h_n^x$	Eqn 12.8-7
	T< <tl< td=""><td></td><td></td></tl<>		
C _s =	0.0903	$C_s = [S_{DS}/(R/I)]$	Eqn 12.8-2
C _{s-Max} =	0.147	$C_{s-Max} = [S_{D1}/(R/I)]$ for T <t<sub>L</t<sub>	Eqn 12.8-3
C _{s-Min} =	0.010		Eqn 12.8-5

Seismic Base Shear

Distributed Weights				
Roof DL=	18	psf		
2nd Floor DL=	50	psf		
Partition Load=	10	psf		12.7.2 (2)
Curtain Wall=	15	psf		
Building Dimensions				
Trans. Length=	75	ft		
Long. Length=	120	ft		
Effective Wall Height	s Contribu	uting to	Seismic Weight Per Diaprhagn	
Roof=	11.00	ft		
2nd Floor=	16.00	ft		
Seismic Weight				
W _{Roof} =	162.00	k	[Roof DL x Area]	
$W_{Wall to Roof} =$	64.35	k	[Wall DL x Effective Height x Perimeter]	
W _{2nd Floor} =	540.00	k	[2nd Floor DL x Area]	
$W_{Wall to 2nd Floor}$ =	93.60	k	[Wall DL x Effective Height x Perimeter]	
W _{Total} =	859.95			
Seismic Base Shear				
V _{base Shear} =	77.7	kips	$[V=C_s*W]$	Eqn 12.8-1

Vertical Distribution of Seismic Forces

w _{x-Roof} =	226.35	k	[Sum of Seismic Weights at Given Level]	
w _{x-2nd Floor} =	633.60	k		
h _{x-Roof} =	32	ft		
h _{x-2nd Floor} =	16	ft		
k=	1		[For T<.5s]	
w _x h _x "(Roof)=	7243.2			
w _x h _x ^k (2nd Floor)=	10137.6			
Σ=	17380.8			
C _{vx-Roof} =	0.42		$C_{vx} = (w_x h_x^{\kappa}) / (\sum w_x h_x^{\kappa})$	Eqn 12.8-12
C _{vx-2nd Floor} =	0.58			
F _{x-Roof} =	32.37293	k	F _x =C _{vx} V	Eqn 12.8-11
F _{x-2nd Floor} =	45.30922	k		

Force Distribution to Brace Frames

Because there is a frame on each exterior wall (one pair in each direction) and they are located symmetrically, each frame carries half of the seismic base shear in its respective direction

Roof		Flexible Di	aphragm		
	F=	16.19	k	F=F _{x-Roof} *.5	
			-		
2nd Floor		Rigid Diap	hragm, Buil	ding assumed to be symmetrical: no inherent Torsion	า
	F=	22.65	k	F=F _{x-Roof} *.5	
			-		
2nd Floor Acci	idental	Torsion			12.8.4.2
2	≺ _{Trans} =	3.75	ft	x=5%*Transverse Length or Longitudinal Length	
	x _{Long} =	6	ft	[Displacement of Center of Mass]	
	M _{ta1} =	169.91	k-ft	$M_{ta} = x_{Trans} * F_{x-2nd Floor}$	
	M _{ta2} =	271.86	k-ft	M _{ta} =x _{Long} *F _{x-2nd Floor}	
M _t	a-Total=	441.76	k-ft		

All Brace Frames (4 Total, 1 on each exterior grid) resist torsion equally.

Therefore, Grid A and D brace frames resist moment, M_{ta1} . Grids 1 and 5 resist moment, M_{ta2} .

F=	2.27	k
F=	2.27	k

F=M_{ta1}/Transverse Length (Grids A & D) F=M_{ta2}/Longitudinal Length (Grids 1& 5)

Member Loads - Grids A & D

Ref. ASCE 7-10

Trib Width=	12.5	ft				
Trib Length=	30	ft				
Vertical Trib Height=	35	ft				
Trib Area of BF Beams to Col=	46.875	ft ²				
Horizontal Trib Area=	328.125	ft ²	[Width >	<pre>k Length][Exc</pre>	luding BF Bea	am Trib]
Total Trib Area, A _T =	375	ft ²	[Width x Length]			
Vertical Trib Area=	1050	ft ²	[Length x Height]			
Live Load Element Factor, K _{LL} =	4					Tbl 4-2
K _{LL} A _T =	1500	ft ²	≥	400	ft ²	4.8.1
		Live Load Re	duction A	pplies		
Live Load Reduction Factor=	0.637		[0.25+(1	.5/v(K _{LL} A _T))]		
Loads without B	raced Fra	me Beam Re	actions			
Roof Dead Load=	5.91	kips				
Floor Dead Load=	16.41	kips				
Wall Dead Load=	15.75	kips				
Roof Live Load=	6.56	kips				
Floor Live Load=	19.87	kips				[Reduced]
Roof Snow Load=	7.84	kips				
P _u =	71.2	kips			[Seismic Co	mbination 5]
P _u =	30.1	kips			[Seismic Co	mbination 7]

Column D-2 (Loads excluding reactions from brace frame beams)

Column D-2 (Loads excluding read	tions from	n brace	e frame beams)
Trib Width=	12.5	ft	
Trib Length=	30	ft	
Vertical Trib Height=	35	ft	
Trib Area of BF Beams=	46.875	ft ²	
Horizontal Trib Area=	328.125	ft ²	[Width x Length][Excluding BF Beam Trib]
Total Trib Area, A _T =	375	ft ²	[Width x Length]
Vertical Trib Area=	1050	ft ²	[Length x Height]
Live Load Element Factor, K _{LL} =	4		Tbl 4-2
$K_{LL}A_{T}=$	1500	ft ²	\geq 400 ft ² 4.8.1
		Live Lo	oad Reduction Applies
Live Load Reduction Factor=	0.637		$[0.25+(15/v(K_{LL}A_T))]$
Loads without B	raced Fra	me Be	am Reactions
Roof Dead Load=	5.91	kips	
Floor Dead Load=	16.41	kips	
Wall Dead Load=	15.75	kips	
Roof Live Load=	6.56	kips	
Floor Live Load=	19.87	kips	[Reduced]
Roof Snow Load=	7.84	kips	
P _u =	71.2	kips	[Seismic Combination 5]
P _u =	30.1	kips	[Seismic Combination 7]

Roof Beam

	Trib Width=	3.125	ft	
	Beam Length=	30	ft	
	Beam Self-Weight=	94	lb/ft	
	-			
	Roof Dead Load=	56.25	lb/ft	
	Roof Live Load=	62.5	lb/ft	
	Roof Snow Load=	75	lb/ft	
	I			
	M _D =	16.90	k-ft	[wl ² /8]
	M _L =	7.03	k-ft	[wl ² /8]
	M _s =	8.40	k-ft	[wl ² /8]
	5			
	V _D =	2.25	k	[wl/2]
	V ₁ =	0.94	k	[wl/2]
	V _c =	1 1 2	k	[w]/2]
	- 3			
	Ū į			
Floor Beam			1	
Floor Beam	Trib Width=	3.125	ft	
Floor Beam	Trib Width= Beam Length=	3.125 30	ft ft	
Floor Beam	Trib Width= Beam Length=	3.125 30	ft ft	
Floor Beam	Trib Width= Beam Length= Beam Self-Weight=	3.125 30 116	ft ft Ib/ft	
Floor Beam	Trib Width= Beam Length= Beam Self-Weight=	3.125 30 116	ft ft Ib/ft	
Floor Beam	Trib Width= Beam Length= Beam Self-Weight= Floor Dead Load=	3.125 30 116 156.25	ft ft Ib/ft Ib/ft	
Floor Beam	Trib Width= Beam Length= Beam Self-Weight= Floor Dead Load= Floor Live Load=	3.125 30 116 156.25 296.875	ft ft Ib/ft Ib/ft Ib/ft	
Floor Beam	Trib Width= Beam Length= Beam Self-Weight= Floor Dead Load= Floor Live Load=	3.125 30 116 156.25 296.875	ft ft Ib/ft Ib/ft Ib/ft	
Floor Beam	Trib Width= Beam Length= Beam Self-Weight= Floor Dead Load= Floor Live Load= M _D =	3.125 30 116 156.25 296.875	ft ft Ib/ft Ib/ft Ib/ft k-ft	[wl ² /8]
Floor Beam	Trib Width= Beam Length= Beam Self-Weight= Floor Dead Load= Floor Live Load= M _D = M.=	3.125 30 116 156.25 296.875 30.63 33.40	ft ft Ib/ft Ib/ft Ib/ft k-ft k-ft	[wl ² /8] [wl ² /8]
Floor Beam	Trib Width= Beam Length= Beam Self-Weight= Floor Dead Load= Floor Live Load= M _D = M _L =	3.125 30 1116 156.25 296.875 30.63 33.40	ft ft Ib/ft Ib/ft Ib/ft k-ft k-ft	[wl ² /8] [wl ² /8]
Floor Beam	Trib Width= Beam Length= Beam Self-Weight= Floor Dead Load= Floor Live Load= M _D = M _L = V _D =	3.125 30 116 156.25 296.875 30.63 33.40	ft ft Ib/ft Ib/ft Ib/ft k-ft k-ft	[wl ² /8] [wl ² /8] [wl/2]
<u>Floor Beam</u>	Trib Width= Beam Length= Beam Self-Weight= Floor Dead Load= Floor Live Load= M _D = M _L = V _D = V _L =	3.125 30 116 156.25 296.875 30.63 33.40 4.08 4.45	ft ft Ib/ft Ib/ft Ib/ft k-ft k-ft	[wl ² /8] [wl ² /8] [wl/2] [wl/2]
<u>Floor Beam</u>	Trib Width= Beam Length= Beam Self-Weight= Floor Dead Load= Floor Live Load= M _D = M _L = V _D = V _L =	3.125 30 116 156.25 296.875 30.63 33.40 4.08 4.45	ft ft Ib/ft Ib/ft Ib/ft k-ft k-ft k	[wl ² /8] [wl ² /8] [wl/2] [wl/2]

SCBF Columns

Total column load including reaction from unbalanced brace forces

Sum of loads including brace frame beams acting at columns

Total Dead Load=	44.40	k	
Total Live Load=	24.32	k	
Total Snow Load=	8.96	k	
P _u =	84.20	k	
Distance to Opposite Col.=	30	ft	
Unbalanced Brace Forces (Treated	as seisn	nic loads)	
Roof Beam, Q _{bv} =	115	k	[ref. Q _{bv} , SCBF Upper Brace Design]
Floor Beam, Q _{bv} =	172	k	[ref. Q _{bv} , SCBF Lower Brace Design]
Load Factor=	1.3		[ref. Load Combinations (5)]
Roof Beam, P.,=	149.5	k	
Eleor Beem D -	2226	k	
FIOOF Beatin, P _u =	223.0	К	
Distance from Column=	15	ft	
Lateral Seismic Loads			
Load Factor=	1.3		[ref. Load Combinations (5)]
Force @ Roof=	30	k	
Factored Force=	39	k	
Height Above Ground=	32	ft	
Force @ Floor=	46	k	
Factored Force=	59.8	k	
Height Above Ground=	16	ft	
Column Reaction			
Column Design Force=	344.2	k	[Summing Moments about Column Base]

Summary of	OCBF Memb	per Loads	s from RISA	
Column Left (M1)	Max Ax	ial Load		
5 (+)	57.884	kips		
5 (-)	99.746	kips		
7 (+)	12.673	kips		
7 (-)	54.529	kips		
Column Right (M2)	Max Ax	ial Load		
5 (+)	99.729	kips		
5 (-)	57.9	kips		
7 (+)	54.529	kips		
7 (-)	12.673	kips		
Column Design Forces				
Max Compression Force=	99.746	kips		
Lower Brace Left (M5)				
Load Combination	Max Ax	ial Load	Amplified Se	eismic
5 (+)	-64.472	kips	-103.4 kip	s
5 (-)	80.411	kips	119.245 kip	S
7 (+)	-69.8	kips	-108.678 kip	S
7 (-)	74.714	kips	113.498 kip	S
Lower Brace Right (M6)				
Load Combination	Max Ax	ial Load	Amplified Se	eismic
5 (+)	80.411	kips	119.243 kip	s
5 (-)	-64.471	kips	-103.399 kip	s
7 (+)	74.714	kips	113.498 kip	s
7 (-)	-69.8	kips	-108.678 kip	S
Lower Brace Design Forces				
Max Tension Force=	-69.8	kips	-108.678 kip	s
Max Compression Force=	80.411	kips	119.245 kip	S
Upper Brace Left (M7)				
Load Combination	Max Ax	ial Load	Amplified Se	eismic
5 (+)	-26.629	kips	-42.094 kip	s
5 (-)	31.25	kips	46.697 kip	S
7 (+)	-27.565	kips	-43.027 kip	s
7 (-)	30.116	kips	45.56 kip	s
Upper Brace Right (M8)				
Load Combination	Max Ax	ial Load	Amplified Se	ismic
5 (+)	31.249	kips	46.696 kip	s
5 (-)	-26.628	kips	-42.094 kip	s
7 (+)	30.116	, kips	45.56 kip	s
7 (-)	-27.565	kips	-43.027 kip	s
Unner Brace Design Forces		-		
Max Tension Force=	-27 565	kins	-43 027 kin	s
Max Compression Force=	31.25	kips	46.697 kip	- S

Summary of SCBF Member Loads from RISA							
Column Left (M1)	Max Axi	ial Load	Amplifie	ed Seismic			
5 (+)	66.7	kips	60.3	kips			
5 (-)	90.3	kips	96.7	kips			
7 (+)	21.7	kips	15.3	kips			
7 (-)	45.3	kips	51.7	kips			
Column Right (M2)	Max Axi	al Load	Amplifie	ed Seismic			
5 (+)	90.3	kips	96.7	kips			
5 (-)	66.7	kips	60.3	kips			
7 (+)	45.3	kips	51.7	kips			
7 (-)	21.7	kips	15.3	kips			
Column Design Forces							
Max Compression Force=	90.3	kips	96.7	kips			
Lower Brace Left (M5)							
Load Combination	Max Axi	al Load	Amplifie	ed Seismic			
5 (+)	-30.7	kips	-52.3	kips			
5 (-)	49.7	, kips	71.2	kips			
7 (+)	-36.8	kips	-58.3	, kips			
7 (-)	43.4	kips	64.8	kips			
Lower Brace Right (M6)		·		·			
Load Combination	May Ayi	hentlici	Amplifi	d Seismic			
5 (+)	/Q 7	kins	71 2	king			
5 (-)	-20.7	kips	-522	kips			
J (-)	-30.7	kips	-32.5	kips			
7 (+)	45.4	kips	04.0 FR 2	kips			
7 (-)	-30.8	ĸips	-28.3	кірѕ			
Lower Brace Design Forces		_	_				
Max Tension Force=	-36.8	kips	-58.3	kips			
Max Compression Force=	49.7	kips	71.2	kips			
Upper Brace Left (M7)							
Load Combination	Max Axi	al Load	Amplifie	ed Seismic			
5 (+)	-13.9	kips	-22.6	kips			
5 (-)	19.1	kips	27.8	kips			
7 (+)	-15	kips	-23.7	kips			
7 (-)	17.8	kips	26.6	kips			
Upper Brace Right (M8)							
Load Combination	Max Axi	ial Load	Amplifie	ed Seismic			
5 (+)	19.1	kips	27.8	kips			
5 (-)	-13.9	kips	-22.6	kips			
7 (+)	17.8	kips	26.6	kips			
7 (-)	-15	kips	-23.7	kips			
Upper Brace Design Forces							
Max Tension Force=	-15	kips	-23.7	kips			
Max Compression Force=	19.1	kips	27.8	kips			

Appendix C - OCBF Member Designs

Upper Brace Design (OCBF)

Member Loads					
Factored Compressive Forc. P.=	31.3	k	[From	RISA]	
Factored Tensile Force, T _u =	27.6	k	[From	RISA]	
Mombor Proportios		-			AISC Manual 14th od
Member Properties					
Horizontal Component Length=	15	ft			
Vertical Component Length=	16.17	ft			
Brace Length 1-	22.05	ft			
Brace Length, L=	264.64	in			
Member Selection:	HSS 7	.50x(0.312		Tbl 1-13
E=	29000	ksi			
F _y =	42	ksi			Tbl 2-4
F _u =	58	ksi			Tbl 2-4
D= +-	7.5 0.201	in in			Thl 1-13
Δ =	6 5 9	in ²			Tbl 1-13
D/t=	25.8				Tbl 1-13
r=	2.55	in			Tbl 1-13
Check Slenderness					
k=	1				AISC 360-10: Tbl C-A-7.4
Brace Slenderness Limit=	105.11			[4√(E/F _v)]	AISC 341-10: F1.5b
				- · · · y/2	
KL/r=	103.8	<	105.1		Member not Slender, OK
Check Local Buckling					
λ=	25.800			[λ=D/t]	AISC Manual 14th ed. Tbl 1-13
λ_{md} =	30.38			[λ _{md} =.044E/I	F _y] AISC 341-10 Tbl D1.1
	λ	<	λ_{md}		Member is Seismically Compact, OK

4.71√(E/F _v)=	123.76						
KL/r=	103.8	<	123.8	Us	e Eqn E3-2 f	or Fcr	E3
F _e =	26.57	ksi		[F _e =π ₂ E/(K	(L/r) ₂]		Eqn E3-4
F _{cr} =	21.67	ksi		[Fcr=(.658	8^(Fy/Fe))*Fነ	/]	Eqn 3-2
Φ=	0.9						E1(b)
P _n =	142.8	k		$[P_n = F_{cr}A_g]$			Eqn E3-1
ΦP _n =	128.6	k	>	31.3	k	Brace is Ad	equate in Compression
Tensile Strength of Brace							AISC 360-10
Tensile Yielding Φ=	0.9						D2(a)
P _n =	276.78 249.10	k k		$[P_n = F_y A_g]$			Eqn D2-1
Tensile Rupture Φ=	0.75						D2(b)
P _n = DP _n =	382.22 286.67	k k		[P _n =F _u A _e ; ,	A _e =A _g]		Eqn D2-2
Tensile Capacity, ΦP _n =	249.10	k	>	27.6	k	Brace is a	Adequate in Tension

R _y =	1.4			Tbl A3.1
Expected Yield Strength of Brace, P_t =	387.5	k	$[P_t=R_yF_yA_g]$	F1.4.4a(1)(i)(a)
Load Effect (Amplified Seismic), T _u =	43.1	k	[RISA Analysis]	F1.4.4a(1)(i)(b)
			ASCE 7-10 SEISI	111C LOBU COMDO 5 14.4.2.5
Assumed Tension Brace Force,T _u =P _t =	43.1	k [I	Min. of Expected Yield Strength and Amp. I	Load Effect]
Buckled Compressive Strength, P _c =	42.85	k	[.3P _c]	F1.4.4a(1)(ii)
Assumed Min. Compression Force, P _u =	42.85	k	(For Unbalanced Beam Loads)	
Max. Compression Load Effect=	46.7	K	[RISA Analysis, based on Amplified Seism	ic Loads]
Horizontal Component, P _{tx} =	29.31	k		
Vertical Component, P _{ty} =	31.59	k		
Horizontal Component, P _{cx} =	29.15	k		
Vertical Component, P _{cy} =	31.41	k		
Unbalanced Vert. Load, Q _{bv} =	0	k	$[Q_{bv}=P_{ty}-P_{cy}]$ (On roof beam)	
Unbalanced Horiz. Load, Q _{bp} =	29	k	$[Q_{bp}=(P_{tx}+P_{cx})/2]$ (On roof beam)	

Lower Brace Design (OCBF)

Member Loads					
Factored Compressive Force, P.=	80.5	k	[From	RISA]	
Factored Tensile Force, T _u =	69.8	k	[From	RISA]	
Mombor Droportion					AICC Monual 14th ad
Member Properties					AISC Manual 14th ed.
Horizontal Component Length=	15	ft			
Vertical Component Length=	15.24	ft			
		C 1			
Brace Length, L=	21.38	ft in			
	230.00				
Member Selection:	HSS 7	.50x0	0.312		Tbl 1-13
E= r	29000	ksi			
Fy=	42	KSI			IDI 2-3
F _u =	58	KSI			1bl 2-4
D=	7.5	in			Tbl 1-13
t=	0.291	in			Tbl 1-13
A _g =	6.59	in²			Tbl 1-13
D/t=	25.8				Tbl 1-13
r=	2.55	in			Tbl 1-13
Check Slenderness					
k-	1				
κ-	T				AISC 500-10. TBI C-A-7.1
Brace Slenderness Limit=	105.11			[4√(E/F _y)]	F1.5b
KL/r=	100.6	<	105.1		Member not Slender, OK
Check Local Buckling					
)-	25 800			[) -D/+]	AISC Manual 14th od. Thi 1.12
Λ-	25.000			[,(=0, t]	
$\lambda_{md}=$	30.38			[λ _{md} =.044E/I	F _y] AISC 341-10 Tbl D1.1
	λ	<	λ_{md}		Member is Seismically Compact, OK

	4.71√(E/F _y)=	123.76						
	KL/r=	100.6	<	123.8	U	se Eqn E3-2	for Fcr	E3
	F _e =	28.27	ksi		[F _e =π ₂ E/(KL/r) ₂]		Eqn E3-4
	F _{cr} =	22.55	ksi		[Fcr=(.65	8^(Fy/Fe))*F	y]	Eqn 3-2
	Ф=	0.9						E1(b)
	P _n =	148.6	k		[P _n =F _{cr} A _g]	l		Eqn E3-1
	ΦP _n =	133.7	k	>	80.5	k	Brace is Ad	equate in Compression
Tensile Strength of Brace								AISC 360-10
Tensile Yielding	Ф=	0.9						D2(a)
	P _n = ΦP _n =	276.78 249.10	k k		$[P_n = F_y A_g]$			Eqn D2-1
Tensile Rupture	Φ=	0.75						D2(b)
	$P_n = \Phi P_n =$	382.22 286.67	k k		[P _n =F _y A _e ;	A _e =A _g]		Eqn D2-2
Tensile Ca	apacity, ΦP _n =	249.10	k	>	69.8	k	Brace is a	Adequate in Tension

R _y =	1.4			Tbl A3.1
Expected Yield Strength, T _u =	387.5	k	$[P_t=R_yF_yA_g]$	F1.4.4a(1)(i)(a)
Load Effect (Amp. Seismic Load), T _u = (For Tension Brace)	108.7	k	[RISA Analysis]	CE 7-10 Seismic Load Combo 5 14.4.2.3 F1.4.4a(1)(i)(b)
Assumed Tension Force, T _u =P _t =	108.7	k	[Min. of Expected Yi	eld Strength and Amp. Load Effect]
Buckled Compressive Strength, P _c =	44.58	k	[.3P _c]	F1.4.4a(1)(ii)
Assumed Min. Compression, P _u =	44.58	k		
Max. Compression Load Effect=	119.3	k	[RISA Analysis, based	d on Amp. Seismic Loads]
Horizontal Component, P _{tx} =	76.25	k		
Vertical Component, P _{ty} =	77.47	k		
Horizontal Component, P _{cx} =	31.27	k		
Vertical Component, P _{cy} =	31.77	k		
Unbalanced Vertical Load, Q _{bv} =	46	k	$[P_{ty}-P_{cy}]$ (on floor bea	am)
Unbalanced Horizontal Load, Q_{bh} =	54	k	$[(P_{tx}+P_{cx})/2]$ (on floor	r beam)

Column Design Design (OCBF) Reference: AISC 341-10 UNO

Member Loads					
P.=	100	k	[Factore	ed Compression, From RISA	Al
T _u =	0	k	[Factore	ed Tension, From RISA]	.1
Momber Droparties					AISC Manual 14th ad
Member Properties					AISC Manual 14th ed.
I _u =	16.00	ft	(Columr	unbraced Length)	
I _u =	192.00	in	(Columr	u Unbraced Length)	
Member Selection:	W12x40				
E=	29000	ksi			
F _v =	50	ksi			Tbl 2-4
F _u =	65	ksi			Tbl 2-4
A _g =	11.7	in ²			Tbl 1-1
d=	11.9	in			Tbl 1-1
t _w =	0.295	in			Tbl 1-1
b _f =	8.01	in			Tbl 1-1
t _f =	0.515	in			Tbl 1-1
k=	1.020	in			Tbl 1-1
h/t _w =	33.6				Tbl 1-1
r _x =	5.13	in			Tbl 1-1
r _y =	1.94	in			Tbl 1-1
Check Local Buckling					AISC 360-10: B4/Tbl B4.1
λ_{f} =	7.78			$[\lambda=b_f/2t_f]$	
λ _r =	13.49			$[\lambda_r = .56 V (E/F_{y)}]$	Tbl B4.1a
	λ	<	λ.	Flanges are	not Slender. OK
	~		- *r		
2					

33.60 $[\lambda=h/t_w]$ λ_w= $[\lambda_r=1.49 V(E/F_{y)}]$ λ_r= 35.88 Tbl B4.1a λ λ_{r} Web is not Slender, OK <

К=	1			Tbl C-A-7.1
4.71√(E/F _y)=	113.43			
KL/r=	99.0	<	113.43 Use Eqn E3	-2 E3
F _e =	29.22	ksi	$[F_e = \pi_2 E/(KL/r)_2]$	Eqn E3-4
F _{cr} =	24.43	ksi	[Fcr=(.658^(Fy/Fe))*Fy] Eqn 3-2
Ф=	0.9			E1(b)
P _n =	285.8	k	$[P_n = F_{cr}A_g]$	Eqn E3-1
ΦP _n =	257.3	k	> 100 k C	olumn is Adequate in Compression
Tensile Strength of Brace				AISC 360-10
Tensile Yielding				D2(b)
Ф=	0.9			
P _n =	585	k	$[P_n = F_y A_g]$	Eqn D2-1
P _n = Φ P _n =	585 526.50	k k	[P _n =F _y A _g]	Eqn D2-1
$P_n \texttt{=}$ $\PhiP_n \texttt{=}$ Tensile Rupture	585 526.50	k k	[P _n =F _y A _g]	Eqn D2-1 D2(b)
$$P_n$=$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$	585 526.50 0.75	k k	[P _n =F _y A _g]	Eqn D2-1 D2(b)
$P_n = \Phi P_n =$ Tensile Rupture $\Phi = P_n =$	585 526.50 0.75 760.5	k k k	$[P_n = F_y A_g]$ $[P_n = F_y A_e; A_e = A_g]$	Eqn D2-1 D2(b) Eqn D2-2
$P_{n}= \\ \Phi P_{n}= \\ Tensile Rupture \\ \Phi= \\ P_{n}= \\ \Phi P_{n}= \\ \Phi$	585 526.50 0.75 760.5 570.38	k k k	[P _n =F _y A _g] [P _n =F _y A _e ; A _e =A _g]	Eqn D2-1 D2(b) Eqn D2-2

Floor Beam Design Design (OCBF) Reference: AISC 341-10 UNO

Load Combination Fact	ors						
Combination 5	5: ASCE 7-	10 12.	4.3.2				
Dead Load=	1.3084						
Live Load=	1.0						
Seismic Load=	2.0						
Member Loads							
M _p =	27.25	k-ft					Member Loads Spreadsheet
_D	27.23						Member Loads Spreadsheet
۱۷۱ <u>۲</u> –	242			** / 4151			
Iviu _{Qbv} =	343	K-TT	[IVI _{Qb} =Q _t	₀ *L/4][LOad	a aiready fac	ctored	Lower Brace Design
V _D =	3.7	k					Member Loads Spreadsheet
V _L =	4.5	k					Member Loads Spreadsheet
Vu _{obv} =	23	k		[Load alre	adv factore	d]	Lower Brace Design
QUV				[~]	
M _u =	411.8	k-ft		(Factored	Moment)		
P _u =	53.8	k		$[P_u=Q_{bh}]$ (Factored Co	mpression)	
V _u =	32.2	k		(Factored	Shear)		
V _{u (D+L)} =	9.3	k		(Shear wit	thout seismi	c contributi	ons)
Member Properties							AISC Manual 14th ed.
Beam Length, L=	30.00	ft	=	360.00	in		
Member Selection	W/18y76						
Weinber Selection.	1010//0						
E=	29000	ksi					
F _v =	50	ksi					Tbl 2-4
F _u =	65	ksi					Tbl 2-4
A _g =	22.3	in ²					Tbl 1-1
d=	18.2	in					Tbl 1-1
t _w =	0.43	in					Tbl 1-1
k=	1.08	in					Tbl 1-1
T=	15.13	in					Tbl 1-1
b _f /2t _f =	8.11						Tbl 1-1
h/t _w =	37.8						Tbl 1-1
I _x =	1330	in ⁴					Tbl 1-1
S _x =	146	in ³					Tbl 1-1
r _x =	7.73	in					Tbl 1-1
Z _x =	163.0	in ³					Tbl 1-1
r _v =	2.61	in					Tbl 1-1

λ_{f} =	8.11			$[\lambda = b_f/2t_f]$	
$\lambda_p=$	9.15			$[\lambda_r=.38v(E/F_{y)}]$	Tbl B4.1b
	λ	<	λ_r	Flanges are Compact, C	ЭК
$\lambda_w =$	37.80			$[\lambda=h/t_w]$	
$\lambda_r =$	90.55			$[\lambda_r=3.76 v(E/F_{y})]$	Tbl B4.1b
	λ	<	λ_r	Web is Compact, OK	
Flexural Strength of Bea	am				AISC 360-10
Compression flange is	assumed	l to be a	adequate	ly braced continuously. Therefore $L_b < L_p$ and	d lateral-torsional
			buck	ling does not apply.	
Ф-	0.0				E1/1)
Ψ-	0.5				1 1(1)
M _n =	679.17	k-ft			Eqn F2-1
ΦM _n =	611.25	k-ft			
Compressive Strength o	of Beam				AISC 360-10
k=	1				Tbl C-A-7.1
4.71√(E/F _y)=	113.43				
KL/r=	137.9	>	113.43	Use Equation F3-3	F3
	10,10		110110		20
F _e =	15.04	ksi		$[F_e = \pi_2 E / (KL/r)_2]$	Eqn E3-4
F _{cr} =	13.19	ksi		[Fcr=.877Fe	Eqn 3-3
Ф=	0.9				E1(b)
P _n =	294.2	k		$[P_n = F_{cr}A_g]$	Eqn E3-1
ΦP _n =	264.8	k			



Roof Beam Design Design (OCBF)

Reference: AISC 341-10 UNO

Load Combination Fact	ors			
Combination 5	: ASCE 7-	10 12.	4.3.2	
Dead Load=	1.3084			
Live Load=	1.0			
Snow Load=	0.2			
Seismic Load=	2.0			
Member Loads				
M _D =	12.8	k-ft		
M _L =	7.1	k-ft		
M _s =	8.4	k-ft		
Mu _{Qbv} =	1	k-ft	$[M_{Qb}=Q_{b}*L/4]$ [Load already factored]	Lower Brace Design
		_		
V _D =	1.7	k		
V _L =	1.0	k		
V _S =	1.2	k		
Vu _{Qbv} =	0	k	[Load already factored]	Lower Brace Design
M _u =	26.9	k-ft	(Factored Moment)	
P _u =	29.2	k	[P _u =Q _{bh}] (Factored Compression)	
V _u =	3.6	k	(Factored Shear)	
V _{u (D+L)} =	3.2	k	(Shear without seismic contributions)	

Beam Length, L=	30.00	ft				
Brace Length, L=	360.00	in				
Member Selection:	W10x33					
E=	29000	ksi				
F _v =	50	ksi				Tbl 2-4
F _u =	65	ksi				Tbl 2-4
		2				
A _g =	9.71	in				Tbl 1-1
d=	9.73	in				Tbl 1-1
t _w =	0.29	in				Tbl 1-1
k=	0.94	in				Tbl 1-1
T=	7.50	in				Tbl 1-1
b _f /2t _f =	9.15					Tbl 1-1
h/t _w =	27.1					Tbl 1-1
I _x =	171	in ⁴				Tbl 1-1
S _x =	35	in ³				Tbl 1-1
r _x =	4.19	in				Tbl 1-1
Z _x =	38.8	in ³				Tbl 1-1
r _y =	1.94	in				Tbl 1-1
Check Local Buckling					AISC 360-10:	B4/Tbl B4.1
λ _f =	9.15			$[\lambda = b_f/2t_f]$		
$\lambda_p =$	9.15			$[\lambda_r=.38V(E/F_{y)}]$		Tbl B4.1b
	λ	<	λ_r		Flanges are Compact, OK	
λ _w =	27.10			$[\lambda=h/t_w]$		

 $[\lambda_r=3.76 V(E/F_{\gamma})] TbI B4.1b$ < λ_r Web is Compact, OK

λ_r= 90.55

λ

Flexural Strength of Bea	am				AISC 360-10				
Compression flange is	Compression flange is assumed to be adequately braced continuously. Therefore L _b <l<sub>p and lateral-torsional buckling does not apply</l<sub>								
			DUCK	ing uses not apply.					
Ф=	0.9				F1(1)				
M =	161 67	k-ft			Fan F2-1				
$\Phi M_n =$	145.5	k-ft							
Compressive Strength	of Beam				AISC 360-10				
k=	1				Tbl C-A-7.1				
4.71√(E/F _y)=	113.43								
KL/r=	185.6	>	113.43	Use Equation E3-3	E3				
F _e =	8.31	ksi		$[F_e=\pi_2 E/(KL/r)_2]$	Eqn E3-4				
F _{cr} =	7.29	ksi		[Fcr=.877Fe	Eqn 3-3				
Ф=	0.9				E1(b)				
P _n =	70.8	k		$[P_n = F_{cr}A_g]$	Eqn E3-1				
ΦP _n =	63.7	k							
Second Order Effects					AISC 350-10: Appendix 8				
a-	1.0								
а= В ₂ =	1.0			[No translation of beam ends]					
P _{e1} =	377.6	k		$[P_{e1}=\pi^{2}EI/(K_{1}L)^{2}][K_{1}=1.0]$	Eqn A-8-5				
C _m =	1.0		[For me	mbers subject to transverse Loading]	A8.2.1(b)				
P _{nt} =	0.0	k							
P _{It} =	29.2	k							

 $[P_r = P_{nt} + B_2 P_{lt}]$ A-8-2

B ₁ =	1.08			
M _{nt} =	26.9	k-ft	$[B_1=C_m/(1-(\alpha P_r/P_{e1}))\geq 1]$	Eqn A-8-3
M _{It} =	0.0	k-ft		

M _{rx} =	29.15	k-ft	$[M_r = B_1 M_{nt} + B_2 M_{lt}]$	Eqn A-8-1
-------------------	-------	------	-----------------------------------	-----------

P_r=

29.2

k

Combined Loading					AISC 360-10: H1		
P _r /P _c =	0.459	>	0.1	Use Eqn H1-1a			
eam Interaction Ratio=	0.637	[(Pr/Pc	:)+{(8\9)*	((Mrx/Mcx)+(Mry/N	/lcy))}] Eqn H1-1a		
	0.637	<	1.0	Beam is Adequa	ate for Combined Bending-Compression		
Shear Strength of Beam AISC 360-10							
h/t _w Limit=	53.95			[2.24√(E/F _y)]			
h/t _w =	27.1	<	53.95				
Φ _v =	1				G2(a)		
C _v =	1				G2(a)		
A _w =	2.8217	in ²		[d*t _w]			
Vn=	84.7	k		[V _n =0.6*F _y *A _w *C _v]	Eqn G2-1		
ΦV _n =	84.7	k	>	3.56 k	Beam is Adequate in Shear		



Appendix D - OCBF Connection Designs



^{10/1/2012 8:08:22} PM

Gusset Plate Welded Design Design (OCBF) - At Floor Beam and Column

Loads to Plate				
Required Tensile Strength, T _u =	43.1	k	(Max. Load Effect, Ω=2.0)	Ref. Upper Brace Design
Req'd Compressive Strength, P _u =	46.7	k	(Max. Load Effect, Ω =2.0)	Ref. Upper Brace Design
Gusset Plate Properties				AISC Manual 14th ed.
Gusset Plate F =	36	ksi		Thl 2-4
Gusset Plate, F _{ug} =	58	ksi		Tbl 2-4
Gusset Length Along Beam, I _b =	22	in	[Measured from face of Col. to	o edge of gusset]
Gusset Length Along Column, I _c =	22.5	in	[Measured from face of Beam	to edge of gusset]
Brace Properties			Ref. Brace Calcula	ations, AISC Manual 14th ed.
F _{y-HSS} =	42	ksi		Tbl 2-4
F _{u-HSS} =	58	ksi		Tbl 2-4
t _{HSS} =	0.291	in		Tbl 1-13
A _{g-HSS} =	6.59	in ²		Tbl 1-13
D _{HSS} =	7.5	in		Tbl 1-13
Beam Properties Ref. Beam Calculations, AISC Manual 14th e				
F _{vewe} =	50	ksi		Tbl 2-4
y-wr Fwr=	65	ksi		Tbl 2-4
d _{Beam} =	18.2	in		Tbl 1-1
t _{w-beam} =	0.43	in		Tbl 1-1
k _{Beam} =	1.08	in		Tbl 1-1
T _{Beam} =	15.13	in		Tbl 1-1
Column Properties			Ref. Column Calcula	ations, AISC Manual 14th ed.
F _{y-WF} =	50	ksi		Tbl 2-4
F _{u-WF} =	65	ksi		Tbl 2-4
d _{col} =	11.9	in		Tbl 1-1
k _{Col} =	1.02	in		Tbl 1-1
t _{w-Col} =	0.30	in		Tbl 1-1
t _{f-Col} =	0.52	in		Tbl 1-1

Weld Properties			А	ISC Manual 14th ed.		
Weld F _{EXX} =	70	ksi				
Weld Unit Strength, Φr _n =	1.392	k/in * D	[Φ*(1/V2)*(1/16)*(0.6FEXX)]	Eqn J2-3 & Tbl J2.5		
Brace to Gusset Plate Weld				AISC 360-10		
Shear Rupture Strength, ΦR _{n-HSS} =	7.595	k/in	$[\Phi R_n = 0.75*0.6F_{u-HSS}t]$	Eqn J4-4		
Fillet Weld Strength, ΦR_{nw} = 0	Φ*(1/√2)*(D/16)*	(0.6F _{EXX}) [Φ=0.75]	Eqn J2-3 & Tbl J2.5		
Maximum Fillet Weld Size, D=	5.46	/16"	$[D=\Phi R_{n-HSS}/\Phi R_{nw}]$			
Use Weld Size, D=	3	8 /16"				
Number of Fillet Welds=	4					
Min. Fillet Weld Length, I _w =	2.58	in	$[I_{w-min}=T_u/\Phi R_{nw}]$			
Use Weld Length, I _w =	7.5	in	= 7.5			
Weld Length \geq D of Brac	e :. Wel	d Meets R	equirements of Tbl D3.1 for Shear Lag I	actor		
Weld Strength, ΦR _{nw} =	125.3	k	[D=Qty.*Φ*I _w *D*Weld Unit Strength]			
фр.	125.2	Ŀ		lde eve Cufficient		
$\Psi R_{nw} =$	125.3	К	> 43.1 K We	elos are sufficient		
Gusset Plate Thickness				AISC 360-10		
Min. t to Develop Force, t _{min} =	0.110	in	[T _u /(2Φ(0.6F _{ug})I _w)][Φ=0.75]	Ref. Eqn J4-4		
	0.5	•				
Use Gusset Plate, t _g =	0.5	IN				
Shear Lag Rupture of Brace				AISC 360-10		
	0.0005	•				
HSS Slot Width=	0.0625	in	(Each Side of Gusset Plate)			
Net Area, A _n =	6.23	in ₂	[A _n =A _g -Area of 2 Slots]			
I _w =	7.5	in	< 9.75 in [1.3D]	Tbl D3.1		
¥=	2.39	in		ThI D3 1		
ň						
U=	0.682		$[1-(x/I_w)]$ for $I_w < 1.3D_{HSS}$	Tbl D3.1		
Effective Area of HSS, A_e =	4.24	in ₂		$[A_e = U^*A_n]$		Eqn D3-1
---------------------------------------	---------	-----------------	---	---------------------------------------	--	-------------------------------
P _n =	246.17	k		$[P_n = A_e F_u]$	[Φ=0.75]	Eqn D2-2
ΦP _n =	184.63	k	>	43.1	k	Brace is Adequate
Whitmore Section						AISC 360-10
I _w =	7.5	in				
Whitmore Width, L _w =	16.16	in		[2*l _w tan(3	0°)+D _{HSS}]	
Tension Yeild of I_w , ΦR_n =	290.88	k		$[\Phi R_n = \Phi [F_y]$	_{/g} *L _w *t _g][Φ=	0.90] Eqn J4-1
ΦR _n =	290.88	k	>	43.1	k	lw is Adequate
Connection Interface Forces (Uniform	Force M	ethod)			AISC Manua	al 14th ed. Part 13, pg. 13-3
Gusset to Beam Weld Setback=	4	in		[Width & I	Height of Cli	p]
Angle from Column to Brace, Θ=	42.86	degrees				
Beam Eccentricity, e _b =	9.100	in		[e _b =d _{beam} /	2]	
Beam Eccentricity, e _c =	5.950	in		[e _c =d _{column}	/2]	
α=	13	in				
β=	11.25	in				
e₅tanΘ-e₅=	2.493	in				
α-βtanΘ	2.562	in				
Net Eccentricity=	-0.069	in		(Negligible	2)	
r=	27.8	in		[Sqrt((α+e	_c) ² +(β+e _b) ²)]	
Vuc=	17.44	k		[(β/r)*T]		
H _{uc} =	9.22	k		[(e _c /r)*T _u]		
V _	1/1 10	k		[(ß/r)*T]		
V _{ub} -	20.45	K L		נוציין י _u]		
H _{ub} =	20.15	К		$[(e_c/r)^*I_u]$		

Load Angle=	35.0	degrees		[arctan(V _u	_b /H _{ub}]	
Thickness of Thinner Part= Min. Weld Size, D=	0.29 3	in /16"		[Beam We	eb or Gusset	thickness] Tbl J2.4
Weld Size, D=	3	/16"		(One weld	l each side)	
Weld Length, I=	22.00	in		[l _b -Weld S	etback]	
Eccentricity, e _x =	9.1	in		[d _{beam} /2]		
a=	0.414			[e _x /l]	(Round up	for "a" in table)
"a" value used in table= C=	0.4 2.81					Tbl 8-4
Ф=	0.75					
Strength of Weld Group, ΦR_n =	139.1	k				
Eccentric Force, R _{ub} =	30.7	k		[1.25√(V _{ub}	² +H _{ub} ²)]	
ΦR _n =	139.1	k	>	30.7	k	Weld is Adequate
Gusset Plate Rupture at Beam Weld						AISC 360-10: Section J
Set gusset p	late she	ar rupture	strength	equal to v	veld strength	I
t _{g-min} =	0.320	in	[(2*Φr _n *	*D _{req})/(.75*	*.6F _{ug})]	Ref. Eqn J4-4
t=	0.5	in	>	0.320	in	Thickness is Adequate
Because the gusset plate is sufficient and shear yielding.	for shea	r rupture	based on	weld size,	the plate is	also sufficient for tension
Beam Web Local Yielding						AISC 360-10
Distance to Force from Beam End= α =	13.00	in	≤ d=	18.2	in	Use Eqn J-10-3
Beam Force Applied at α , ΦR_n =	524.88	k	> Vub=	14.10	k	ОК
[ΦRn=Φ(5k	Beam+l	wb)Fy-WF	tw-beam] [Φ=1.00]		Eqn J10-3

Set gusset plate shear rupture strength equal to weld strength									
t _{g-min} =	0.320	in	[(2*Φr _n	*D _{req})/(.75	*.6F _{ug})]	Ref	. Eqn J4-4		
t=	0.5	in	>	0.320	in	Thickness is Ac	lequate		
Because the gusset plate is sufficient	for shea	r rupture	based or	weld size	, the plate is	also sufficient fo	r tension		
Shear Plate						AISC Manua	l 14th ed.		
Diato F	26	koj							
Plate, F _{y-pl} = Plate, F	30 58	KSI					1012-4 Thl 2-4		
	50	KOI					1012-4		
Plate Thickness, t _{pl} =	0.5	in							
Plate Height, h _{pl} =	43.75	in							
Plate Width, w _{pl} =	3.5	in							
Gusset to Shear Plate Weld						AIS	SC 360-10		
Load Angle=	62.1	degrees		[arctan(V	_{uc} /H _{uc}] (Rour	nd down in table)			
Thickness of Thinner Part=	0.50	in		[Shear Pla	ate or Gusse	t thickness]			
Min. Weld Size, D=	3	/16"		-		-	Tbl J2.4		
Weld Size, D=	3	/16"		(One weld	d each side)				
Weld Length, I=	22.50	in		[l _c]					
kl=	3	in		(Distance	hetween fil	let welds)			
	5			(Edge of s	shear plate t	o edge of gusset)			
k=	0.13			[kl/l]	(Round do	own in table)			
Eccentricity, e _x =	2	in		[Col. Flang	ge to Center	of weld group]			
a=	0.089			[e _x /l]	(Round up	o for "a" in table)			
a value used in table=	0.2								
k value used in table=	0.1								
C=	3.92						Tbl 8-4		
Ф=	0.75								
Strength of Weld Group, ΦR _n =	198.5	k							

99

Eccentric Force, R _{ub} =	24.7	k		[1.25√(V _{uc}	² +H _{uc} ²)]	
ΦR _n =	198.5	k	>	24.7	k	Weld is Adequate
Shear Plate to Column Weld (at gusset	:)					AISC 360-10
Load Angle=	62.1	degrees		[arctan(V _u	_{uc} /H _{uc}]	
Thickness of Thinner Part= Min. Weld Size, D=	0.43 3	in /16"		[Shear Pla	ite or Gusset	thickness] Tbl J2.4
Weld Size, D=	3	/16"		(One weld	l each side)	
Weld Length, I=	22.50	in		[l _c]		
Eccentricity, e _x =	5.95	in		[d _{Col} /2]		
a=	0.264			[e _x /l]	(Round up	for "a" in table)
a value used in table= C=	0.5 2.75					Tbl 8-4
Ф=	0.75					
Strength of Weld Group, ΦR _n =	139.2	k		[Φ*D*I*C]	
Eccentric Force, R _{ub} =	24.7	k		[1.25V(V _{uc}	² +H _{uc} ²)]	
ΦR _n =	139.2	k	>	24.7	k	Weld is Adequate
Gusset Plate Rupture at Column Weld						AISC 360-10: Section J
Set gusset p	late she	ar rupture	strength	n equal to v	veld strength)
t _{g-min} =	0.320	in	[(2*Φr _n	*D _{req})/(.75*	*.6F _{ug})]	Ref. Eqn J4-4
t=	0.5	in	>	0.320	in	Thickness is Adequate

Because the gusset plate is sufficient for shear rupture based on weld size, the plate is also sufficient for tension and shear yielding.

Force applied to column is loca	Force applied to column is located at a distance greater than the depth of column from column end								
ΦR _n =	407.1	k	> Huc=	9.22	k	ОК			
[ΦR _n	=Φ(5k _{Col} -	+l _{wc})F _{y-WF} t、	_{w-Col}] [Φ=:	1.00]			Eqn J10-2		
Foress at Doom to Column Connection						٨	150 260 10		
Forces at Beam to Column Connection						A	13C 300-10		
Shear, V _u =	23.45	k	[V _{ub} +V _u	from gravit	y loads, ref.	beam design]			
Axial, Hu=	20.15	k	[H _{ub}]						
Beam to Shear Plate Weld						A	ISC 360-10		
Load Angle=	40.7	degrees		[arctan(V _u	_c /H _{uc}] (Roun	d down in table)			
Thickness of Thinner Part=	0.43	in		[Shear Pla	te or Gusset	thickness]			
Min. Weld Size, D=	3	/16"					Tbl J2.4		
Weld Size, D=	3	/16"		(One weld	l each side)				
Weld Length, I _w =	17.12	in		$[d_{beam}\text{-}k_{bea}]$	_m]		Tbl 1-1		
kl=	3	in		(Distance (Edge of sl	between fille hear plate to	et welds) edge of gusset)			
k=	0.175			[kl/l]	(Round dov	wn in table)			
Eccentricity, e _x =	2	in		[Col. Flang	ge to Center	of weld group]			
a=	0.117			[e _x /l]	(Round up	for "a" in table)			
a value used in table=	0.1								
k value used in table=	0.1						71.0.4		
C=	4.49						1618-4		
Ф=	0.75								
Strength of Weld Group, ΦR _n =	173.0	k		[Φ *D*I*C]]				
Eccentric Force, R _{ub} =	38.6	k		[1.25 V(V _{uc}	² +H _{uc} ²)]				
ΦR _n =	173.0	k	>	38.6	k	Weld is Ade	equate		

Load Angle=	40.7	degrees		$[arctan(V_{uc}/H_{uc}]$	
Thickness of Thinner Part= Min. Weld Size, D=	0.50 3	in /16"		[Shear Plate or Colur	nn Flange thickness] Tbl J2.4
Weld Size, D=	3	/16"		(One weld each side))
Weld Length, I _w =	17.12	in		$[d_{beam}\text{-}k_{beam}]$	Tbl 1-1
Eccentricity, e _x =	5.95	in		[d _{Col} /2]	
a=	0.348	I		[e _x /l] (Round u	p for "a" in table)
a value used in table= C=	0.3 3.48				Tbl 8-4
Ф=	0.75	I			
Strength of Weld Group, ΦR_n =	134.0	k		[Φ*D*I*C]	
Eccentric Force, R _{ub} =	38.6	k		$[1.25 \sqrt{(V_{uc}^{2} + H_{uc}^{2})}]$	
ΦR _n =	134.0	k	>	38.6 k	Weld is Adequate
Beam Web Shear Strength					AISC 360-10
ΦVn=	192.84	k		[Φ.6F _y t _w T]	Eqn J4-3
ΦVn=	192.84	k	>	23.45 k	Beam Web is Adequate

Whitmore Area, A _g =	8.08	in ²				
K= L= r=	1.2 14.70 0.144	in in		[t/v12]		Tbl C-A-7.1
KL/r=	122.2	>	25		Use Chapte	er E
4.71V(E/F _y)=	133.68					
KL/r=	122.2	<	133.68		Use Eqn E3	E3
F _e =	19.18	ksi		[F _e =π ² E/(KL	_/r) ²]	Eqn E3-4
F _{cr} =	16.41	ksi		[Fcr=(.658^	^(Fy/Fe))*Fy	·] Eqn 3-2
Ф=	0.9					E1(b)
P _n =	132.6	k		$[P_n = F_{cr}A_g]$		Eqn E3-1
Compression Strength, ΦP _n =	119.3	k	>	46.70	k	ОК
Beam Web Crippling					AISC	Manual 14th ed. Chapter 9
N/d=	1.21	>	0.2			
For	W18x76	Beam				
ΦR _s =	95	k				Tbl 9-4
ΦR ₆ =	11.3	k/in				Tbl9-4
ΦR _n =	343.6	k		[ΦR ₅ +ΦR ₆ Ν	۷]	pg. 9-19
ΦR _n =	343.6	k	>	46.7	k	ОК
Column Web Crippling						AISC 360-10: J10.3

Force applied to column is located at a distance greater than the depth of column from column end

R _n =	383.2	k	[0.8t _w ² {1+	$[0.8t_{w}^{2}$ {1+3(N/d)(t _w /t _f)1.5}Sqrt(EF _y wt _f /t _w)]						
Ф=	0.75									
ΦR _n =	287.4	k	>	9.22	k	OK				



Plate Material Properties				
F _y =	36	ksi		
F _u =	58	ksi		
E=	29000	ksi		
Brace Properties				
· · · ·				
F _{y-HSS} =	42	ksi		
F _{u-HSS} =	58	ksi		
A _{g-HSS} =	6.59	in ²		
t _{HSS} =	0.291	in		
D=	7.5	in		
		•		
Weld Properties				
Weld F _{EXX} =	70	ksi		
Weld Unit Strength, Φr _n =	1.392	k/in * D	[Φ*(1/√2)*(1/16)*(0.6FEXX)]	Eqn J2-3
Loads				
Max Tension Force, T _u =	108.7	k		Ref. Lower Brace
Max Compression Force, P _u =	119.3	k		Ref. Lower Brace
Max Brace Force=	119.3	k		
Vert. Brace Length=	16.73	ft	[Distance Between Workpoints	s]
Horiz. Brace Length=	15	ft		
Brace Angle=	48.12	Degrees	[arctan(Vert./Horiz.)]	
Total Horizontal Force=	152.21	k	[(Tu+Pu)*Cos(Brace Angle)]	
Vertical Force=	88.82	k	[Max of (Tu&Pu)*Sin(Brace An	gle)]
				0 - /1

Weld Size, D=	3	/16"			
Number of Welds=	4	L			
Weld Length, I _w = Weld Length ≥ D of B	7.5 race :. V	in Veld Meets Red	= quireme	7.5 in nts of Tbl D3.1 for Shear	Lag Factor
Weld Strength, ΦR _n =	125.3	k		[Φr _n *D*l _w *# of Welds]	
ΦR _n =	125.3	k	>	119.3 k	ОК
HSS Wall Shear Rupture					AISC 360-10
A _{nv} =	4.365	in ²		[2*I _w t _{HSS}]	
Shear Rupture Strength, ΦR _n =	113.9	k		$[\Phi^*0.6F_{u\text{-HSS}}^*A_{nv}]$	Eqn J4-4
ΦR _n =	113.9	k	>	108.7 k	ОК
Gusset Shear Rupture at Brace					AISC 360-10
Gusset Thickness, t _g =	0.5	in			
A _{nv} =	7.5	in ²		$[2*I_w t_{HSS}]$	
Shear Rupture Strength, ΦR _n =	195.8	k		[Φ*0.6F _{u-HSS} *A _{nv}] [Φ=0.	75] Eqn J4-4
ΦR _n =	195.8	k	>	108.7 k	ОК

HSS Slot=	0.0625	in	(Each Side	of Gusset P	late for Clearan	ce)
Net Area, A _n =	6.23	in ₂		[A _n =A _g -Are	ea of 2 Slots]	
I _w =	7.50	in	<	9.75	in [1.3D]	Tbl D3.1
x=	2.39	in				Tbl D3.1
U=	0.682			[1-(x/l _w)] f	or I _w <1.3D _{HSS}	Tbl D3.1
Effective Area of HSS, A_e =	4.24	in ²		[A _e =U*A _n]		Eqn D3-1
P _n =	246.17	k		[P _n =A _e F _u]	[Φ=0.75]	Eqn D2-2
ΦP _n =	184.63	k	>	108.7	k	ОК
Gusset Shear Yielding at Brace						AISC 360-10
Shear Yield Strength, ΦR _n =	349.06	k		[2*Ф*0.6F	^F _γ A _g] [Φ=1.0]	Eqn J4-3
ΦR _n =	349.06	k	>	108.70	k	ОК
Whitmore Section						AISC 360-10
Whitmore Width, L _w =	16.16	in		[2*l _w tan(3	0°)+D _{HSS}]	
A _g =	8.08	in ²		[L _w *t _g]		
Gusset Tensile Yielding at Brace						AISC 360-10
Whitmore Area, A _g =	8.08	in				
Tensile Yield Strength, ΦR _n =	261.80	in ²		[ΦF _γ A _g] [Φ	9=0.9]	Eqn J4-1
ΦP _n =	261.80	k	>	108.70	k	ОК

Whitmore Area, A _{effective} =A _g =	8.08	in ²					
Tensile Rupture Strength, ΦP_n =	351.49	k			[ΦF _u A _e] [Φ	0=0.75]	Eqn J4-1
ΦP _n =	351.49	k		>	108.70	k	ОК
Compression in Gusset							AISC 360-10
Whitmore Area, A _g =	8.08	in ²					
K= L= r=	1.2 5.15 0.144	in in			[t/√12]		Tbl C-A-7.1
KL/r=	42.84		>	25		Use Chapte	er E
4.71√(E/F _y)=	133.68						
KL/r=	42.8		<	133.68		Use Eqn E	3-2 E3
F _e =	155.99	ksi			[F _e =π ² E/(K	L/r) ²]	Eqn E3-4
F _{cr} =	32.69	ksi			[Fcr=(.658	^(Fy/Fe))*Fy] Eqn 3-2
Ф=	0.9						E1(b)
P _n =	264.1	k			$[P_n = F_{cr}A_g]$		Eqn E3-1
Compression Strength, ΦP _n =	237.7	k		>	119.30	k	ОК

AISC	360-10
,	300 ±0

Gusset Length, I _b =	44	in		[Length of Gusset Alon	g Beam]	
A _g =	22	in ₂		[l _b t _g]		
Shear Rupture Strength, ΦR _n =	574.2	k		[Φ*0.6F _{u-HSS} *A _{nv}] [Φ=0	.75]	Eqn J4-4
Shear Yield Strength, ΦR _n =	475.2	k		$[\Phi^* 0.6F_y A_g] [\Phi=1.0]$		Eqn J4-3
Governing ΦR _n =	475.2	k	>	152.21 k	ОК	
Vertical Shear in Gusset					AIS	C 360-10
Gusset Length, I _v =	14	in				
A _g =	7	in ₂		[l _b t _g]		
Shear Rupture Strength, ΦR _n =	182.7	k		[Φ*0.6F _{u-HSS} *A _{nv}] [Φ=0	.75]	Eqn J4-4
Shear Yield Strength, ΦR _n =	151.2	k		$[\Phi^* 0.6F_y A_g] [\Phi=1.0]$		Eqn J4-3
Governing ΦR _n =	151.2	k	>	88.82 k	ОК	



1 1/2" = 1'-0"



Gusset Plate (OCBF) at Roof Beam - 2 Braces

Plate Material Properties		
F _v =	36 ksi	
	58 ksi	
E= 29	0000 ksi	
Brace Properties		
Γ _{γ-HSS} =	42 KSI	
F _{u-HSS} =	58 KSI	
A _{g-HSS} = 6	.59 in	
t _{HSS} = 0.	291 in	
D=	7.5 in	
Weld Properties		
weid F _{EXX} =	70 KSI	
weld Unit Strength, $\Psi r_n = 1$.	392 K/IN * D	$[\Psi^{*}(1/V2)^{*}(1/16)^{*}(0.6FEXX)]$ Eqn J2-3
Loads		
Max Tension Force, T _u = 4	3.1 k	Ref. Lower Brace
Max Compression Force, P.,= 4	6.7 k	Ref. Lower Brace
Max Brace Force= 4	6.7 k	
Vort Prace Longth- 1	2 0 9 ft	[Distance Potween Workpoints]
Horiz Brace Length=	15 ft	
Brace Angle= 4	7.00 Degrees	[arctan(Vert./Horiz.)]
Total Horizontal Force= 6	1.25 k	[(Tu+Pu)*Cos(Brace Angle)]
Vertical Force= 34	4.15 k	[Max of (Tu&Pu)*Sin(Brace Angle)]

Weld Size, D=	3	/16"					
Number of Welds=	4						
Weld Length, I_w = Weld Length ≥ D of E	7.5 Brace :. '	in Weld Meet	= ts Requireme	7.5 ents of Tbl [in)3.1 for Shea	r Lag Factor	
Weld Strength, ΦR _n =	125.3	k		[Φr _n *D*l _w	*# of Welds]		
ΦR _n =	125.3	k	>	46.7	k	ОК	
HSS Wall Shear Rupture						AISC 3	60-10
A _{nv} =	4.365	in ²		[2*I _w t _{HSS}]			
Shear Rupture Strength, ΦR _n =	113.9	k		[Φ*0.6F _{u-F}	_{ISS} *A _{nv}]	Eq	_I n J4-4
ΦR _n =	113.9	k	>	43.1	k	ОК	
Gusset Shear Rupture at Brace						AISC 3	60-10
Gusset Thickness, t _g =	0.5	in					
A _{nv} =	7.5	in ²		$[2*I_wt_{HSS}]$			
Shear Rupture Strength, ΦR _n =	195.8	k		[Φ*0.6F _{u-ŀ}	_{ISS} *Α _{nv}] [Φ=0	.75] Eq	n J4-4
ΦR _n =	195.8	k	>	43.1	k	ОК	

HSS Slot=	0.0625	in	(Each Side of G	usset	Plate for Clea	rance)
Net Area, A _n =	6.23	in ₂	[A _n =	-A _g -Ar	ea of 2 Slots]	D3.2
I _w =	7.50	in	< 9	€.75	in [1.3D]	Tbl D3.1
x=	2.39	in				Tbl D3.1
U=	0.682		[1-()	x/l _w)]	for I _w <1.3D _{HSS}	5 Tbl D3.1
Effective Area of HSS, A_e =	4.24	in²	[A _e =	∙U*A _n]	Eqn D3-1
P _n =	246.17	k	[P _n =	•A _e F _u]	[Φ=0.75]	Eqn D2-2
ΦP _n =	184.63	k	> 4	43.1	k	ОК
Gusset Shear Yielding at Brace						AISC 360-10
Shear Yield Strength, ΦR _n =	349.06	k	[2*0	⊅*0. 6	Ϝ _γ Α _g] [Φ=1.0]	Eqn J4-3
⊕R _n =	349.06	k	> 4	3.10	k	ОК
Whitmore Section						AISC 360-10
Whitmore Width, L _w =	16.16	in	[2*	wtan(30°)+D _{HSS}]	
A _g =	8.08	in ²	[L _w *	ʻt _g]		
Gusset Tensile Yielding at Brace						AISC 360-10
Whitmore Area, A _g =	8.08	in				
Tensile Yield Strength, ΦR_n =	261.80	in ²	[ΦF	_y A _g] [(D=0.9]	Eqn J4-1
ΦP _n =	261.80	k	> 4	3.10	k	ОК

Whitmore Area, A _{effective} =A _g =	8.08	in ²						
Tensile Rupture Strength, ΦP_n =	351.49	k			[ΦF _u A _e] [Φ	D=0.75]		Eqn J4-1
ΦP _n =	351.49	k		>	43.10	k	ОК	
Compression in Gusset							A	ISC 360-10
Whitmore Area, A _g =	8.08	in ²						
K= L= r=	1.2 4.85 0.144	in in			[t/v12]			Tbl C-A-7.1
KL/r=	40.36		>	25		Use Chapte	er E	
4.71√(E/F _y)=	133.68							
KL/r=	40.4		<	133.68		Use Eqn E	3-2	E3
F _e =	175.74	ksi			[F _e =π ² E/(k	(L/r) ²]		Eqn E3-4
F _{cr} =	33.04	ksi			[Fcr=(.658	8^(Fy/Fe))*Fy]	Eqn 3-2
Ф=	0.9							E1(b)
P _n =	267.0	k			[P _n =F _{cr} L _w t	g]		Eqn E3-1
Compression Strength, ΦP _n =	240.3	k		>	46.70	k	ОК	

AISC 360-10

Gusset Length, I _b =	34	in		[Length of Gusset Alor	ng Beam]
A _g =	17	in ₂		[l _b t _g]	
Shear Rupture Strength, ΦR _n =	443.7	k		[Φ*0.6F _{u-HSS} *A _{nv}] [Φ=0).75] Eqn J4-4
Shear Yield Strength, ΦR _n =	367.2	k		$[\Phi^*0.6F_yA_g] [\Phi=1.0]$	Eqn J4-3
Governing ΦR _n =	367.2	k	>	61.25 k	ОК
Vertical Shear in Gusset					AISC 360-10
Gusset Length, I _v =	14	in			
A _g =	7	in ₂		[l _b t _g]	
Shear Rupture Strength, ΦR_n =	182.7	k		[Φ*0.6F _{u-HSS} *A _{nv}] [Φ=0).75] Eqn J4-4
Shear Yield Strength, ΦR _n =	151.2	k		$[\Phi^* 0.6F_y A_g] [\Phi=1.0]$	Eqn J4-3
Governing ΦR _n =	151.2	k	>	34.15 k	ОК



Beam Properties			Ref. Beam Calculations, AISC Manual 14th ed.
Beam:	W10x33		
F _{v-WF} =	50	ksi	Tbl 2-4
F _{u-WF} =	65	ksi	Tbl 2-4
d _{Beam} =	9.7	in	Tbl 1-1
t _{w-beam} =	0.29	in	Tbl 1-1
t _{f-beam} =	9.71		
k _{Beam} =	0.94	in	Tbl 1-1
T _{Beam} =	7.50	in	Tbl 1-1
Column Properties			Ref. Column Calculations, AISC Manual 14th ed.
Column:	W12x40		
		_	
F _{y-WF} =	50	ksi	Tbl 2-4
F _{u-WF} =	65	ksi	Tbl 2-4
d _{col} =	11.9	in	Tbl 1-1
k _{col} =	1.02	in	Tbl 1-1
t _{w-Col} =	0.30	in	Tbl 1-1
t _{f-Col} =	0.52	in	Tbl 1-1
E=	29000	ksi	
Weld Properties			AISC Manual 14th ed.
Weld F _{EXX} =	70	ksi	
Weld Unit Strength, Φr _n =	1.392	k/in * D	[Φ*(1/v2)*(1/16)*(0.6FEXX)] Eqn J2-3
Shear Plate			AISC Manual 14th ed.
Plate, F _{y-pl} =	36	ksi	Tbl 2-4
Plate, F _{u-pl} =	58	ksi	Tbl 2-4
Plate Thickness, t _{pl} =	0.25	in	
Plate Height, h _{pl} =	7.73	in	(T _{beam})
Plate Width, w _{pl} =	3.5	in	

Shear, V _u =	3.56	k	[V _u ref. ro	of beam de	sign]		
Axial, H _u =	29.23	k	[P _u ref. roof beam design]				
Shear in Plate						AISC 360-10	
	4.02			(h. +.)			
A _g =	1.93	in ₂		[n _{pl} t _{pl}]			
Shear Rupture Strength, $\Phi R_n =$	50.4	k		[Φ*0.6F _{u-}	_{pl} *A _{nv}] [Φ=0.	75] Eqn J4-4	
Shear Yield Strength, ΦR_n =	41.7	k		[Φ*0.6F _{y-}	_{ol} A _g] [Φ=1.0]	Eqn J4-3	
Governing $\Phi R_n =$	41.7	k	>	3.56	k	ОК	
Beam to Shear Plate Weld						AISC 360-10	
Load Angle=	83.1	degrees		[arctan(V	_{uc} /H _{uc}] (Roun	d down in table)	
Thick. of Thinner Part=	0.25	in					
Min. Weld Size, D=	2	/16"				Tbl J2.4	
Weld Size, D=	3	/16"		(One weld	l each side)		
Weld Length, I _w =	7.73	in		[h _{pl}]			
kl=	3	in		(Distance (Edge of s	between fille hear plate to	et welds) edge of gusset)	
k=	0.388098			[kl/l]	(Round dov	wn in table)	
Eccentricity, e _x =	2	in		[Col. Flan	ge to Center	of weld group]	
a=	0.259			[e _x /l]	(Round up	for "a" in table)	
a value used in table=	0.1						
k value used in table=	0.1						
L=	4.49					1018-4	
Ф=	0.75						
Strength of Weld Group, ΦR_n =	78.1	k					
Eccentric Force, R _{ub} =	36.8	k		[1.25V(V _u	² +H _{uc} ²)]		
ΦR _n =	78.1	k	>	36.8	k	ОК	

Load Angle=	83.1	degrees	[arctan(V	_{uc} /H _{uc}]	
Thick. of Thinner Part= Min. Weld Size, D=	0.25 2	in /16"			Tbl J2.4
Weld Size, D=	3	/16"	(One weld	d each side)	
Weld Length, I _w =	7.73	in	[h _{pl}]		
Eccentricity, e _x =	5.95	in	[d _{Col} /2]		
a=	0.770		[e _x /l]	(Round up for "a" i	n table)
a value used in table= C=	0.3 3.48				Tbl 8-4
Ф=	0.75				
Strength of Weld Group, ΦR_n =	60.5	k			
Eccentric Force, R _{ub} =	36.8	k	[1.25√(V _u	c ² +H _{uc} ²)]	
ΦR _n =	60.5	k >	36.8	k Weld i	s Adequate

Appendix E - SCBF Member Designs

Upper Brace Design (SCBF)

Member Loads					
Eactored Compressive Force P -	10 1	k	[From Ey	vamnlel	
Factored Tensile Force $T =$	15.0	k	[From Ex	(ample]	
	10.0	ĸ	[1101112/	umpicj	
Member Properties					AISC Manual 14th ed.
Brace Horizontal Component Length=	15	ft			
Brace Vertical Component Length=	16.13	π			
Brace Length, L=	22.02	ft	[Workpc	oint to Workpoin	t]
Actual Brace Length, L=	18.00	ft			
Actual Brace Length, L=	216.00	in			
Member Selection:	HSS	54XC).220		Tbl 1-13
F-	20000	kci			
E- F =	29000	ksi kci			Thl 2-4
г _у - г –	42 50	kci			
'u-	50	KSI			1012-4
D=	4	in			Tbl 1-13
- t=	0.205	in			Tbl 1-13
A _g =	2.44	in ²			Tbl 1-13
D/t=	19.5				Tbl 1-13
r=	1.34	in			Tbl 1-13
Check Slenderness					
k=	1				AISC 360-10: Tbl C-A-7.1
Brace Slenderness Limit=	200.00				AISC 341-10: F2.5b
KL/r=	161.2	<	200.00	Mer	nber not Slender. OK
,					,.
Check Local Buckling					
Brace must be "Highly Ductile" per AISC 341: F	2.5a				
λ=	19.50			[A=D/t]	AISC Manual 14th ed. Tbl 1-13
λ=	26.24			[λ _{bd} =.038F/F.1	۵ 1 1 Thi D1 1
Ahd-	20.24			ι	///JC J+1 10 /0/ D1.1
	λ	<	λ_{md}	Member i	s Seismically Compact, OK

	4.71√(E/F _y)=	123.76				
	KL/r=	161.2	>	123.76	Use Equation E3-3 fc	or Fcr
	F _e =	11.02	ksi		$[F_e=\pi_2 E/(KL/r)_2]$	Eqn E3-4
	F _{cr} =	9.66	ksi		[Fcr=.877Fe]	Eqn 3-3
	Ф=	0.9				E1(b)
	P _n =	23.6	k		$[P_n = F_{cr}A_g]$	Eqn E3-1
	ΦP _n =	21.2	k	>	19.1 k	Brace is Adequate
Tensile Strength of Brace						AISC 360-10
Tensile Yielding						D2(a)
	Ф=	0.9				
	P _n =	102.48	k		$[P_n = F_y A_g]$	Eqn D2-1
	ΦP _n =	92.23	k			
Tensile Rupture						D2(b)
	Ф=	0.75				
	P _n =	122	k		$[P_{n}=F_{y}A_{e};A_{e}=A_{g}]$	Eqn D2-2
	ΦP _n =	91.50	k			
Tensi	le Capacity, ΦP _n =	91.50	k	>	15.0 k	Brace is Adequate

	_			
1.6				Tbl A3.1
1.2				Tbl A3.1
				AISC 341-10
164.0	k		$[P_t=R_yF_yA_g]$	F1.4.4a(1)(i)(a)
				AISC 341-10
7.07	k		[.3P _c]	F1.4.4a(1)(ii)
123.76				AISC 350-10: E3
				-
161.2	>	123.76	Use Equation E3-3 for	AISC 350-10: E3
11.00	1		$(1/1, 1/2)^2$	
11.02	KSI		(KL/r)]	AISC 350-10: Eqn E3-4
0 66	kci	[Ecr- 97	750	AISC 250 10. Eap 2.2
9.00	KSI	[FU07	/re	AISC 330-10. Eq11 3-3
				AISC 341-10: F2.3
26.0	k		[D -1 1/F A]	AISC 241 10. E2 2
20.9	ĸ		[' n-+·++ cre~g]	AISC 341-10.12.3
				AISC 341-10
111.68	k			
120.06	k			
120100	I.			
4.82	k		Components of Buckled	d Compressive Strength
5 18	k			
5.10	I.			
18.30	k			
19.68	k			
19.00	I.			
115	k		$[O_{h}=P_{h}-P_{h}]$ (on roof be	eam)
				1
65	k		$[Q_{bp}=(P_{tx}+P_{cx})/2]$ (on roo	of beam)
	1.6 1.2 164.0 7.07 123.76 11.02 9.66 26.9 26.9 111.68 120.06 4.82 5.18 120.06 111.68 120.06	1.6 1.2 164.0 k 7.07 k 123.76 × 161.2 > 161.2 > 161.2 ksi 9.66 ksi 26.9 k 111.68 k 120.06 k 131.68 k 14.82 k 18.30 k 18.30 k 19.68 k 1115 k	1.6 1.2 k 164.0 k 7.07 k 123.76 161.2 > 161.2 > 161.2 > 161.2 > 161.2 > 161.2 > 161.2 > 9.66 ksi [Fe==π ² E/ 9.66 ksi 111.68 k 120.06 k 111.68 k 128.30 k 18.30 k 1115 k 1115 k	1.6 1.2 164.0 k $[P_t=R_yF_yA_g]$ 7.07 k $[.3P_c]$ 123.76 123.76 Use Equation E3-3 for 161.2 > 123.76 Use Equation E3-3 for 11.02 ksi $[F_e=\pi^2 E/(KL/r)^2]$

AISC 341-10

Assumed Brace Forces

Lower Brace Design (SCBF)

Member Loads					
Compressive Force in Brace, P.,=	49.7	k	[From F	RISA] (I	Factored)
Tensile Force in Brace, T _u =	36.8	k	From F	RISA] (I	Factored)
Member Properties					AISC Manual 14th ed.
· · ·					
Brace Horizontal Component Length=	15	ft			
Brace Vertical Component Length=	14.75	ft			
Brace Length, L=	21.04	ft			
Brace Length, L=	252.45	in			
Actual Brace Length 1-	18.00	f+			
Actual Brace Length, L=	216.00	in			
Member Selection:	HSS5.	500	X0.258		Tbl 1-13
E=	29000	ksi			
F _y =	42	ksi			Tbl 2-4
F _u =	58	ksi			Tbl 2-4
D=	5.5	in			Tbl 1-13
t=	0.24	in			Tbl 1-13
A _g =	3.97	in-			Tbl 1-13
D/t=	22.9				Tbl 1-13
r=	1.86	in			Tbl 1-13
Check Slenderness					
k=	1				AISC 350-10: Tbl C-A-7.1
Brace Slenderness Limit=	200.00				AISC 3/1-10. E2 5h
	200.00				
KL/r=	116.1	<	200.00		Member not Slender, OK
Check Local Buckling					
Brace must be "Highly Ductile" per AISC 3	41: F2.5	а			
λ=	22.900			[λ=D/t]	AISC Manual 14th ed. Tbl 1-13
	26.24				
$\lambda_{hd} =$	26.24			լ木 _{hd} =.038E/F	AISC 341-10 I bI D1.1
	λ	,	λ.	N.4	ember is Seismically Compact. OK
	Л		Mmd	IVI	ember is seisifically compact, OK

	4.71√(E/F _y)=	123.76						
	KL/r=	116.1	<	123.76	Use	Eqn E	3-2 for Fcr	
	F _e =	21.22	ksi		[F _e =π ₂ E/(KL/r) ₂]		Eqn E3-4
	F _{cr} =	18.35	ksi		[Fcr=(.658	8^(Fy/	Fe))*Fy]	Eqn 3-2
	Ф=	0.9						E1(b)
	P _n =	72.8	k		$[P_n = F_{cr}A_g]$			Eqn E3-1
	ΦP _n =	65.5	k	>	49.7	k	Brace is Ade	quate in Compression
Tensile Strength of Brace								AISC 360-10
Tensile Yielding	Ф=	0.9						D2(a)
	P _n =	166.7	k		$[P_n = F_y A_g]$			Eqn D2-1
	ΦP _n =	150.07	k					
Tensile Rupture	Ф=	0.75						D2(a)
	P _n = Φ P _n =	230.3 172.70	k k		[P _n =F _y A _e ;	A _e =A _g]	Eqn D2-1
Tensile C	Capacity, ΦP _n =	150.07	k	>	36.8	k	Brace is A	dequate in Tension

R _t = 1.2 Ti	ol A3.1
Assumed Brace Forces: Tension AISC 3	341-10
Expected Yield Strength of Brace, P_t = 266.8 k $[P_t=R_yF_yA_g]$ F1.4.4a(1)(i)(a)
Assumed Brace Forces: Compression AISC :	341-10
Buckled Compressive Strength, P_c = 21.85 k [.3 P_c] F1.4.4	a(1)(ii)
4.71√(E/F _v)= 123.76 AISC 350-	10: E3
KL/r= 116.1 < 123.76 Use Eqn E3-2 for Fcr AISC 350-	10: E3
$E = 21.22$ ksi $[E = \pi^2 E / (KI / r)^2]$ AISC 350-10: Eq	n F3-4
	11 25 4
F _{cre} = 17.86 ksi [Fcr=(.658^(RyFy/Fe))*RyFy] AISC 350-10: E	qn 3-2
AISC 341-10	D: F2.3
Expected Compression Strength P = 80.8 k [P = 1.14 FA.] AISC 341-1	J. E2 3
	5.12.5
Unbalanced Forces on Floor Beam AISC 3	341-10
Horizontal Component, P _{tx} = 190.22 k	
Vertical Component, P _{ty} = 187.05 k	
Horizontal Component, P _{c-min x} = 15.58 k Components of Buckled Compressive Strength	
Vertical Component, P_{c-miny} = 15.32 k	
Horizontal Component, P _{c-max} = 57.63 k	
Vertical Component, $P_{c-max} = 56.67$ k	
Unbalanced Vert. Load, $Q_{bv} = 172$ k $[Q_{bv} = P_{ty} - P_{c-miny}]$	
Unbalanced Horiz. Load, $Q_{bp} = 124$ k $[Q_{bp} = (P_{tx} + P_{c-max x})/2]$	

Column Design Design (SCBF)

Reference: AISC 341-10 UNO				
Member Loads				
Factored Compression, P _u =	345.00	k	[ref.Member Loads (SCBF Columns]	
Factored Tension, T _u =	0	k	[ref.Member Loads (SCBF Columns]	
Member Properties				AISC Manual 14th ed.
Column Unbraced Length, I _u =	16.00	ft		
Column Unbraced Length, I _u =	192.00	in		
Member Selection:	W14X68			
E=	29000	ksi		
F _y =	50	ksi		Tbl 2-4
F _u =	65	ksi		Tbl 2-4
A _g =	20	in ²		Tbl 1-1
d=	14	in		Tbl 1-1
t _w =	0.415	in		Tbl 1-1
b _f =	10	in		Tbl 1-1
t _f =	0.720	in		Tbl 1-1
k=	1.310	in		Tbl 1-1
h/t _w =	27.5			Tbl 1-1
r _x =	6.01	in		Tbl 1-1
r _v =	2.46	in		Tbl 1-1

Column must meet criteria for "Highly Ductile" members per AISC 341-10: F2.5a

λ_{f} =	6.94			$[\lambda=b_f/2t_f]$	
λ_{hd} =	7.22			$[\lambda_{hd}=.30v(E/F_{\gamma)}]$	Tbl D1.1
	λ	<	λ_r	Flanges are r	oot Slender, OK
ΦP _y =	900	k		[ΦF _y A _g] [Φ=0.9]	
C _a =	0.383	>	0.125	$[P_u/\Phi P_y]$	Tbl D1.1
λ_w =	27.50			$[\lambda=h/t_w]$	
λ_{hd} =	47.23		[λr=0.7]	7√(E/Fy)(2.93-Ca)>1.49√(E/	Tbl D1.1
	λ	<	λ_{hd}	Web is not	Slender, OK
Compressive Strength of Column					AISC 360-10
К=	1				Tbl C-A-7.1
4.71V(E/F _y)=	113.43				
KI /r=					
	78.0	<	113.43	Use Eqn E3-2	l -
F _e =	78.0 46.99	< ksi	113.43	Use Eqn E3-2 [F _e =π ₂ E/(KL/r) ₂]	Eqn E3-4
F _e = F _{cr} =	78.0 46.99 32.03	< ksi ksi	113.43	Use Eqn E3-2 [F _e =π ₂ E/(KL/r) ₂] [Fcr=(.658^(Fy/Fe))*Fy]	Eqn E3-4 Eqn 3-2
F _e = F _{cr} = Φ=	78.0 46.99 32.03 0.9	< ksi ksi	113.43	Use Eqn E3-2 [F _e =π ₂ E/(KL/r) ₂] [Fcr=(.658^(Fy/Fe))*Fy]	Eqn E3-4 Eqn 3-2 E1(b)
$F_e =$ $F_{cr} =$ $\Phi =$ $P_n =$	 78.0 46.99 32.03 0.9 640.6 	< ksi ksi	113.43	Use Eqn E3-2 $[F_e = \pi_2 E/(KL/r)_2]$ $[Fcr = (.658^{Fy/Fe})^*Fy]$ $[P_n = F_{cr}A_g]$	Eqn E3-4 Eqn 3-2 E1(b) Eqn E3-1

Tensile Yielding				
Φ=	0.9			
P _n =	1000	k	[P _n =F _y A _g]	Eqn D2-1
ΦP _n =	900.00	k		
Tensile Rupture				D2(a)
Φ=	0.75			
P _n =	1300	k	$[P_n = F_y A_e; A_e = A_g]$	Eqn D2-1
ΦP _n =	975.00	k		
Tensile Capacity, ΦP _n =	900.00	k	> 0 k	Column is Adequate in Tension

Floor Beam Design Design (SCBF)

Reference: AISC 341-10 UNO

Load Combination Factors

Combination 5: AS	CE 7-10 12.	4.3.2
Dead Load=	1.3084	
Live Load=	1.0	
Seismic Load=	2.0	

Member Loads

		_		
M _D =	30.63	k-ft		(ref. member loads)
M _L =	33.4	k-ft		(ref. member loads)
Mu _{Qbv} =	1288	k-ft	$[M_{Qb}=Q_{bv}*L/4][Factored]$	Lower Brace Design
V _D =	4.08	k		(ref. member loads)
V _L =	4.45	k		(ref. member loads)
Vu _{Qbv} =	86	k	[Factored]	Lower Brace Design
Factored Moment, M _u =	1361.5	k-ft		
Factored Compression, P _u =	123.9	k	[P _u =Q _{bh}]	
Factored Shear, V _u =	95.7	k		
Factored Shear, $V_{u (D+L)}$ =	9.8	k	(Shear without seismic cont	ributions)
Member Properties				AISC Manual 14th ed.
Beam Length, L=	30.00	ft		
Brace Length, L=	360.00	in		
Member Selection:	W30X124	Ļ		
r_	20000	kai		
C= F -	29000	KSI		
г _У -	50	KSI		
F _u -	05	KSI		1012-4
Δ =	36 5	in ²		Thl 1-1
d=	30.2	in		Tbl 1-1
t=	0.585	in		Tbl 1-1
-w t/=	0.93	in		
k=	1 58	in		Thl 1-1
τ=	27.04	in	[d-2k]	Tbl 1-2
b _f /2t _f =	5.65		()	Tbl 1-1
" h/t=	46.2			Tbl 1-1
=	5360	in ⁴		Thl 1-1
ν, ς =	355	in ³		Thi 1_1
5 _x -	555			1011-1

r _x =	12.1	in			Tbl 1-1
Z _x =	408	in³			Tbl 1-1
r _v =	2.23	in			Tbl 1-1
h _o =	29.3	in			Tbl 1-1
Check Local Buckling					AISC 341-10
Beams must meet criteria for "Moo	derately D	uctile"	members p	per AISC 341-10: F2.5a	
λ_{f} =	5.65			$[\lambda=b_f/2t_f]$	
λ_{md} =	9.15			$[\lambda_r = .38 \sqrt{(E/F_{\gamma)}}]$	Tbl D1.1
	λ	<	λ_r	Flanges are Compact, OK	
ΦP _y =	1642.5	k		[ΦF _y A _g] [Φ=0.9]	
C _a =	0.075	<	0.125	$[P_u/\Phi P_y]$	Tbl D1.1
$\lambda_w =$	46.20			$[\lambda=h/t_w]$	
λ_{md} =	71.76			[λr=3.76v(E/Fy)(1-2.75Ca)]	Tbl D1.1
	λ	<	λ_{md}	Web is not Slender, OK	
Elevural Strength of Beam	λ	<	λ_{md}	Web is not Slender, OK	AISC 360-10
Flexural Strength of Beam	λ	<	λ_{md}	Web is not Slender, OK	AISC 360-10
Flexural Strength of Beam Limiting Unbraced Length, L _p =	λ 12.2	< ft	λ_{md}	Web is not Slender, OK	AISC 360-10 Tbl 3-2
Flexural Strength of Beam Limiting Unbraced Length, L _p = Limiting Unbraced Length, L _r =	λ 12.2 56.9	< ft ft	λ _{md}	Web is not Slender, OK	AISC 360-10 Tbl 3-2 Tbl 3-2
Flexural Strength of Beam Limiting Unbraced Length, L _p = Limiting Unbraced Length, L _r = Unbraced Length, L _b =	λ 12.2 56.9 14.4	< ft ft	λ _{md}	Web is not Slender, OK	AISC 360-10 Tbl 3-2 Tbl 3-2
Flexural Strength of Beam Limiting Unbraced Length, L _p = Limiting Unbraced Length, L _r = Unbraced Length, L _b = Lr >	λ 12.2 56.9 14.4 L _b	< ft ft >	λ _{md}	Web is not Slender, OK	AISC 360-10 Tbl 3-2 Tbl 3-2
Flexural Strength of Beam Limiting Unbraced Length, L _p = Limiting Unbraced Length, L _r = Unbraced Length, L _b = Lr > Φ=	λ 12.2 56.9 14.4 L _b 0.9	< ft ft >	Lp	Web is not Slender, OK Use Eqn F2-2	AISC 360-10 Tbl 3-2 Tbl 3-2 F1(1)
Flexural Strength of Beam Limiting Unbraced Length, L _p = Limiting Unbraced Length, L _r = Unbraced Length, L _b = Lr > Φ= C _b =	λ 12.2 56.9 14.4 L _b 0.9 1.0	< ft ft >	Lp	Web is not Slender, OK Use Eqn F2-2	AISC 360-10 Tbl 3-2 Tbl 3-2 F1(1) F1(2)
Flexural Strength of Beam Limiting Unbraced Length, L _p = Limiting Unbraced Length, L _r = Unbraced Length, L _b = Lr Φ = C _b = M _p =	λ 12.2 56.9 14.4 Δ 0.9 1.0 1.0	< ft ft > k-ft	Lp	Web is not Slender, OK Use Eqn F2-2	AISC 360-10 Tbl 3-2 Tbl 3-2 Tbl 3-2 F1(1) F1(2) Eqn F2-1
Flexural Strength of Beam Limiting Unbraced Length, L_p = Limiting Unbraced Length, L_r = Unbraced Length, L_b = Lr Φ = C_b = M_p = M_n =	λ 12.2 56.9 14.4	< ft ft > k-ft k-ft	λ _{md} Lp	Web is not Slender, OK Use Eqn F2-2	AISC 360-10 Tbl 3-2 Tbl 3-2 F1(1) F1(2) Eqn F2-1
Flexural Strength of Beam Limiting Unbraced Length, L_p = Limiting Unbraced Length, L_r = Unbraced Length, L_b = Lr Δ = Δ_p = M_p = M_n =	λ 12.2 56.9 14.4	< ft ft k-ft k-ft k-ft	λ _{md}	Web is not Slender, OK Use Eqn F2-2	AISC 360-10 Tbl 3-2 Tbl 3-2 Tbl 3-2 F1(1) F1(2) Eqn F2-1

К=	1				Tbl C-A-7.1
Unbraced Length for x Axis, L _x = Unbraced Length for y Axis, L _y =	30.00 14.4	ft ft		[Beam Length, Assume No Support [L _b]	From Braces]
KL _x /r _x =	29.75				
KL _y /r _y =	77.58				
Governing KL _y /r _y =	77.58			[Max KL/r]	
4.71v(E/F _y)=	113.43				
KL/r=	77.6	<	113.43	Use Eqn E3-2	
F _e =	47.56	ksi		$[F_e = \pi_2 E / (KL/r)_2]$	Eqn E3-4
F _{cr} =	32.20	ksi		[Fcr=(.658^(Fy/Fe))*Fy]	Eqn 3-2
Ф=	0.9				E1(b)
P _n =	1175.3	k		$[P_n = F_{cr}A_g]$	Eqn E3-1
ΦP _n =	1057.8	k			
Second Order Effects					AISC 360-10: C2.1b
α=	1.0				
B ₂ =	1.0			[No translation of beam ends]	
P _{e1} =	11837.4	k	[π ² EI/(K ₁ L) ²] [K ₁ =1.0]	Eqn C-A-8-5
C _m =	1.0		[For merr	bers subject to transverse Loading]	A8.2.1(b)
P _{nt} =	0.0	k			
P _{lt} =	123.9	k		[P _u]	
P _r =	123.9	k		$[P_{nt}+B_2P_{lt}]$	Eqn A-8-2
B ₁ =	1.01			[{Cm/(1-(αP _r /P _{e1}))}:	Eqn A-8-3

 M_{nt} = 1361.5 k-ft [M_u] M_{lt} = 0.0 k-ft
M _{rx} =	1375.88	k-ft		$[B_1M_{nt}\text{+}B_2M_{lt}]$	Eqn A-8-1
Combined Loading					AISC 360-10: H1
P _r /P _c =	0.117	<	0.2	Use Eqn H1-1b	
Beam Interaction Ratio=	0.958		[(Pr/2Pc)+	-{(Mrx/Mcx)+(Mry/N	/lcy)}] Eqn H1-1b
	0.958	<	1.0	Beam is Ade	equate for Combined Loading
Shear Strength of Beam					AISC 350-10
h/t _w Limit=	53.95			[2.24√E/F _y]	G2.1a
h/t _w =	46.2	<	53.95		
Φ _v = C _v =	1 1				
A _w =	17.667	in ²			
Vn=	530.0	k		[V _n =0.6*F _y *A _w *C _v]	Eqn G2-1
ΦV _n =	530.0	k	>	95.65 k	Beam is Adequate in Shear
Lateral Bracing					AISC 360-10: Appendix 6.3
Distance Between Flanges, h _o =	29.3	in			Tbl 1-1
C _d =	1.0			(Single Curvature)	A-6.3.1a
Required Brace Strength, P _{br} =	11.27	k		[0.02M _{rx} C _d /h _o] (Bracing Provided f	Eqn A-6-7 or Top and Bottom Flanges)

Roof Beam Design Design (SCBF) Reference: AISC 341-10 UNO

Load	Combination	Factors
------	-------------	---------

Combination 5: ASCE 7-10 12.4.3.2							
Dead Load=	1.3084						
Snow Load=	0.2						
Seismic Load=	2.0						

Member Loads

M _D =	16.9	k-ft		
M _s =	8.4	k-ft		
Mu _{Qbv} =	862	k-ft	$[M_{Qb}=Q_{b}*L/4][Factored]$	Upper Brace Design
V _D =	2.25	k		
V _S =	1.12	k		
Vu _{Qbv} =	57	k		Upper Brace Design
		_	[Factored]	
Factored Moment, M _u =	885.4	k-ft		
Factored Compression, P _u =	65.0	k	[P _u =Q _{bh}]	
Factored Shear, V _u =	60.6	k		
Factored Shear, V _{u (D+L)} =	3.2	k	(Shear without seismic c	ontributions)

Beam Length, L=	30.00	ft		
Brace Length, L=	360.00	in		
Member Selection:	W27X94			
E=	29000	ksi		
F _y =	50	ksi		Tbl 2-4
F _u =	65	ksi		Tbl 2-4
A _g =	27.6	in ²		Tbl 1-1
d=	26.9	in		Tbl 1-1
t _w =	0.49	in		Tbl 1-1
t _f =	0.745	in		Tbl 1-1
k=	1.34	in		Tbl 1-1
T=	24.22	in		Tbl 1-1
b _f /2t _f =	6.7			Tbl 1-1
h/t _w =	49.5			Tbl 1-1
I _v =	3270	in ⁴		Tbl 1-1
S =	243	in ³		Thl 1-1
5 _x	10.0	in		Tbi 1 1
r _x =	10.9	. 3		1011-1
Z _x =	278	IN		Tbl 1-1
r _y =	2.12	in		Tbl 1-1
h _o =	26.2	in		Tbl 1-1

Beams must meet criteria for "Moderately Ductile" members per AISC 341-10: F2.5a



К=	1				Tbl C-A-7.1
Unbraced Length for x Axis, L_x = Unbraced Length for y Axis, L_y =	30.00 14.4	ft ft	[Beam Le [L _b]	ngth, Assume No Support From Braces	;]
KL _x /r _x =	33.03				
KL _y /r _y =	81.60				
Governing KL _y /r _y =	81.60			[Max KL/r]	
4.71√(E/F _y)=	113.43				
KL/r=	81.6	<	113.43	Use Eqn E3-2	
F _e =	42.98	ksi		$[F_e = \pi_2 E/(KL/r)_2]$	Eqn E3-4
F _{cr} =	30.73	ksi		[Fcr=(.658^(Fy/Fe))*Fy]	Eqn 3-2
Ф=	0.9				E1(b)
P _n =	848.0	k		$[P_n = F_{cr}A_g]$	Eqn E3-1
ΦP _n =	763.2	k			

α=	1.0				
B ₂ =	1.0			[No translation of beam ends]	Eqn A-8-5
P _{e1} =	7221.7	k		$[\pi^{2}\text{EI}/(K_{1}\text{L})^{2}]$ [K ₁ =1.0]	Eqn C2-5
C _m =	1.0	[For mer	nbers su	bject to transverse Loading]	A-8.2.1(b)
P _{nt} =	0.0	k			
P _{lt} =	65.0	k		[P _u]	
P _r =	65.0	k		[P _{nt} +B ₂ P _{lt}]	Eqn A-8-2
B ₁ =	1.01			[{Cm/(1-(αP _r /P _{e1}))}≥1.0]	Eqn A-8-3
M _{nt} =	885.4	k-ft		[M _u]	
M _{lt} =	0.0	k-ft			
M _{rx} =	893.41	k-ft		$[B_1M_{nt}+B_2M_{lt}]$	Eqn A-8-1
Combined Loading					AISC 360-10: H1
P _r /P _c =	0.085	<	0.2	Use Eqn H1-1b	
Beam Interaction Ratio=	0.900			[(Pr/2Pc)+{(Mrx/Mcx)+(Mry/Mcy	Eqn H1-1b
	0.900	<	1.0	Beam is Adequate for Combi	ned Loading

h/t _w Limit=	53.95			[2.24√E/F _y]	G2.1a
h/t _w =	49.5	<	53.95		
$\Phi_v = C_v =$	1 1				
A _w =	13.181	in ²			
Vn=	395.4	k		[V _n =0.6*F _v *A _w *C _v]	Eqn G2-1
ΦV _n =	395.4	k	>	60.6 k	Beam is Adequate in Shear
Lateral Bracing					AISC 360-10: Appendix 6.3
Distance Between Flanges, h _o =	26.2	in			Tbl 1-1
C _d =	1.0			(Single Curvature)	A-6.3.1a
Required Brace Strength, P _{br} =	8.18	k		[0.02M _{rx} C _d /h _o] (Bracing Provided f	Eqn A-6-7 or Top and Bottom Flanges]



Appendix F - SCBF Connection Designs



Gusset Plate Welded Design Design (SCBF) - At Floor Beam and Column

Gusset Plate Properties			AISC Manual 14th ed.
Gusset Plate, F _{yg} =	36	ksi	Tbl 2-4
Gusset Plate, F _{ug} =	58	ksi	Tbl 2-4
Gusset Length Along Beam, I _b =	24	in	[Measured from face of Col. to edge of gusset]
Gusset Length Along Column, I _c =	15	in	[Measured from face of Beam to edge of gusset]
Brace Properties			Ref. Brace Calculations, AISC Manual 14th ed
F _{venes} =	42	ksi	Tbl 2-4
F., ucc=	50	ksi	Tbl 2-4
· u-пээ			
t _{HSS} =	0.205	in	Tbl 1-13
A _{g-HSS} =	2.44	in²	Tbl 1-13
D _{HSS} =	4	in	Tbl 1-13
r _{HSS} =	1.34	in	
Beam Properties			Ref. Beam Calculations, AISC Manual 14th ed.
-	50		
F _{y-WF} =	50	KSI	1012-4
F _{u-WF} =	65	KSI	1012-4
d –	20.2	in	Thi 1.1
u _{Beam} -	0.50	in in	
L _{w-beam} =	0.59	111	1011-1
t _{f-beam} =	0.93		T U 4 4
K _{Beam} =	1.58	in	
T _{Beam} =	27.04	in	Tbl 1-1

F _{v-wF} =	50	ksi		Tbl 2-4
F _{u-WF} =	65	ksi		Tbl 2-4
d _{col} =	14	in		Tbl 1-1
k _{Col} =	1.31	in		Tbl 1-1
t _{w-Col} =	0.42	in		Tbl 1-1
t _{f-Col} =	0.72	in		Tbl 1-1
E=	29000	ksi		
Weld Properties			AIS	C Manual 14th ed.
Weld F _{EXX} =	70	ksi		
Weld Unit Strength, Φr _n =	1.392	k/in * D	[Φ*(1/v2)*(1/16)*(0.6FEXX)]	Eqn J2-3
Loads				
Max Tension Brace Force, T =	164.0	k		Ref Lower Brace
Buckled Brace Force, P_{u}	7 1	k		Ref. Lower Brace
Max Compr. Brace Force, P	7. <u>1</u> 20.6	r k	[1 1*Expected Comp Strength]	Ref. Lower Brace
Max Compl. Brace Force, Fum-	164.0	k	[1.1 Expected comp. Strength]	Nel. Lower brace
	104.0	K		
Vert. Brace Length=	16.13	ft	[Distance Between Workpoints	5]
Horiz. Brace Length=	15.00	ft		
	47.07	D		Dural
Brace Angle=	47.07	Degrees	[arctan(Vert./Horiz.)] [Beam to	Bracej
Shear at Beam Flange, V _{ug} =	131.81	k	[(T _u +P _{um})*Cos(Brace Angle)]	
Tension at Bm Flange, T _{ug-Max} =	106.86	k	[(T _u -P _{ub})*Cos(Brace Angle)]	
Tension at Bm Flange, T _{ug-Min} =	91.55	k	[(T _u -P _{um})*Cos(Brace Angle)]	
Load Angle, Θ=	39.03		$[arctan(T_{ug}/V_{ug})]$	
Moment: Gusset to Beam, M _{ug} =	1990.4	k-in	$[V_{ug}(d_{beam}/2)]$	
Beam Reaction, R _{u-Beam} =	95.65	k	(Gravity Loads)	

Thickness of Thinner Part= Min. Weld Size, D=	0.21 2	in /16"		[Brace or Gusset thickness	5] Tbl J2.4
Weld Size, D=	3	/16"			
Number of Welds=	4				
Weld Length, I _w = Weld Length ≥ D of Brac	10 e :. We	in ld Meets Rec	> quirem	4 in nents of Tbl D3.1 for Shear I	_ag Factor
Weld Strength, ΦR _n =	167.0	k		[Φr _n *D*l _w *# of Welds]	
ΦR _n =	167.0	k	>	163.968 k	ОК
HSS Wall Shear Rupture					AISC 360-10
A _{nv} =	8.2	in ²		[4*I _w t _{HSS}]	
Shear Rupture Strength, $\Phi R_n =$	184.5	k		[Φ*0.6F _{u-HSS} *A _{nv}][Φ=0.75]	Eqn J4-4
ΦR _n =	184.5	k	>	163.968 k	ОК
Gusset Shear Rupture at Brace					AISC 360-10
Gusset Thickness, t _g =	0.625	in			
A _{nv} =	12.5	in ²		[2*I _w t _{HSS}]	
Shear Rupture Strength, ΦR _n =	281.3	k		[Φ*0.6F _{u-HSS} *A _{nv}] [Φ=0.75] Eqn J4-4
ΦR _n =	281.3	k	>	163.968 k	ОК



Partial Circle C.O.G., x _{Brace} =	1.36	in		$[r_1(sin(\Theta_1)/\Theta_1)]$	
Center of Gravity, x _{Cover Plate} =	1.89	in		$[r_2(sin(\Theta_2)/\Theta_2)]$	
∑A=	1.68	in ²			
∑xA=	2.60	in ³			
x _{Composite} =	1.24	in		[(∑xA/∑A)-(t _g /2)]	
U=	0.876			[1-(x _{Comp.} /l _w]	
A _e =	2.94	in ²		[2*U*∑A]	
A _e =	2.94	in ²	>	A _g = 2.44	in ² OK
R _t =	1.6			F	Ref. Lower Brace Design
R _t =	1.2			F	Ref. Lower Brace Design
Expected Rupture Strength of Cover	Plate				
ΦP _n =	27.45	k		$[P_n = R_t A_2 F_u] [\Phi = 0.75]$	Eqn D2-2
Expected Yield Strength					
ΦP _n =	36.89	k		$[P_n = R_y A_2 F_y] [\Phi = 0.90]$	Eqn D2-2
ΦP _n =	36.89	k		[Max of Expected Strengt	hs]
Cover Plate to Brace Weld					AISC 360-10
Thickness of Thinner Part= Min. Weld Size, D=	0.21 2	in /16"		[t _{HSS}]	Tbl J2.4
Weld Size, D=	3	/16"			
Number of Wolds-	2				
Number of Welus-	2				
Weld Length, I _w =	5	in			
Weld Strength, ΦR _n =	41.8	k		[Φr _n *D*l _w *# of Welds]	
Expected Strength, ΦP_n =	36.9	k		[Cover Plate Expected Str	ength]
ΦR _n =	41.8	k	>	36.9 k	ОК

Shear Yield Strength, ΦR_n =	419.8	k		$[2^{*}\Phi^{*}0.6F_{y}A_{g}] [\Phi=1.0]$	Eqn J4-3
ΦR _n =	419.8	k	>	163.97 k	ОК
Whitmore Section					AISC 360-10
I _w =	15.55	in		[2*I _w tan(30°)+D _{HSS}]	
A _{gw} =	9.72	in ²		(Gross Area of Whitmore S	ection)
Gusset Tensile Yielding at Brace					AISC 360-10
Tension Yield, ΦR _n =	349.81	k		$[\Phi R_n = \Phi [F_{yg}^* L_w^* t_g] [\Phi = 0.90]$	Eqn J4-1
ΦR _n =	349.81	k	>	163.968 k	ОК
Gusset Tensile Rupture at Brace					AISC 360-10
Whitmore Area, A _{effective} =A _g =	9.72	in ²			
Tensile Rupture Strength, ΦP_n =	422.68	k		[ΦF _u A _e] [Φ=0.75]	Eqn J4-1
ΦP _n =	422.68	k	>	163.97 k	ОК

9.72	in²					
1.2 12.05 0.180	in in			[t/v12]		Tbl C-A-7.1
80.2		>	25			Use Chapter E
133.68						
80.2		<	133.68		Use Eqn E3-2	
44.54	ksi			[F _e =π ² E/(K	L/r) ²]	Eqn E3-4
25.67	ksi			[Fcr=(.658	^(Fy/Fe))*Fy]	Eqn 3-2
0.9						E1(b)
249.4	k			$[P_n = F_{cr}A_g]$		Eqn E3-1
224.5	k		>	29.56	k	ОК
						AISC 360-10
0.625 24.0 15.0	in in in			(Along bea (Along Col	am) umn)	
	9.72 1.2 12.05 0.180 80.2 133.68 80.2 44.54 25.67 0.9 249.4 224.5 0.625 24.0 15.0	9.72 in ² 1.2 in 0.180 in 80.2 in 133.68 in 80.2 ksi 0.9 ksi 0.9 ksi 0.9 ksi 0.9 ksi 0.9 ksi 0.9 ksi 0.9 ksi 0.9 in 15.0 in	9.72 in ² 1.2 12.05 in 0.180 in 80.2 > 133.68 < 80.2 < 44.54 ksi 25.67 ksi 0.9 249.4 k 224.5 k 0.625 in 24.0 in 15.0 in	9.72 in ² 1.2 12.05 in 0.180 in 80.2 > 25 133.68 40.2 < 133.68 44.54 ksi 25.67 ksi 0.9 249.4 k 224.5 k > 0.625 in 24.0 in 15.0 in	9.72 in^2 1.2 12.05 in 0.180 in 133.68 80.2 > 25 133.68 80.2 < 133.68 44.54 ksi [$F_e = \pi^2 E/(K)$ 25.67 ksi [$Fcr = (.658)$ 0.9 249.4 k [$P_n = F_{cr}A_g$] 224.5 k > 29.56 0.625 in 24.0 in (Along bea 15.0 in (Along bea	9.72 in^2 1.2 12.05 in 0.180 in [t/V12] 80.2 > 25 133.68 80.2 < 133.68 Use Eqn E3-2 44.54 ksi $[F_e = \pi^2 E/(KL/r)^2]$ 25.67 ksi $[Fcr = (.658^{Fy}/Fe))^*Fy]$ 0.9 249.4 k $[P_n = F_{cr}A_g]$ 224.5 k > 29.56 k 0.625 in 24.0 in (Along beam) 15.0 in (Along column)

Gusset to Beam Weld Setback=	4	in	(Distance from column flange to start of weld)
Angle from Column to Brace, Θ=	42.93	degrees	
Beam Eccentricity, e _b =	15.100	in	$[e_b=d_{beam}/2]$
Beam Eccentricity, e _c =	7.000	in	$[e_c=d_{column}/2]$
α=	14.00	in	[(I _b -Clip)/2+Clip]
β=	7.50	in	[(I _c -Clip)/2+Clip]
e₅tanΘ-e _c =	7.047	in	
α-βtanΘ	7.023	in	
Net Eccentricity=	0.023	in	(Negligible)
r=	30.9	in	$[Sqrt((\alpha+e_c)^2+(\beta+e_b)^2)]$
		Brace i	n Tension
V _{uc} =	39.86	k	$[(\beta/r)^{*}T_{u}]$
H _{uc} =	37.20	k	[(e _c /r)*T _u]
Vub=	80.26	k	[(β/r)*T]
H _{ub} =	74.41	k	$[(e_c/r)^*T_u]$
		Brace in (Compression
V _{uc} =	7.19	k	[(β/r)*P _{um}]
H _{uc} =	6.71	k	[(e _c /r)*P _{um}]
V _{ub} =	14.47	k	[(β/r)*P _{um}]
H _{ub} =	13.41	k	$[(e_c/r)*P_{um}]$

Load Angle=	47.2	degrees		[arctan(V _u	_b /H _{ub}]	
Thickness of Thinner Part= Min. Weld Size, D=	0.59 4	in /16"		[Beam We	b or Gusset thic	kness] Tbl J2.4
Weld Size, D=	5	/16"		(One weld	each side)	
Weld Length, I=	20.00	in		[l _b -Weld Se	etback]	
Eccentricity, e _x =	15.1	in		[d _{beam} /2]		
a=	0.755	I		[e _x /l]	(Round up for	"a" in table)
"a" value used in table= C=	0.8 2					Tbl 8-4
Ф=	0.75					
Strength of Weld Group, ΦR_n =	150.0	k				
Eccentric Force, R _{ub} =	136.8	k		[1.25V(V _{ub}	² +H _{ub} ²)]	
ΦR _n =	150.0	k	>	136.8	k	Weld is Adequate
Gusset Plate Rupture at Beam Weld						AISC 360-10: Section J
Set gusset p	late she	ear rupture st	trengt	h equal to v	weld strength	
t _{g-min} =	0.533	in		[(2*Φr _n *D	_{req})/(.75*.6F _{ug})]	Ref. Eqn J4-4
t=	0.625	in	>	0.533	in	ОК
Because the gusset plate is sufficient tension and shear yielding.	t for she	ear rupture b	ased	on weld siz	e, the plate is al	so sufficient for
Beam Web Local Yielding						AISC 350-10
Force Location, α =	14.00	in s	≤ d=	30.2	in	Use Eqn J-10-3
Beam Force Applied at α , ΦR_n =	700.54	k >	Vub=	80.26	k	ОК
[ΦRn=Φ(2.5k	Beam+l	wb)Fy-WFtw	-beam	n] [Φ=1.00]		Eqn J10-3

Plate, F _{y-pl} =	36	ksi					Tbl 2-4
Plate, F _{u-pl} =	58	ksi					Tbl 2-4
Plate Thickness, t _{pl} =	0.5	in					
Plate Height, h _{pl} =	43.75	in					
Plate Width, w _{pl} =	3.5	in					
Gusset to Shear Plate Weld						AIS	C 360-10
Load Angle=	47.0	degrees		[arctan(V _u	_c /H _{uc}] (Round do	own in table)	
Thickness of Thinner Part=	0.50	in		[Shear Pla	te or Gusset thic	ckness]	
Min. Weld Size, D=	3	/16"					Tbl J2.4
		-					
Weld Size, D=	3	/16"		(One weld	l each side)		
Weld Length, I=	15.00	in		[l _c -Clip]			
kl=	3	in		(Distance (Edge of s	between fillet w hear plate to ed	elds) ge of gusset)	
k=	0.2			[kl/l]	(Round down i	n table)	
Eccentricity, e _x =	2	in		[Col. Flang	ge to Center of w	veld group]	
a=	0.133			[e _x /l]	(Round up for	"a" in table)	
a value used in table=	0.2						
k value used in table=	0.1						
C=	3.92						Tbl 8-4
Φ=	0.75						
Strength of Weld Group, $\Phi R_n =$	132.3	k					
Eccentric Force, R _{ub} =	68.2	k		[1.25 V (V _{uc}	² +H _{uc} ²)]		
ΦR _n =	132.3	k	>	68.2	k	Weld is Ad	equate

Load Angle=	47.0	degrees		[arctan(V _u	_c /H _{uc}]		
Thickness of Thinner Part= Min. Weld Size, D=	0.50 3	in /16"		[Shear Pla	te or Col. Flange	thickness] T	bl J2.4
Weld Size, D=	3	/16"		(One weld	each side)		
Weld Length, I=	14.25	in		[l _c -Clip]			
Eccentricity, e _x =	7	in		[d _{Col} /2]			
a=	0.491			[e _x /l]	(Round up for	"a" in table)	
a value used in table= C=	0.5 2.75					1	ГЫ 8-4
Ф=	0.75						
Strength of Weld Group, ΦR_n =	88.2	k					
Eccentric Force, R _{ub} =	68.2	k		[1.25v(V _{uc}	² +H _{uc} ²)]		
ΦR _n =	88.2	k	>	68.2	k	Weld is Adequ	uate
Gusset Plate Rupture at Column Weld	k					AISC 360-10: Se	ction J
Set gusset p	late she	ear rupture sti	rengt	h equal to	weld strength		
t _{g-min} =	0.320	in		[(2*Φr _n *D	9 _{req})/(.75*.6F _{ug})]	Ref. Eq	ın J4-4
t=	0.625	in	>	0.320	in	ОК	
Because the gusset plate is sufficient tension and shear yielding.	t for she	ear rupture ba	ased o	on weld siz	e, the plate is al	so sufficient for	
Column Web Local Yielding						AISC 3	860-10

Force applied to column is located at a distance greater than the depth of column from column end

ΦR _n = 431.6 k	> Huc=	37.20	k	ОК
$[\Phi R_n = \Phi (5k_{Col} + I_{wc})F_{y-WF}$	t _{w-Col}] [Φ=1.0	00]		Eqn J10-2

Shear, V_u = 175.91 k	$[V_{ub}+V_u ref. beam design]$
Axial, H _u = 198.33 k	[H _{ub} +P _u ref. beam design]

Beam to Shear Plate Weld

Load Angle=	48.4	degrees	[arctan(V _u	_c /H _{uc}] (Round do	wn in table)	
Thickness of Thinner Part= Min. Weld Size, D=	0.50 3	in /16"	[Shear Pla	te or Gusset thic	kness]	Tbl J2.4
Weld Size, D=	4	/16"	(One weld	l each side)		
Weld Length, I _w =	28.2	in	$[d_{beam}\text{-}k_{bea}]$]		Tbl 1-1
kl=	3	in	(Distance (Edge of sl	between fillet we hear plate to edg	elds) ge of gusset)	
k=	0.106	1	[kl/l]	(Round down ii	n table)	
Eccentricity, e _x =	2	in	[Col. Flang	ge to Center of w	eld group]	
a=	0.071	1	[e _x /l]	(Round up for '	'a" in table)	
a value used in table= k value used in table= C=	0.1 0.1 4.49					Tbl 8-4
Ф=	0.75	l i				
Strength of Weld Group, ΦR_n =	379.9	k				
Eccentric Force, R _{ub} =	331.4	k	[1.25V(V _{uc}	² +H _{uc} ²)]		
ΦR _n =	379.9	k >	331.4	k	Weld is Ade	equate

Load Angle=	48.4	degrees		$[arctan(V_{uc}/H_{uc}]$		
Thickness of Thinner Part= Min. Weld Size, D=	0.50 3	in /16"		[Shear Plate or (Column Fla	nge thickness] Tbl J2.4
Weld Size, D=	5	/16"		(One weld each	side)	
Weld Length, I _w =	28.2	in		$[d_{beam}\text{-}k_{beam}]$		Tbl 1-1
Eccentricity, e _x =	7	in		[d _{Col} /2]		
a=	0.248			[e _x /l] (Rou	ind up for "	a" in table)
a value used in table= C=	0.3 3.48					Tbl 8-4
Ф=	0.75					
Strength of Weld Group, ΦR_n =	368.0	k				
Eccentric Force, R _{ub} =	331.4	k		[1.25V(V _{uc} ² +H _{uc} ²	²)]	
ΦR _n =	368.0	k	>	331.4 k	1	Weld is Adequate
Beam Web Shear Strength						AISC 360-10
ΦVn=	474.55	k		[Φ.6F _y t _w T]		Eqn J4-3
ΦVn=	474.55	k	>	175.91 k	I	Web is Adequate

Location of H_{ub} , β =	7.5	in	<	d/2=	15.1	in
N/d=	0.66	>	0.2			
	Use:	Eqn J10-5b				
ΦR _n =	727.2	k				Eqn J10-5b
ΦR _n =	727.2	k	>	13.4	k	ОК
Column Web Crippling						AISC 360-10: J10.3

Force applied to column is located at a distance greater than the depth of column from column end

R _n =	510.5	k	$[0.8t_w^2 \{1+3$	8(N/d)(t _w	/t _f)1.5}Sqrt(EF _y v	vt _f /t _w)]	Eqn J10-4
Ф=	0.75						
ΦR _n =	382.9	k	>	6.71	k		ОК



Gusset Plate (SCBF) at Floor Beam - 2 Braces

Plate Material Properties

F _y =	36	ksi
F _u =	58	ksi
E=	29000	ksi

Brace Properties

F _{y-HSS} =	42	ksi
F _{u-HSS} =	58	ksi
A _{g-HSS} =	3.97	in ²
t _{HSS} =	0.24	in
D=	5.5	in

Beam Material

F _{y-WF} =	50	ksi
F _{u-WF} =	65	ksi
d _{Beam} =	30.2	in
t _{w-Beam} =	0.585	in
t _{f-Beam} =	0.93	in
k _{Beam} =	1.58	in

Weld Properties

Weld F_{EXX} 70ksiWeld Unit Strength, Φr_n 1.392k/in * D

[Φ*(1/v2)*(1/16)*(0.6FEXX)] Eqn J2-3

Max Tension Force, T=	266.8	k		Ref. Lower Brace
Buckled Brace Force, P.,	21.8	k		Ref. Lower Brace
Max Compression Force, Pum=	88.9	k	[1.1*Expected Comp. Strength]	Ref. Lower Brace
Max Brace Force=	266.78	k		
Vert. Brace Length=	14.75	ft	[Distance Between Worl	kpoints]
Horiz. Brace Length=	15	ft		
Brace Angle=	44.52	Degrees	[arctan(Vert./Horiz.)]	
Shear Force at Beam Flange, V _{ug} =	253.61	k	[(T _u +P _{um})*Cos(Brace Ang	gle)]
Tension Force at Beam Flange, T _{ug-Max} =	174.64	k	[(T _u -P _{ub})*Cos(Brace Angl	e)]
Tension Force at Beam Flange, T _{ug-Min} =	126.84	k	[(T _u -P _{um})*Cos(Brace Ang	le)]
Load Angle, Θ=	34.55		$[arctan(T_{ug}/V_{ug})]$	
Moment: Gusset to Beam, M _{ug} =	3829.5	k-in	$[V_{ug}(d_{beam}/2)]$	
Brace-to-Gusset Weld				AISC 360-10
Thickness of Thinner Part=	0 24	in	[Brace or Gusset thickne	occl
Min. Weld Size, D=	2	/16"		Tbl J2.4
Weld Size, D=	4	/16"		
Number of Welds=	4			
Weld Length, I=	12	in	> 5.5 in	
Weld Length \geq D of Brace :	. Weld N	leets Requ	uirements of Tbl D3.1 for Shear Lag Fa	actor
-			-	
Weld Strength, $\Phi R_n =$	267.3	k	[Φr _n *D*l _w *# of Welds]	
$\Phi R_n =$	267.3	k	> 266.784 k	ОК
HSS Wall Shear Rupture				AISC 360-10
A _{nv} =	11.52	in ²	[4*l _w t _{HSS}]	
Shear Rupture Strength, ΦR_n =	300.7	k	[Φ*0.6F _{u-HSS} *A _{nv}]	Eqn J4-4
ΦR _n =	300.7	k	> 266.784 k	ОК

Gusset Thickness, t _g =	0.625	in					
A _{nv} =	15	in ²		[2*I _w t _{HSS}]			
Shear Rupture Strength, ΦR_n =	391.5	k		[Φ*0.6F _{u-H}	_{ISS} *Α _{nv}] [Φ=0).75]	Eqn J4-4
ΦR _n =	391.5	k	>	266.784	k	(ЭК
Shear Lag Rupture of Brace						ŀ	AISC 360-10
A _e A _{e-Req'd}	≥ ≥	A _g 3.97	in ²			AISC 347-1	L0: F2.5b(3)
HSS Slot at Gusset Plate Gap=	0.0625	in	(Each Side)			
Net Area, A _n =	3.61	in ₂		[A _n =A _g -Are	ea of 2 Slots]		D3.2
I _w =	12.00	in	<	7.15	in [1.3D]		Tbl D3.1
x=	0.00	in					Tbl D3.1
U=	1.000			For lw>1.3	D		Tbl D3.1
Effective Area of HSS, A_e =	3.61	in ²		[A _e =U*A _n]			Eqn D3-1
Req'd Reinforcement, A _{ecp} =	0.36	in ²					
Reinforcement from:	HSS5.5	00X0.258	1	(Using 2 q	uarter sectio	ons)	
				A ₂	A ₁ GUSS BRACE COVER PLATE		
A ₁ =	1.81	in ² in ²		[A _n /2]	/41		
A ₂ =	0.99			L Ag-Cover Plat	e/4]		

Radius of Brace, r_1 =	2.63	in	[(D/2)-(t/2)]			
Radius of Reinf, r_2 =	2.87	in	[(D/2)+(t/2)]			
Θ ₁ = Θ ₂ =	1.43 0.785	rad. rad.	[radia	ns(A _n /A _g *90))] (1/4 o	f brace net a	irea)
Partial Circle C.O.G., x _{Brace} =	1.82	in	[r	$\sigma_1(\sin(\Theta_1)/\Theta_1)$	ı)]		
Center of Gravity, x _{Cover Plate} =	2.58	in	[r	₂ (sin(Θ ₂)/Θ ₂	2)]		
ΣΑ=	2.80	in ²					
_ ∑xA=	5.85	in ³					
x _{Composite} =	1.78	in	[(∑xA/∑A)-(t _g	/2)]		
U=	0.852		[1	-(x _{Comp.} /I _w]			
A _e =	4.76	in ²	[2	2*U*∑A]			
A _e =	4.76	in ²	>	A _g =	3.97	in ²	ОК
R _y = R _t =	1.6 1.2				F	Ref. Lower Bi	race Design
Expected Rupture Strength of Cover Plate							
ΦP _n =	69.08	k	[F	$P_n = R_t A_2 F_u$] [C	⊅=0.75]		Eqn D2-2
Expected Yield Strength							
. ΦP _n =	60.03	k	[F	$P_n = R_y A_2 F_y$] [(D=0.90]		Eqn D2-2
ΦP _n =	69.08	k	[]	∕lax of Expe	cted Stre	engths]	

Thickness of Thinner Part= Min. Weld Size, D=	0.24 2	in /16"		[Brace thic	ckness]	Tbl J2.4
Weld Size, D=	4	/16"				
Number of Welds=	2					
Weld Length, I _w =	7	in				
Weld Strength, $\Phi R_n =$	78.0	k		[Φr _n *D*I _w	*# of Welds]	
Expected Strength, ΦP_n =	69.1	k		$[\Phi R_t F_u A_n]$	[Φ=0.75]	
ΦR _n =	78.0	k	>	69.1	k	ОК
Gusset Shear Yielding at Brace						AISC 360-10
Shear Yield Strength, ΦR_n =	522.62	k		[2*Ф*0.6F	^ε _y A _g] [Φ=1.0]	Eqn J4-3
ΦR _n =	522.62	k	>	266.78	k	ОК
Whitmore Section						AISC 360-10
Whitmore Width, L _w =	19.36	in		[2*I _w tan(3	0°)+D _{HSS}]	
A _g =	12.10	in ²		$[L_w * t_g]$		
Gusset Tensile Yielding at Brace						AISC 360-10
Whitmore Area, A _g =	12.10	in				
Tensile Yield Strength, ΦR_n =	391.97	in ²		[ΦF _γ A _g] [Φ	9=0.9]	Eqn J4-1
ΦP _n =	391.97	k	>	266.78	k	ОК

Whitmore Area, A _{effective} =A _g =	12.10	in ²				
Tensile Rupture Strength, ΦP_n =	526.25	k			[ΦF _u A _e] [Φ=0.75]	Eqn J4-1
⊕P _n =	526.25	k		>	266.78 k	ОК
Compression in Gusset						AISC 360-10
Whitmore Area, A _g =	12.10	in ²				
К=	1.2					Tbl C-A-7.1
L= r=	4.27 0.180	in in			[t/v12]	
KL/r=	28.4		>	25	Use Chapter	Ē
4.71V(E/F _y)=	133.68					
KL/r=	28.4		/	122.60	Lise Ean E3-2	
••=/•	20.1			133.08	038 Eq11 E3-2	
F _e =	354.29	ksi		133.08	$[F_e = \pi^2 E / (KL/r)^2]$	Eqn E3-4
F _e = F _{cr} =	354.29 34.50	ksi ksi		133.08	[F _e =π ² E/(KL/r) ²] [Fcr=(.658^(Fy/Fe))*Fy]	Eqn E3-4 Eqn 3-2
F _e = F _{cr} = Φ=	354.29 34.50 0.9	ksi ksi		133.08	[F _e =π ² E/(KL/r) ²] [Fcr=(.658^(Fy/Fe))*Fy]	Eqn E3-4 Eqn 3-2 E1(b)
$F_e =$ $F_{cr} =$ $\Phi =$ $P_n =$	354.29 34.50 0.9 417.4	ksi ksi k		133.08	$[F_e = \pi^2 E/(KL/r)^2]$ $[Fcr = (.658^{Fy}/Fe))^*Fy]$	Eqn E3-4 Eqn 3-2 E1(b) Eqn E3-1
F_e = F_{cr} = Φ = P_n = Compression Strength, ΦP_n =	354.29 34.50 0.9 417.4 375.6	ksi ksi k		>	$[F_{e} = \pi^{2}E/(KL/r)^{2}]$ $[Fcr = (.658^{Fy/Fe})^{*}Fy]$ $[P_{n} = F_{cr}A_{g}]$ 88.90 k	Eqn E3-4 Eqn 3-2 E1(b) Eqn E3-1 OK
$F_{e} = F_{cr} = F_{cr} = \Phi = P_{n} = Compression Strength, \Phi P_{n} = Gusset Plate Dimensions$	354.29 34.50 0.9 417.4 375.6	ksi ksi k		>	032 Eqn 25-2 [F _e =π ² E/(KL/r) ²] [Fcr=(.658^(Fy/Fe))*Fy] [P _n =F _{cr} A _g] 88.90 k	Eqn E3-4 Eqn 3-2 E1(b) Eqn E3-1 OK AISC 360-10
$F_{e} = F_{cr} = F_{cr} = \Phi = P_{n} = O$ $Gusset Plate Dimensions$ Thickness t	354.29 34.50 0.9 417.4 375.6	ksi ksi k		>	[F _e =π ² E/(KL/r) ²] [Fcr=(.658^(Fy/Fe))*Fy] [P _n =F _{cr} A _g] 88.90 k	Eqn E3-4 Eqn 3-2 E1(b) Eqn E3-1 OK AISC 360-10
$F_{e} = F_{cr} = F_{cr} = \Phi = \Phi_{n} = \Phi_{n} = \Phi_{n}$ $Gusset Plate Dimensions$ $Thickness, t_{g} = Length L $	25.1 354.29 34.50 0.9 417.4 375.6 0.625	ksi ksi k k		>	$[F_{e} = \pi^{2} E / (KL/r)^{2}]$ $[Fcr = (.658^{Fy}/Fe))^{*}Fy]$ $[P_{n} = F_{cr}A_{g}]$ 88.90 k	Eqn E3-4 Eqn 3-2 E1(b) Eqn E3-1 OK AISC 360-10
$F_{e} = F_{cr} = F_{cr} = \Phi = P_{n} = 0$ $P_{n} = Compression Strength, \Phi P_{n} = 0$ $Gusset Plate Dimensions$ $Thickness, t_{g} = Length, L_{g} = Width, W_{s} = 0$	20.1 354.29 34.50 0.9 417.4 375.6 0.625 54 13	ksi ksi k k in		>	$[F_e = \pi^2 E/(KL/r)^2]$ $[Fcr = (.658^(Fy/Fe))^*Fy]$ $[P_n = F_{cr}A_g]$ $88.90 k$ (Along beam) (Perpendicular to beam)	Eqn E3-4 Eqn 3-2 E1(b) Eqn E3-1 OK AISC 360-10

Load Angle=	34.55			(Round an	gle down for	tables)
Thickness of Thinner Part= Min. Weld Size, D=	0.59 4	in /16"		[Beam or C	Gusset thickn	ess] Tbl J2.4
Weld Size, D=	3	/16"		(One weld	each side)	
Weld Length, l=	54	in		(Length of	Gusset)	
Eccentricity, e _x =	15.1	in		[d _{beam} /2]		
a=	0.280	l i		[e _x /l]	(Round up f	or "a" in table)
a value used in table= C=	0.3 3.21					Tbl 8-4
Ф=	0.75					
Strength of Weld Group, ΦR_n =	390.0	k				
Eccentric Force, R _{ub} =	384.9	k		[1.25V(Vu ²	+T ²)]	
ΦR _n =	390.0	k	>	384.9	k	Weld is Adequate
Horizontal Shear in Gusset at Beam						AISC 360-10
Gusset Length, I _g =	54	in				
A _g =	33.75	in ₂		$[l_b t_g]$		
Shear Rupture Strength, ΦR_n =	880.9	k		[Φ*0.6F _{u-H}	_{SS} *Α _{nv}] [Φ=0.	75] Eqn J4-4
Shear Yield Strength, ΦR _n =	729.0	k		[Φ*0.6F _γ Α _β	_g] [Φ=1.0]	Eqn J4-3
Governing ΦR _n =	729.0	k	>	253.61	k	ОК

Gusset Width, W _g =	13	in		
A _g =	8.13	in ₂	[l _b t _g]	
Shear Rupture Strength, ΦR_n =	212.1	k	[Φ*0.6F _{u-HSS} *A _{nv}] [Φ=0.]	75] Eqn J4-4
Shear Yield Strength, ΦR_n =	175.5	k	[Φ*0.6F _y A _g] [Φ=1.0]	Eqn J4-3
Governing ΦR _n =	175.5	k >	174.64 k	ОК
Unit Forces at Gusset-Beam Interaction				
Gusset Section Modulus, S _g =	486.0	in ³ /in	[L _g ² /6]	
Unit Shear, f _v =	4.70	k/in	$[V_{ug}/L_g]$	
Max Unit Tension, f _a =	3.23	k/in	$[T_{\mu\sigma-Max}/L_{\sigma}]$	
Min Unit Tension, f _a =	2.35	, k/in	[T _{ug-Min} /L _g]	
Contribution from Moment, f _b =	7.88	k/in	[M _{ug} /S _g]	
Beam Web Local Yielding				AISC 360-10
				7.00000010
Unit Force with	Max Te	ension		
Max Compressive Unit Force, f _{c-Max} =	11.11	k/in	[f _b +f _{a-Max}]	
Max Tensile Unit Force, f _{t-Max} =	4.65	k/in	$[f_b - f_{a-Max}]$	
Length of Gusset in Tension, L _t =	15.9	in	$[(f_t/(f_t+f_c))*L_g]$	
Resultant Tension Force, R _u =	37.0	k	[.5L _t f _t]	
Unit Force with	n MinTe	nsion		
Max Compressive Unit Force, f _{c-Min} =	10.23	k/in	[f _b +f _{a-Min}]	
Max Tensile Unit Force, f _{t-Min} =	5.53	k/in	[f _b -f _{a-Min}]	
Length of Gusset in Tension, L _t =	19.0	in	$[(f_t/(f_t+f_c))*L_g]$	
Resultant Tension Force, R _u =	52.4	k	[.5L _t f _t]	
Webleed Vielding Strength AD		k s		
web Local fielding strength, $\Phi R_n =$	090.7		⊃2.4 K	
		ͺΨ(ጛĸ _{Beam} +I _t)Ͱ _{y-WF} t _w	-beam] [Ψ=1.00]	Edu 110-5

Force with M	ax Tens	sion			_	
Resultant Compression Force, R _u =	211.6	k		$[.5(L_g-L_t)f_c]$		
Force with M	in Tens	sion			_	
Resultant Compression Force, R _u =	179.2	k		$[.5(L_g-L_t)f_c]$		
Web Local Crippling Strength DR =	900 1	k	>	211.6	k	OK
web Local enpping strength, ϕn_n^-	500.1	ĸ	-	211.0	ĸ	OK
[Φ0.8t _w 2{1	+3(N/d)(t _w /t _f)1.5}sqrt(EF _{yWF} t _f /	t _w)] [Φ=0.7	5]	



Gusset Plate (SCBF) at Roof Beam - 2 Braces

Plate Material Properties

F _y =	36	ksi
F _u =	58	ksi
E=	29000	ksi

Brace Properties

F _{y-HSS} =	42	ksi
F _{u-HSS} =	50	ksi
A _{g-HSS} =	2.44	in²
t _{HSS} =	0.205	in
D=	4	in

Beam Material

F _{y-WF} =	50	ksi
F _{u-WF} =	65	ksi
d _{Beam} =	26.9	in
t _{w-Beam} =	0.49	in
t _{f-Beam} =	0.745	in
k _{Beam} =	1.34	in

Weld Properties

Weld F_{EXX} 70ksiWeld Unit Strength, Φr_n 1.392k/in * D

[Φ*(1/v2)*(1/16)*(0.6FEXX)] Eqn J2-3
Max Tension Brace Force, T _u = Buckled Brace Force, P _{ub} = Max Compression Brace Force, P _{um} = Max Brace Force=	164.0 7.1 29.6 163.97	k k k k	[1.1*Expec	ted Comp. S	Strength]	Re Re Re	f. Upper Brace f. Upper Brace f. Upper Brace
Vert. Brace Length= Horiz. Brace Length=	16.13 15	ft ft		[Distance B	etween Wor	kpoints]	
Brace Angle=	47.07	Degrees		[arctan(Ve	t./Horiz.)]		
Shear Force at Beam Flange, V _{ug} = Tension at Beam Flange, T _{ug-Max} = Tension at Beam Flange, T _{ug-Min} = Load Angle, Θ= Moment: Gusset to Beam, M _{ug} =	131.81 106.86 91.55 39.03 1772.9	k k k k-in		$[(T_u+P_{um})*(I_u-P_{ub})*C_u]$ $[(T_u-P_{um})*C_u]$ $[arctan(T_{ug})$ $[V_{ug}(d_{beam}/2)]$	Cos(Brace Ang os(Brace Ang os(Brace Ang /V _{ug})] 2)]	gle)] le)] gle)]	
Brace-to-Gusset Weld							AISC 360-10
Thickness of Thinner Part= Min. Weld Size, D= Weld Size, D=	0.21 2 3	in /16" /16"		[Brace or G	usset thickne	ess]	Tbl J2.4
Number of Welds= Weld Length, I _w = Weld Length ≥ D of Brac	4 10 ce :. Wel	in d Meets R	> equirement	4 s of Tbl D3.:	in L for Shear La	ag Factor	
Weld Strength, ΦR _n =	167.0	k		[Φr _n *D*l _w *	# of Welds]		
ΦR _n =	167.0	k	>	163.968	k		ОК
HSS Wall Shear Rupture							AISC 360-10
A _{nv} =	8.2	in ²		[4*I _w t _{HSS}]			
Shear Rupture Strength, ΦR_n =	184.5	k		[Φ*0.6F _{u-HS}	_{ss} *A _{nv}]		Eqn J4-4
ΦR _n =	184.5	k	>	163.968	k		ОК

Gusset Thickness, t _g =	0.625	in			
A _{nv} =	12.5	in ²		[2*I _w t _{HSS}]	
Shear Rupture Strength, ΦR _n =	281.3	k		[Φ*0.6F _{u-HSS} *A _{nv}] [Φ=0.7	5] Eqn J4-4
ΦR _n =	281.3	k	>	163.968 k	ОК
Shear Lag Rupture of Brace					AISC 360-10
A _e A _{e-Req'd}	2 2	A _g 2.44	in ²		AISC 347-10: F2.5b(3)
HSS Slot at Gusset Plate Gap=	0.0625	in	(Each Side)	
Net Area, A _n =	2.13	in ₂		[A _n =A _g -Area of 2 Slots]	D3.2
I _w =	10.00	in	<	5.2 in [1.3D]	Tbl D3.1
x=	0.00	in			Tbl D3.1
U=	1.000			For lw>1.3D	Tbl D3.1
Effective Area of HSS, A _e =	2.13	in ²		[A _e =U*A _n]	Eqn D3-1
Req'd Reinforcement, A _{ecp} =	0.31	in ²			
Reinforcement from:	HSS4	1X0.220		(Using 2 quarter sections	5)
				A ₂ A ₁ GUSSET BRACE COVER PLATE	P.
A ₁ =	1.07	in ²		$[A_n/2]$	
A ₂ =	0.61			[Ag-Cover Plate/4]	

Radius of Brace, r ₁ =	1.8975	in	[(D/2)-(t/2)]
Radius of Reinf, r ₂ =	2.1025	in	[(D/2)+(t/2)]
$\Theta_1 = \Theta_2 =$	1.37 0.785	rad. rad.	[radians(A _n /A _g *90)] (1/4 of brace net area)
Partial Circle C.O.G., x _{Brace} =	1.36	in	$[r_1(\sin(\Theta_1)/\Theta_1)]$
Center of Gravity, x _{Cover Plate} =	1.89	in	$[r_2(\sin(\Theta_2)/\Theta_2)]$
ΣA= ΣxA=	1.68 2.60	in ² in ³	
x _{Composite} =	1.24	in	$[(\Sigma xA/\Sigma A)-(t_g/2)]$
U=	0.876		[1-(x _{Comp.} /I _w]
A _e =	2.94	in ²	[2*U*∑A]
A _e =	2.94	in ² >	A _g = 2.44 in ² OK
R _y = R _t =	1.6 1.2		Ref. Lower Brace Design
Expected Rupture Strength of Cover Plat	e		
ΦP _n =	36.60	k	$[P_n = R_t A_2 F_u] [\Phi = 0.75]$ Eqn D2-2
Expected Yield Strength			
ΦP _n =	36.89	k	$[P_n = R_y A_2 F_y] [\Phi = 0.90]$ Eqn D2-2
ΦP _n =	36.89	k	[Max of Expected Strengths]

Thickness of Thinner Part= Min. Weld Size, D=	0.21 2	in /16"		[Brace thickness]	Tbl J2.4
Weld Size, D=	3	/16"			
Number of Welds=	2	1			
Weld Length, I _w =	5	in			
Weld Strength, ΦR_n =	41.8	k		$[\Phi r_n D^* I_w^* \# of Welds]$	
Expected Strength, ΦP_n =	36.9	k		[ΦR _t F _u A _n] [Φ=0.75]	
ΦR _n =	41.8	k	>	36.9 k	ОК
Gusset Shear Yielding at Brace					AISC 360-10
Shear Yield Strength, ΦR_n =	419.77	k		[2*Φ*0.6F _y A _g] [Φ=1.0]	Eqn J4-3
ΦR _n =	419.77	k	>	163.97 k	ОК
Whitmore Section					AISC 360-10
Whitmore Width, L _w =	15.55	in		[2*l _w tan(30°)+D _{HSS}]	
A _g =	9.72	in ²		$[L_w * t_g]$	
Gusset Tensile Yielding at Brace					AISC 360-10
Whitmore Area, A _g =	9.72	in			
Tensile Yield Strength, ΦR_n =	314.83	in ²		[ΦF _y A _g] [Φ=0.9]	Eqn J4-1
ΦP _n =	314.83	k	>	163.97 k	ОК

Whitmore Area, A _{effective} =A _g =	9.72	in ²				
Tensile Rupture Strength, ΦP _n =	422.68	k			[ΦF _u A _e] [Φ=0.75]	Eqn J4-1
ΦP _n =	422.68	k		>	163.97 k	ОК
Compression in Gusset						AISC 360-10
Whitmore Area, A _g =	9.72	in ²				
K= L= r=	1.2 3.21 0.180	in in			[t/v12]	Tbl C-A-7.1
KL/r=	21.4		<	25	Use Chapte	r E
4.71v(E/F _y)=	133.68					
KL/r=	21.4		<	133.68	Use Eqn E3-2	2
F _e =	626.03	ksi			$[F_e = \pi^2 E / (KL/r)^2]$	Eqn E3-4
F _{cr} =	35.14	ksi			[Fcr=(.658^(Fy/Fe))*Fy] Eqn 3-2
Ф=	0.9					E1(b)
P _n =	341.5	k			$[P_n = F_{cr}A_g]$	Eqn E3-1
Compression Strength, $\Phi P_n =$	307.3	k		>	29.56 k	ОК
Gusset Plate Dimensions						AISC 360-10
Thickness, t _g = Length, L _g =	0.625 50	in in			(Along beam)	

Width, W_g= 8 in

(Perpendicular to beam)

Load Angle=	39.03			(Round ang	gle down for	tables)	
Thickness of Thinner Part= Min. Weld Size, D=	0.49 3	in /16"		[Beam or G	Gusset thickn	ess]	Tbl J2.4
Weld Size, D=	3	/16"		(One weld	each side)		
Weld Length, l=	50	in		(Length of	Gusset)		
Eccentricity, e _x =	13.45	in		[d _{beam} /2]			
a=	0.269			[e _x /l]	(Round up f	or "a" in table)	
a value used in table= C=	0.3 3.21						Tbl 8-4
Ф=	0.75	l i					
Strength of Weld Group, ΦR_n =	361.1	k					
Eccentric Force, R _{ub} =	212.1	k		[1.25V(Vu ²	+T ²)]		
ΦR _n =	361.1	k	>	212.1	k	Weld is Ade	quate
Horizontal Shear in Gusset at Beam						AIS	C 360-10
Gusset Length, I _g =	50	in					
A _g =	31.25	in ₂		[l _b t _g]			
Shear Rupture Strength, ΦR _n =	703.1	k		[Φ*0.6F _{u-H}	_{SS} *A _{nv}] [Φ=0.	75]	Eqn J4-4
Shear Yield Strength, ΦR_n =	675.0	k		[Φ*0.6F _y A _ξ	₃] [Φ=1.0]		Eqn J4-3
Governing ΦR _n =	675.0	k	>	131.81	k	ОК	

Gusset Width, W _g =	8	in				
A _g =	5.00	in ₂		[l _b t _g]		
Shear Rupture Strength, ΦR _n =	112.5	k		[Φ*0.6F _{u-HSS} *A _{nv}] [Φ=0	.75]	Eqn J4-4
Shear Yield Strength, ΦR _n =	108.0	k		[Φ*0.6F _y A _g] [Φ=1.0]		Eqn J4-3
Governing ΦR _n =	108.0	k	>	106.86 k	C	Ж
Unit Forces at Gusset-Beam Interaction						
Gusset Section Modulus, S _g =	416.7	in ³ /in		[L _g ² /6]		
Unit Shear, f _v =	2.64	k/in		[V _{ug} /L _g]		
Max Unit Tension, f _a =	2.14	k/in		[T _{ug-Max} /L _g]		
Min Unit Tension, f _a =	1.83	k/in		[T _{ug-Min} /L _g]		
Contribution from Moment, f _b =	4.25	k/in		[M _{ug} /S _g]		
Beam Web Local Yielding						AISC 360-10
Unit Force wit	th Max [·]	Tension				
Max Compressive Unit Force, f _{c-Max} =	6.39	k/in		[f _b +f _{a-Max}]		
Max Tensile Unit Force, f _{t-Max} =	2.12	k/in		[f _b -f _{a-Max}]		
Length of Gusset in Tension, L _t =	12.4	in		$[(f_t/(f_t+f_c))*L_g]$		
Resultant Tension Force, R _u =	13.2	k		[.5L _t f _t]		
Unit Force wi	ith Min1	ension				
Max Compressive Unit Force, f _{c-Min} =	6.09	k/in		[f _b +f _{a-Min}]		
Max Tensile Unit Force, f_{t-Min} =	2.42	k/in		[f _b -f _{a-Min}]		
Length of Gusset in Tension, L _t =	14.2	in		$[(f_t/(f_t+f_c))*L_g]$		
Resultant Tension Force, R _u =	17.3	k		[.5L _t f _t]		
Web Local Yielding Strength, $\Phi R_n =$	469.0	k	>	17.3 k	C)K
		$[\Phi(5k_{Beam}+I_t)]$	F _{y-WF} t _w	_{-beam}] [Φ=1.00]		Eqn J10-2

f _c]
f _c]
k OK
D=0.75]
1



Beam Properties			Ref. Beam Calculations, AISC Manual 14th ed.
Beam:	W27X94		
F. wr=	50	ksi	Tbl 2-4
F _{u-WF} =	65	ksi	Tbl 2-4
d _{Beam} =	26.9	in	Tbl 1-1
t _{w-beam} =	0.49	in	Tbl 1-1
t _{f-beam} =	0.75		
k _{Beam} =	1.34	in	Tbl 1-1
T _{Beam} =	24.22	in	Tbl 1-1
Column Properties			Ref. Column Calculations, AISC Manual 14th ed
Colume	W14768		
Column.	VV14700		
F _{y-WF} =	50	ksi	Tbl 2-4
F _{u-WF} =	65	ksi	Tbl 2-4
4	4.4	•	
d _{col} =	14	in in	
κ _{col} =	1.51	in	
ι _{w-Col}	0.42	in	
L _{f-Col} =	0.72		-101
E=	29000	ksi	
Weld Properties			AISC Manual 14th ed.
Weld F _{EXX} =	70	ksi	
Weld Unit Strength, Φr _n =	1.392	k/in * D	[Φ*(1/v2)*(1/16)*(0.6FEXX)] Eqn J2-3
Shear Plate			AISC Manual 14th ed
Plate, F _{y-pl} =	36	ksi	Tbl 2-3
Plate, F _{u-pl} =	58	ksi	Tbl 2-3
Plate Thickness t .=	0.25	in	
Plate Height h =	24.22	in	(Theory)
Plate Width. w_{-1} =	3.5	in	() Dealiny
,,,,,,,,			

AISC 360-10

Shear, V _u =	60.61	k	[V _u ref. ro	of beam de	sign]	
Axial, H _u =	64.99	k	[P _u ref. roo	of beam des	sign]	
Shear in Plate						AISC 350-10
A _g =	6.06	in ₂		[h _{pl} t _{pl}]		
Shear Rupture Strength, ΦR _n =	158.0	k		[Φ*0.6F _{u-p}	_{ol} *A _{nν}] [Φ=0.	75] Eqn J4-4
Shear Yield Strength, ΦR_n =	130.8	k		[Φ*0.6F _{y-p}	_η Α _g] [Φ=1.0]	Eqn J4-3
Governing $\Phi R_n =$	130.8	k	>	60.61	k	ОК
Beam to Shear Plate Weld						AISC 360-10
Load Angle=	47.0	degrees		[arctan(V _u	_{ic} /H _{uc}] (Roun	d down in table)
Thick. of Thinner Part=	0.25	in (4 cll				T 1112 4
Min. Weld Size, D=	2	/16"				1 DI J2.4
Weld Size, D=	3	/16"		(One weld	l each side)	
Weld Length, I_w =	24.22	in		[h _{pl}]		
kl=	3	in		(Distance (Edge of s	between fille hear plate to	et welds) edge of gusset)
k=	0.123865			[kl/l]	(Round dov	wn in table)
Eccentricity, e _x =	2	in		[Col. Flang	ge to Center	of weld group]
a=	0.083			[e _x /l]	(Round up	for "a" in table)
a value used in table=	0.1					
k value used in table=	0.1					
C=	4.49					Tbl 8-4
Ф=	0.75					
Strength of Weld Group, ΦR_n =	244.7	k				
Eccentric Force, R _{ub} =	111.1	k		[1.25√(V _{uc}	² +H _{uc} ²)]	
ΦR _n =	244.7	k	>	111.1	k	Weld is Adequate

Load Angle=	47.0	degrees		[arctan(V _u	_c /H _{uc}]	
Thick. of Thinner Part= Min. Weld Size, D=	0.25 2	in /16"				Tbl J2.4
Weld Size, D=	3	/16"		(One weld	each side)	
Weld Length, I _w =	24.22	in		[h _{pl}]		
Eccentricity, e _x =	5.95	in		[d _{Col} /2]		
a=	0.246			[e _x /l]	(Round up fo	or "a" in table)
a value used in table= C=	0.3 3.48					Tbl 8-4
Ф=	0.75					
Strength of Weld Group, ΦR_n =	189.6	k				
Eccentric Force, R _{ub} =	111.1	k		[1.25v(V _{uc}	² +H _{uc} ²)]	
ΦR _n =	189.6	k	>	111.1	k	Weld is Adequate